
CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687

Agenda
Regular Meeting

City of Lake Worth
Planning & Zoning Board

City Hall Commission Room
7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 01, 2016 6:00 PM

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences:

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda: 

4. Approval of Minutes:

A. April 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes

B. May 4, 2016 Meeting Minutes

5. Cases:

A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants:

B. Proof of Publication:

C. Withdrawals/Postponements:

D. Consent:

E. Public Hearings:

1. Board Disclosure

2. Cases:

a. PZB 16-00300003 and 16-01300002 for Consideration of  a recommendation for a 
Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment from the Palm Beach County Land 
Use designation of Commerial High Intensity/8 dwelling units per acre and 
Commerical Low Intensity/8 dwelling units per acre to a City of Lake Worth Future 
Land Use designation of Mixed Use West (MU-W); and Consideration of a 



Agenda Date:  _________ “Regular Meeting” or “Work Session” or “Special Meeting”

recommendation for a Zoning Map Amendment from the Palm Beach County 
Multi Family Residential (RH)/Commercial Zoning District to the city of Lake 
Worth mixed Use-West (MU-W) Zoning District.

F. Unfinished Business: 

1. PZB 16-01400001 and PZB 16-00500001 Consideration of a request for a Major Site 
Plan and Conditional Land Use permit to allow the construction of eight (8) 
townhomes in a Mixed Use development with associated  retail and services. The 
applicant is also requesting consideration of a Sustainable Bonus application for a 3rd 
story.

G. New Business:

1. PZB 15-01400004  and 16-00500012 Consideration of a request for a Major Site Plan 
and Conditional Use approval to allow for a proposed single story financial institution 
with drive through facilities totaling +/- 3,691 square feet on a +/- 0.62 acre site in the 
Downtown (DT) zoning district. PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-512-0010.

2. PZB 16-01400005 and PZB 16-00500006 Consideration of a Major Site Plan and 
Conditional Use applications to allow for the installation of a 2.01 Mega Watt DC 
Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake Worth Landfill site.

3. PZB 16-00000001 Consideration of a request to permit three (3) murals at 101 North B 
Street. 

4. PZB 16-00500014 Consideration of a Conditional Land Use application from CWS 
Restaurant to operate a bar with live entertainment.

6. Planning Issues:

7. Public Comments (3 minute limit):

8. Departmental Reports:

9. Board Member Comments:

10. Adjournment:

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with 
respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of 
the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105)

NOTE: ALL CITY BOARDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO CONVERT ANY PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP SESSION WHEN A QUORUM IS NOT 
REACHED. THE DECISION TO CONVERT THE MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP 
SESSION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CHAIR'S DESIGNEE, 



Agenda Date:  _________ “Regular Meeting” or “Work Session” or “Special Meeting”

WHO IS PRESENT AT THE MEETING. NO OFFICIAL ACTION SHALL BE TAKEN 
AT THE WORKSHOP SESSION, AND THE MEMBERS PRESENT SHOULD LIMIT 
THEIR DISCUSSION TO THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FOR THE PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING. (Sec. 2-12 Lake Worth Code of Ordinances)

Note:   One or more members of any Board, Authority or Commission may attend and speak at 
any meeting of another City Board, Authority or Commission.

All project-related back-up materials, including full plan sets, are available for review by the 
public in the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division located at 1900 2nd Avenue 
North.



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687

Agenda
Regular Meeting

City of Lake Worth
Planning & Zoning Board

City Hall Commission Room
7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 06, 2016 6:00 PM

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences:
The regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Board was called to order at 6:01 pm by 
Chairman Rice.
Present were: Chairman Greg Rice, Mark Humm, Elise LaTorre, Anthony Marotta, Dustin 
Zacks, and Cindee Brown.
Also present: Curt Thompson, Community Planner; Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director 
Planning and Preservation; Carolyn Ansay, Board Attorney; Sherie Coale, Board Secretary.

2. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by: Veteran of the Korean War

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda: 
Addition of election of Vice-Chair; Board Attorney recommends proceed to elect.
Motion: Anthony Marotta nominated by C. Brown seconded by M. Humm
Vote: Ayes all unanimous

4. Approval of Minutes:

A. December 2015 Joint Workshop Minutes
Motion to approve: M. Humm seconded by A. Marotta
Vote: Ayes all unanimous

B. February 2016  Regular Meeting Minutes
Motion to approve: M. Humm seconded by A. Marotta
Vote: Ayes all unanimous

5. Cases:

A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants:
Applicants and staff were sworn in by the Board Secretary

B. Proof of Publication:
Motion to accept: M. Humm seconded by A. Marotta
Vote: Ayes all unanimous

C. Withdrawals/Postponements: None

D. Consent:



Agenda Date: April 6, 2016 Regular Meeting

1. PZB Project #13-00100002 Consideration of an amendment to the Conditions of 
Approval for the approved "Village II at Lake Osborne" project located at 2430 Lake 
Worth Road and 2269 2nd Avenue N. The site 4.71 acres in area and is currently under 
construction.
Staff: Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director presents the amendment to the previously
approved Conditions of Approval. Palm Tran no longer requires dedication of a ten 
(10) foot easement. The applicant would not be able to acquire their Certificate of 
Occupancy with this condition.  The property will provide the bus shelter on their 
property with insurances to protect their own interests.
Motion: To approve, M. Humm seconded by C. Brown.
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous

E. Public Hearings:

1. Board Disclosure:  G. Rice mentions that he spoke with a concerned citizen with regard 
to Item 1.

2. Cases:

F. Unfinished Business: None

G. New Business:

1. PZB/HRPB Project# 16-02900002 for Consideration of a request by Stateside Partners 
LLC for a text amendment to Chapter 23, Land Development Regulations and 
Permitted Use Table, of the Lake Worth Code of Ordinances to allow drive through 
facilities as conditional use within the Downtown(DT) zoning district.

Staff: Curt Thompson presents the project and delineates the affected areas, specifically 
west of Dixie Highway.
Board: Inquiry regarding site plan and staff responds this is a text amendment at this 
point in time.
Board: M. Humm has questions regarding light shining from any drive through 
establishment into residential areas. 
E. LaTorre questioned whether there is continued discussion regarding the narrowing 
of Dixie Hwy..
Applicant: Joe Iravani agent for the owner - CRA is also in support of project. Right 
now it is vacant land and it will be an improvement.
Public Comment: CRA Joan Oliva- 124 North H was bought with Neighborhood 
Stabilization money. There are only two (2) options for the land; build affordable 
housing or enter into agreement with a developer to add more jobs.
M. Humm states he knows Mr. Weinstein, from Stateside Capital, but has not discussed 
this issue with him. 
A. Marotta- clarifies that drive through restaurants downtown are excluded.  
Clarification, that section regarding drive through COUS criteria was included into the 
new language, the section was modeled from other, The LDR’s do not include the 
conditional use criteria.
G. Rice asks how the determination is made between drive through restaurants vs 
takeout with regard to our Code.



Agenda Date: April 6, 2016 Regular Meeting

Motion: D. Zacks 2nd by M. Humm
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous

2. PZB Project #15-01400008 for a Major Site Plan Amendment to allow the construction 
of an approximately 136,680 square foot mixed use development consisting of +/- 101  
( 104) rental units. (PCN# 38-43-44-20-01-097-0020; 38-43-44-20-01-097-0010; 38-43-
44-20-01-096-0020).
Staff: Curt Thompson presented differences in the original approved plans vs the 
modification presented with this request.
Applicant: Larry Zabik introduced many of the veteran groups here as well as having 
served himself. The discussion included the addition of a site in Palm Springs to the 
west of the canal site in Lake Worth. The applicant re-examined, then revised the plans 
to make it more affordable, for example reducing the square footage. Stated the 
proposed is typical Florida construction, CBS and Spanish tile roof, architecturally 
pleasing and economical. Florida Energy Efficient code compliant. The rooftop 
equipment is hidden from view in a “mechanical pit”. Palm Springs site blends well with 
this site, they are complementary.

Motion: E. LaTorre 2nd by C. Brown
Chair asks if parcels will be unified in title, Staff indicates yes.
M. Humm asks if signage has been approved.
Vote: Ayes, all unanimous.

3. PZB Project Number 16-00500004 for a Conditional Use application from Acceleration 
Academies to operate an alternative option for students that have already dropped out 
of the traditional classroom in Palm Beach County. The proposed use will occur within 
the existing commercial/office building located at the 811 Lucerne Avenue, (PCN# 38-
43-44-21-15-507-0030) within the Downtown (DT) district.

Staff: Curt Thompson presented an overview of the procedural operation of the 
project.

Applicant: Kim Lundy explained that “wraparound services” in addition to teaching, 
are provided to the students. They have access to life coaches, career coaches, and 
counseling.

*Board member Dustin Zacks leaves the dais at 7:19 pm

Board: E. LaTorre asks about what the students are doing, do they have criminal 
records. Asks about graduation rate, currently at 50%. C. Brown asks how the site was 
determined.  
Applicant: K. Lundy indicates the client conducts site searches by clusters of dropouts 
to determine where to best locate the site. It is near public transportation. The students 
have a variety of reasons for not having completed the traditional venue for education
such as working and/or taking care of family. Upon graduation students earn a Palm 
Beach County School District Diploma.  Virtual and Skype instruction is available for 
students.  
Board: C. Brown is concerned about people crossing Lucerne from the parking to the 
site. G. Rice states that there is a crosswalk nearby.



Agenda Date: April 6, 2016 Regular Meeting

Applicant: K. Lundy stated there are around 25 students at a time. Ryan Graves, 
Director of Logistics stated the site is a central location for the southern and western
areas of Lake Worth, which was indicated by the cluster search. Students range from 16-
21 years of age and are currently enrolled. They do not accept students who were 
expelled. Since Accelerated Academies partners with PBC School district, the 
admissions requirements are the same as for any public school regarding Code of 
Conduct, funding is also through PBC School District.
Board: E. LaTorre asks why Dept of Criminal Justice was consulted. Mr. Graves stated 
they contact many resources and this Dept aided in determining the location. G. Rice 
asks if this is the first in Palm Beach County. Applicant indicates yes and they have been 
working for approximately one year for this arrangement with the School District.

Motion: C. Brown seconded by M. Humm.
Vote: ayes 4/1 nay: E. LaTorre

4. PZB Project # 16-00500002 for a Conditional Use application to allow for a residential 
and commercial custom cabinetry and furniture manufacturing company within a /-
9250 square foot building on a +/- 14,976 square foot site within the Artisanal 
Industrial (AI-POC) Zoning District. (PCN 38-43-44-21-15-123-0172).

Staff: Curt Thompson presented an overview of the business currently being conducted 
at the location.  When the applicant applied for a business license, staff recognized it 
required a conditional use permit. The building buffers the residential area to the west 
from the railroad as is typical in many cities.
Applicant: Sonny Sammy; with agent Jonathan Baretto. This business moved from 
Delray after their previous site was sold. This building was purchased.
M. Ducoste explains this was “missed” as it was a business tax application and they did 
not consult Planning and Zoning prior to signing a lease. Upon review at staff level it 
was discovered a conditional use would be required.
Motion: E. LaTorre 2nd by A. Marotta.
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.

6. Planning Issues: None

7. Public Comments (3 minute limit): None

8. Departmental Reports: M. Ducoste mentions the addition of staff. In particular the associate 
planners have aided in reducing backlogs and increased the expediency of reviews. Anticipated
in the near future are Wyndham fka Holiday Inn resubmittal and an applicant for outdoor 
storage.

9. Board Member Comments: G. Rice inquires about fence height for the SW corner of 10th

Avenue North at E street a chain link fence. Asks about progress of Charter School.  Assistant 
Director reminds everyone to check out the development of construction on Boutwell Road 
progress. GSG is projected to move forward soon.

Board Vice-Chair Dean Sherwin sadly has passed away. The Board would like to thank his
family for sharing him with us, a great resident and a great guy, he will certainly be missed. His 
service and accomplishment deserves mention at the upcoming Volunteer Breakfast.



Agenda Date: April 6, 2016 Regular Meeting

Asks about timeframe for the position to be filled again. Not known at this time. Architectural 
background required for this seat.

A. Marotta mentions that the process is moving smooth and quick as experienced for a 
personal item review.

G. Rice mentions that popular comments have been heard that vinyl fencing is not allowed.
Negative aspects to the product appearance over time and not sustainable.

10. Adjournment: 7:50 pm
Motion: M. Humm, 2nd A. Marotta
Vote: Ayes, all unanimous

Attest: ___________________________
Greg Rice, Chairman

Submitted By: ___________________________
Sherie Coale, Board Secretary

Minutes Approved: ___________________________
Date



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687

Agenda
Regular Meeting

City of Lake Worth
Planning & Zoning Board

City Hall Commission Room
7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL

WEDNESDAY, MAY 04, 2016 6:03 PM

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences:
Present were: Mark Humm, Chairman Greg Rice, Vice-Chair Anthony Marotta, Cindee Brown, 
Dustin Zacks.
Also present were: Carolyn Ansay, Board Attorney; Curt Thompson, Senior Community 
Planner; Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director Planning Zoning Historic Preservation; William 
Waters, Director for Community Sustainability; Board Secretary, Sherie Coale.
Absent: Elise LaTorre

2. Pledge of Allegiance
M. Humm led the pledge.

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda: 
M. Ducoste mentions corrections to project numbers. 

The following item was heard out of order. Chairman Rice inquired as to whether there 
were any objections to moving this item forward on the agenda. No objections were 
raised. The resident wishes to be heard earlier in order to attend another meeting 
(Cultural Arts Council), scheduled at 6:30 PM. 

Public Comment:
Mary Lindsey 327 Columbia Drive College Park- RE: Courtyards of Lake Worth. Expresses 
concerns regarding access from Columbia Drive to Spillway Park being closed off by the 
adjacent development. Questions how an entity can disregard the conditions of approval, 
specifically, condition #3 of the approval originally granted April 7, 2005 stating the “Egress/ 
Ingress to Spillway Park to be open to the public, dawn to dusk, as approved by the City 
Attorney”. Ms. Lindsey enters into the record a letter issued by Community Sustainability dated 
May 23, 2011 reiterating the conditions have not been modified since the original approval.
Would like to know what “teeth” the Board actually has to enforce the conditions when the 
applicant chooses to ignore the conditions. 

4. Approval of Minutes:

A. Meeting Minutes

1. April 6, 2016 Minutes RM – continued until June Meeting.



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

5. Cases:

A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants:
Board Secretary administered oath.

B. Proof of Publication:
Provided in the meeting packet.

C. Withdrawals/Postponements:
None

D. Consent:
None

E. Public Hearings:

1. Board Disclosure
No disclosures
D. Zacks states that Fun Depot is on the agenda but will not be influencing his 
decision.

2. Cases:

F. Unfinished Business: 
None

G. New Business:

1. PZB Project # 16-01500002 Consideration of a request for a Parking lot variance.
Staff: M. Ducoste presents the case, provides that at the time the building was 
constructed it was in compliance, with a re-write of the code it became non-compliant. 
The applicant currently has a court order requiring the site to include a handicap space. 
This change of parking configuration will lead to a deficiency of parking spaces but 
simultaneously will meet the ADA requirement thus fulfilling a different section of the 
code. Client did not create this hardship and staff recommends approval as the request 
has met the criteria for the granting of the variance.
Board: No Comments or questions.
Public Comment: None
Motion: M. Humm to approve the request C. Brown 2nd.
Vote: Ayes, all unanimous

2. PZB Project # 16-01400002 + 16-00500008- Consideration of a request for a Major 
Site Plan Amendment for renovation of an existing recreational building and site 
improvements and a Conditional Use for  a +/- 26, 148  square foot new construction 
for bowling alleys and miniature golf. PCN# 38-43-44-20-01-031-0010 and 38-43-44-
20-01-031-0020.



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Staff Comments: C. Thompson presented an overview of the request and case.  
Mentions provided parking and abandonment of street. Staff recommends approval. 
The applicant will be adding additional landscaping along west property line. Changing 
out derelict chain link fence and the revitalization of currently deficient landscaping.

Board Comments: G. Rice asks about lot coverage and lighting. Staff believes it is 
prudent to condition the project so that lighting does not interfere with the Mobile 
Home Park. Asks about food stands.
Applicant Comments: Agent, Robert Kuoppala, for the owner states it is a family 
owned business and closing time will be about 11-12 pm. The lumen level at the south 
property line will be @ .3. Possibility of soft music only. 
Board asks about traffic analysis and zoning reference. Staff indicates that is an error 
and traffic is vested, a portion of 10th Avenue North was granted an exemption by Palm 
Beach County, they do not anticipate an intensification of traffic. The noise ordinance 
states that 65 decibels is the maximum allowable at the property line.
Public Comment: None
Motion: D. Zacks, Major Site Plan, with the added condition that lighting in the 
miniature golf area shall not spill over the property line, A. Marotta 2nd.
Vote: Ayes all; unanimous
Motion: D. Zacks for the Conditional Use subject to conditions as stated in previous 
motion. C. Brown 2nd

Vote: Ayes all; unanimous

3. PZB Project #16-01400001, PZB 16-00500001 & PZB 16-0100003 Consideration of a 
request for a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use application and to construct eight (8) 
townhomes and +/- 1,993 square feet of associated retail space. Variances are also 
requested from the minimum front setback, the location of property frontage and 
additional setback above the second story requirements. 6:45 pm
Staff: C. Thompson provided a synopsis of the variances along with clarification from 
the Assistant Director Maxime Ducoste.. The second variance request is in regard to a 
tree. The tree in question is a Swietania Mahogany.  Other options to mitigate the tree 
would be relocation, payment into the tree fund.  Staff provides that since the lot is 
vacant, the variances should be denied. As such the site plan, conditional use become a 
moot point as the variances are required with the current site plan configuration.

Applicant: Rick Gonzalez, REG Architects, the tree is not an issue, however the denial 
of the variance requesting a change from code for 3rd floor variance is a problem, 
believes the square footage for living is necessary and the denial of the variance from 
the 3rd floor setback requirement will not work.
Applicant: Darrin Engel indicates the tree is an endangered species of mahogany in 
South Florida. He has met with the city forester David McGrew and Landscape 
Architect Wayne Villavasa. The preference is to maintain it in Luna Park. The plan calls 
for mitigation of a sable and black olives. Power point presentation gives perspectives 
of site with remaining trees. 7:12 pm
Elements from the comprehensive plan are discussed as it relates to encouraging 
development. Applicant states the request is not for increased intensity. 2,200 square 
foot livable space is the minimal desirable/feasible. The variance from the 3rd story 
setback request is a minimal request. Applicant addresses the variance criteria.   7:30 pm



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Staff: M. Ducoste reminds Board that the project meets the intent of the 
comprehensive plan. The project can be designed to meet the code and comp plan.
It is a vacant lot and if re-designed there is no need for the two variances. The criteria 
of hardship cannot be demonstrated since the lot is vacant. Setbacks can be met with 
redesign. Can be designed to achieve a reasonable use of the land. Applicant has 
purposefully chosen to design the project that are in conflict with the city’s sustainable 
bonus incentive. External criteria such as cost of building/economics is not part of the 
criteria. Can be a slippery slope, we must be careful in reviewing variances.

7:40pm
William Waters - the reason for the donation to the CRA, as presented by the applicant, 
premise #4 and #2 are incorrect. City did request the 8 foot setback and is not adverse 
to 3-story buildings. An example of that is not presented as it is not appropriate to show 
someone else’s work. Intent of the code has been misrepresented. As an author of the 
code, the intent is fully known.
G. Rice asks if it is a matter of terminology, townhouse as opposed to live/work units? 
William Waters clarifies the townhouse requires conditional use. This is the marriage of 
3 different sections of the code. Explains the sustainable bonus program.
Several developments were mentioned and they were vested under the old code.
G. Rice believes that additional setback gives less of a retail feel, but also understands 
the desire to get rid of a boxy feel to the streetscape.
CRA Director Joan Oliva states the original concept was for eleven (11) condo units 
and did not have a commercial element. Indicates this is trying to fill a void in Palm 
Beach County for affordable housing and build the best product within the budget.
C. Brown asks why they don’t just build back the 8 feet.
Applicant: Michael Pecar sees it as a 16 foot setback. Since there is a work studio on 
lower level and garage, $200 K price and believes a 2,000 foot square foot unit.
Rick Gonzales states there should not be a concern about setting a precedent with 
granting of the variances as the conditions to the project are unique, that no other 
project like this will be will be brought forward/proposed on the major thoroughfares.
G. Rice is not crazy about the 16 feet setback, asks about cantilever on back. Michael 
Pecar states that would cause an increase in impervious site coverage.
C. Brown is in favor of saving the tree.
A. Marotta asks about square footage of units 2,000-2,200 square feet-response: 640 1st

floor ½ studio and ½ garage, A/c space is @ 1600 square feet. Conflicting statements: 
Why we should be concerned this will never happen again when you have presented 
examples of what has already been built as a justification for why this project should be 
allowed to proceed as presented.
A. Marotta- should not approve as it is in conflict and can be designed otherwise.
Michael Pecar: product is being built to sell, yes there are other ways to design it 
economics do.
William Waters-shift entire building back 10-18 feet would be an acceptable change. 
Because sidewalk is narrow, it would allow a straight up design if it were pushed back to 
18 feet. It allows for a more pedestrian feeling and better for the green space trees.
G. Rice feels the difference between live/work and townhomes are different.  William
Waters states it makes no difference with the commercial component.
Discussion of sidewalk width.



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Public Comment: 8:12 pm
Fred Schmid 1106 Lucerne is concerned about access through his property/alleyway on 
the north side of project.
Applicant: Michael Pecar adds that the commercial parking is on the street, the alley is 
only for access by the residents. A count of on street spaces indicates there are eleven 
(11).

8:20 pm
Public Comment:
Chip Gutherie: CRA Board member and resident of City. Aesthetics are great as one 
travels west, additional setback eliminates the condo canyon feel. Sites various places 
throughout the city similar in height. Talks about potential uses.  
Ashley Nardone 1202 Lucerne Ave: Art Lofts Resident- inspired by the trees, keep the 
trees and do not lose the square footage.
Louise Noakes 1202B: Art Lofts Resident: concurs with previous speaker.  8:24 pm
Andre Lambracas: also lives there 

Board: A. Marotta asks why the commercial space was added.
Michael Pecar: It is a component of a mixed use development and an attraction to the 
area.
Tax benefit for up to 10 years but would prefer 30 years. 
What is the alternative for the tree? Mitigation? William Waters states root pruning and 
deep fertilization, example given is the Banyan downtown West Palm Beach and is very 
successful. A. Marotta then questions if it is of the opinion of staff the variance for the 
2 foot for the tree is unnecessary. William Waters concurs. G. Rice states a mahogany is 
different from a Banyan, William Waters clarifies the root systems are different and 
mahogany will actually fare better.
D. Zacks does not feel if variances are denied the applicant will not be denied all 
reasonable use of the land thus failing to meet that criteria.
G. Rice-redevelopment, housing development are community benefits, safe 
communities in the areas west of town. Staff agrees, simply that it does not meet code. 
The appropriate method would be to change code through a text amendment.
Asks about a text amendment and William Waters states @ 120 days encompassing
both Boards then on to City Commission for final approvals. Board discusses this 
possibility. Board could direct staff to proceed with Code amendment, depending on 
how Board votes on project.
Could vote on 1 variance, table all others and continue to a date uncertain.
C. Ansay continuances to 6 months plus one month will keep noticing alive.
Michael Pecar speaks to CRA funding having deadlines. CRA would have to go back to 
the CRA board, end of year funds will expire.

Variance
Motion: A. Marotta- PZB 1601500003 variance from the Design Guidelines for Major 
Thorough fares and Section 23.3-13 (Mixed-Use East) as based upon the findings of 
fact during the quasi-judicial hearings.
2nd M. Humm
Vote: Ayes all unanimous



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Motion: A. Marotta -Move for an extension of up to 6 months for PZB 16-01500004  
and PZB 16-01500005.
C.Brown 2nd

Public Comment: Once the text amendment catches up to the variance, the variance 
will not be necessary.
C.Ansay- cannot base it upon future possible existing conditions that may or may not be 
approved through the text amendment.
Vote: Ayes all unanimous
Motion: M. Humm moves to direct staff to investigate the feasibility and applicability 
of a text amendment affecting the setbacks of the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program.
C. Brown 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all unanimous
Motion: A. Marotta moves to continue PZB 16-01400001 and PZB 16-00500001 for 
up to 6 months.
C. Brown 2nd
Vote: Ayes all unanimous

6. Planning Issues:
William Waters provides a progress update with several items including the May 17 change to 
the LDR’s before the City Commission, upcoming EAR  reports, and planned workshops.
Other items under review at this time include the Holiday Inn at 10th Ave North and Boutwell 
Road and the Solar Farm proposed at the City Landfill site. Investigation was conducted 
regarding the height of a fence in question on 10th Avenue North and it was determined the 
height was allowed as it is within the Mixed-Use East zoning district.
Brian Shields was introduced to the Board brings a wealth of site plan review experience. 
Mention was made of the enclave agreement being fulfilled with Palm Beach County leading to 
the annexation, land use and rezoning changes to areas generally west and north of Boutwell 
Road and 10th Avenue North. In budget season, 2014 Building Code and Flood Plain 
Management amendments approved at previous City Commission meeting. 

7. Public Comments (3 minute limit):

8. Departmental Reports:
Director William Waters has been with the City of Lake Worth for 5 years now.

9. Board Member Comments:
D. Zacks thanks staff for clear and succinct presentation.

10. Adjournment: 9:02 pm Motioned by A. Marotta 2nd by M. Humm.

Attest: ___________________________
Greg Rice, Chairman

Submitted By: ___________________________
Sherie Coale, Board Secretary

Minutes Approved: ___________________________
Date



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687

Agenda
Regular Meeting

City of Lake Worth
Planning & Zoning Board

City Hall Commission Room
7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL

WEDNESDAY, MAY 04, 2016 6:03 PM

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences:
Present were: Mark Humm, Chairman Greg Rice, Vice-Chair Anthony Marotta, Cindee Brown, 
Dustin Zacks.
Also present were: Carolyn Ansay, Board Attorney; Curt Thompson, Senior Community 
Planner; Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director Planning Zoning Historic Preservation; William 
Waters, Director for Community Sustainability; Board Secretary, Sherie Coale.
Absent: Elise LaTorre

2. Pledge of Allegiance
M. Humm led the pledge.

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda: 
M. Ducoste mentions corrections to project numbers. 

The following item was heard out of order. Chairman Rice inquired as to whether there 
were any objections to moving this item forward on the agenda. No objections were 
raised. The resident wishes to be heard earlier in order to attend another meeting 
(Cultural Arts Council), scheduled at 6:30 PM. 

Public Comment:
Mary Lindsey 327 Columbia Drive College Park- RE: Courtyards of Lake Worth. Expresses 
concerns regarding access from Columbia Drive to Spillway Park being closed off by the 
adjacent development. Questions how an entity can disregard the conditions of approval, 
specifically, condition #3 of the approval originally granted April 7, 2005 stating the “Egress/ 
Ingress to Spillway Park to be open to the public, dawn to dusk, as approved by the City 
Attorney”. Ms. Lindsey enters into the record a letter issued by Community Sustainability dated 
May 23, 2011 reiterating the conditions have not been modified since the original approval.
Would like to know what “teeth” the Board actually has to enforce the conditions when the 
applicant chooses to ignore the conditions. 

4. Approval of Minutes:

A. Meeting Minutes

1. April 6, 2016 Minutes RM – continued until June Meeting.



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

5. Cases:

A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants:
Board Secretary administered oath.

B. Proof of Publication:
Provided in the meeting packet.

C. Withdrawals/Postponements:
None

D. Consent:
None

E. Public Hearings:

1. Board Disclosure
No disclosures
D. Zacks states that Fun Depot is on the agenda but will not be influencing his 
decision.

2. Cases:

F. Unfinished Business: 
None

G. New Business:

1. PZB Project # 16-01500002 Consideration of a request for a Parking lot variance.
Staff: M. Ducoste presents the case, provides that at the time the building was 
constructed it was in compliance, with a re-write of the code it became non-compliant. 
The applicant currently has a court order requiring the site to include a handicap space. 
This change of parking configuration will lead to a deficiency of parking spaces but 
simultaneously will meet the ADA requirement thus fulfilling a different section of the 
code. Client did not create this hardship and staff recommends approval as the request 
has met the criteria for the granting of the variance.
Board: No Comments or questions.
Public Comment: None
Motion: M. Humm to approve the request C. Brown 2nd.
Vote: Ayes, all unanimous

2. PZB Project # 16-01400002 + 16-00500008- Consideration of a request for a Major 
Site Plan Amendment for renovation of an existing recreational building and site 
improvements and a Conditional Use for  a +/- 26, 148  square foot new construction 
for bowling alleys and miniature golf. PCN# 38-43-44-20-01-031-0010 and 38-43-44-
20-01-031-0020.



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Staff Comments: C. Thompson presented an overview of the request and case.  
Mentions provided parking and abandonment of street. Staff recommends approval. 
The applicant will be adding additional landscaping along west property line. Changing 
out derelict chain link fence and the revitalization of currently deficient landscaping.

Board Comments: G. Rice asks about lot coverage and lighting. Staff believes it is 
prudent to condition the project so that lighting does not interfere with the Mobile 
Home Park. Asks about food stands.
Applicant Comments: Agent, Robert Kuoppala, for the owner states it is a family 
owned business and closing time will be about 11-12 pm. The lumen level at the south 
property line will be @ .3. Possibility of soft music only. 
Board asks about traffic analysis and zoning reference. Staff indicates that is an error 
and traffic is vested, a portion of 10th Avenue North was granted an exemption by Palm 
Beach County, they do not anticipate an intensification of traffic. The noise ordinance 
states that 65 decibels is the maximum allowable at the property line.
Public Comment: None
Motion: D. Zacks, Major Site Plan, with the added condition that lighting in the 
miniature golf area shall not spill over the property line, A. Marotta 2nd.
Vote: Ayes all; unanimous
Motion: D. Zacks for the Conditional Use subject to conditions as stated in previous 
motion. C. Brown 2nd

Vote: Ayes all; unanimous

3. PZB Project #16-01400001, PZB 16-00500001 & PZB 16-0100003 Consideration of a 
request for a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use application and to construct eight (8) 
townhomes and +/- 1,993 square feet of associated retail space. Variances are also 
requested from the minimum front setback, the location of property frontage and 
additional setback above the second story requirements. 6:45 pm
Staff: C. Thompson provided a synopsis of the variances along with clarification from 
the Assistant Director Maxime Ducoste.. The second variance request is in regard to a 
tree. The tree in question is a Swietania Mahogany.  Other options to mitigate the tree 
would be relocation, payment into the tree fund.  Staff provides that since the lot is 
vacant, the variances should be denied. As such the site plan, conditional use become a 
moot point as the variances are required with the current site plan configuration.

Applicant: Rick Gonzalez, REG Architects, the tree is not an issue, however the denial 
of the variance requesting a change from code for 3rd floor variance is a problem, 
believes the square footage for living is necessary and the denial of the variance from 
the 3rd floor setback requirement will not work.
Applicant: Darrin Engel indicates the tree is an endangered species of mahogany in 
South Florida. He has met with the city forester David McGrew and Landscape 
Architect Wayne Villavasa. The preference is to maintain it in Luna Park. The plan calls 
for mitigation of a sable and black olives. Power point presentation gives perspectives 
of site with remaining trees. 7:12 pm
Elements from the comprehensive plan are discussed as it relates to encouraging 
development. Applicant states the request is not for increased intensity. 2,200 square 
foot livable space is the minimal desirable/feasible. The variance from the 3rd story 
setback request is a minimal request. Applicant addresses the variance criteria.   7:30 pm



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Staff: M. Ducoste reminds Board that the project meets the intent of the 
comprehensive plan. The project can be designed to meet the code and comp plan.
It is a vacant lot and if re-designed there is no need for the two variances. The criteria 
of hardship cannot be demonstrated since the lot is vacant. Setbacks can be met with 
redesign. Can be designed to achieve a reasonable use of the land. Applicant has 
purposefully chosen to design the project that are in conflict with the city’s sustainable 
bonus incentive. External criteria such as cost of building/economics is not part of the 
criteria. Can be a slippery slope, we must be careful in reviewing variances.

7:40pm
William Waters - the reason for the donation to the CRA, as presented by the applicant, 
premise #4 and #2 are incorrect. City did request the 8 foot setback and is not adverse 
to 3-story buildings. An example of that is not presented as it is not appropriate to show 
someone else’s work. Intent of the code has been misrepresented. As an author of the 
code, the intent is fully known.
G. Rice asks if it is a matter of terminology, townhouse as opposed to live/work units? 
William Waters clarifies the townhouse requires conditional use. This is the marriage of 
3 different sections of the code. Explains the sustainable bonus program.
Several developments were mentioned and they were vested under the old code.
G. Rice believes that additional setback gives less of a retail feel, but also understands 
the desire to get rid of a boxy feel to the streetscape.
CRA Director Joan Oliva states the original concept was for eleven (11) condo units 
and did not have a commercial element. Indicates this is trying to fill a void in Palm 
Beach County for affordable housing and build the best product within the budget.
C. Brown asks why they don’t just build back the 8 feet.
Applicant: Michael Pecar sees it as a 16 foot setback. Since there is a work studio on 
lower level and garage, $200 K price and believes a 2,000 foot square foot unit.
Rick Gonzales states there should not be a concern about setting a precedent with 
granting of the variances as the conditions to the project are unique, that no other 
project like this will be will be brought forward/proposed on the major thoroughfares.
G. Rice is not crazy about the 16 feet setback, asks about cantilever on back. Michael 
Pecar states that would cause an increase in impervious site coverage.
C. Brown is in favor of saving the tree.
A. Marotta asks about square footage of units 2,000-2,200 square feet-response: 640 1st

floor ½ studio and ½ garage, A/c space is @ 1600 square feet. Conflicting statements: 
Why we should be concerned this will never happen again when you have presented 
examples of what has already been built as a justification for why this project should be 
allowed to proceed as presented.
A. Marotta- should not approve as it is in conflict and can be designed otherwise.
Michael Pecar: product is being built to sell, yes there are other ways to design it 
economics do.
William Waters-shift entire building back 10-18 feet would be an acceptable change. 
Because sidewalk is narrow, it would allow a straight up design if it were pushed back to 
18 feet. It allows for a more pedestrian feeling and better for the green space trees.
G. Rice feels the difference between live/work and townhomes are different.  William
Waters states it makes no difference with the commercial component.
Discussion of sidewalk width.



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Public Comment: 8:12 pm
Fred Schmid 1106 Lucerne is concerned about access through his property/alleyway on 
the north side of project.
Applicant: Michael Pecar adds that the commercial parking is on the street, the alley is 
only for access by the residents. A count of on street spaces indicates there are eleven 
(11).

8:20 pm
Public Comment:
Chip Gutherie: CRA Board member and resident of City. Aesthetics are great as one 
travels west, additional setback eliminates the condo canyon feel. Sites various places 
throughout the city similar in height. Talks about potential uses.  
Ashley Nardone 1202 Lucerne Ave: Art Lofts Resident- inspired by the trees, keep the 
trees and do not lose the square footage.
Louise Noakes 1202B: Art Lofts Resident: concurs with previous speaker.  8:24 pm
Andre Lambracas: also lives there 

Board: A. Marotta asks why the commercial space was added.
Michael Pecar: It is a component of a mixed use development and an attraction to the 
area.
Tax benefit for up to 10 years but would prefer 30 years. 
What is the alternative for the tree? Mitigation? William Waters states root pruning and 
deep fertilization, example given is the Banyan downtown West Palm Beach and is very 
successful. A. Marotta then questions if it is of the opinion of staff the variance for the 
2 foot for the tree is unnecessary. William Waters concurs. G. Rice states a mahogany is 
different from a Banyan, William Waters clarifies the root systems are different and 
mahogany will actually fare better.
D. Zacks does not feel if variances are denied the applicant will not be denied all 
reasonable use of the land thus failing to meet that criteria.
G. Rice-redevelopment, housing development are community benefits, safe 
communities in the areas west of town. Staff agrees, simply that it does not meet code. 
The appropriate method would be to change code through a text amendment.
Asks about a text amendment and William Waters states @ 120 days encompassing
both Boards then on to City Commission for final approvals. Board discusses this 
possibility. Board could direct staff to proceed with Code amendment, depending on 
how Board votes on project.
Could vote on 1 variance, table all others and continue to a date uncertain.
C. Ansay continuances to 6 months plus one month will keep noticing alive.
Michael Pecar speaks to CRA funding having deadlines. CRA would have to go back to 
the CRA board, end of year funds will expire.

Variance
Motion: A. Marotta- PZB 1601500003 variance from the Design Guidelines for Major 
Thorough fares and Section 23.3-13 (Mixed-Use East) as based upon the findings of 
fact during the quasi-judicial hearings.
2nd M. Humm
Vote: Ayes all unanimous



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting

Motion: A. Marotta -Move for an extension of up to 6 months for PZB 16-01500004  
and PZB 16-01500005.
C.Brown 2nd

Public Comment: Once the text amendment catches up to the variance, the variance 
will not be necessary.
C.Ansay- cannot base it upon future possible existing conditions that may or may not be 
approved through the text amendment.
Vote: Ayes all unanimous
Motion: M. Humm moves to direct staff to investigate the feasibility and applicability 
of a text amendment affecting the setbacks of the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program.
C. Brown 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all unanimous
Motion: A. Marotta moves to continue PZB 16-01400001 and PZB 16-00500001 for 
up to 6 months.
C. Brown 2nd
Vote: Ayes all unanimous

6. Planning Issues:
William Waters provides a progress update with several items including the May 17 change to 
the LDR’s before the City Commission, upcoming EAR  reports, and planned workshops.
Other items under review at this time include the Holiday Inn at 10th Ave North and Boutwell 
Road and the Solar Farm proposed at the City Landfill site. Investigation was conducted 
regarding the height of a fence in question on 10th Avenue North and it was determined the 
height was allowed as it is within the Mixed-Use East zoning district.
Brian Shields was introduced to the Board brings a wealth of site plan review experience. 
Mention was made of the enclave agreement being fulfilled with Palm Beach County leading to 
the annexation, land use and rezoning changes to areas generally west and north of Boutwell 
Road and 10th Avenue North. In budget season, 2014 Building Code and Flood Plain 
Management amendments approved at previous City Commission meeting. 

7. Public Comments (3 minute limit):

8. Departmental Reports:
Director William Waters has been with the City of Lake Worth for 5 years now.

9. Board Member Comments:
D. Zacks thanks staff for clear and succinct presentation.

10. Adjournment: 9:02 pm Motioned by A. Marotta 2nd by M. Humm.

Attest: ___________________________
Greg Rice, Chairman

Submitted By: ___________________________
Sherie Coale, Board Secretary

Minutes Approved: ___________________________
Date



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting















 Department for Community Sustainability
Planning & Zoning 

1900 2nd Avenue North
Lake Worth, FL 33461

561.586.1687

DATE: May 17, 2016

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning Board

FROM: Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation
Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner

SUBJECT: PZB Project Numbers 16-00300003 and 16-01300002, Consideration of:

• A recommendation to the Planning & Zoning Board on a request for a Small Scale Future Land 
Use Map Amendment from the Palm Beach County Land Use designation of Commercial High 
Intensity/8 dwelling units per acre and Commercial Low Intensity/8 dwelling units per acre to 
a City of Lake Worth Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use West (MU-W);

• A recommendation to the Planning & Zoning Board on a request for a Zoning Map 
Amendment from the Palm Beach County Multi Family Residential (RH)/Commercial Zoning 
District to the City of Lake Worth Mixed Use – West (MU – W) Zoning District.

P&ZB Meeting Date: June 1, 2016

BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL:

The City of Lake Worth adopted an inter-local agreement on April 5, 2016 for the annexation of an enclave 
consisting of 14 parcels totaling 8.19 acres, identified in Exhibit A of the Inter-local Agreement. This enclave is 
within the Municipal Service Area as defined by the Inter-local Service Boundary Agreement (ISBA) adopted by 
the City of Lake Worth and the Board of County Commissioners on October 6, 2015. Per Chapter 171, Part II, F.S, 
the ISBA establishes the planning, service delivery, and boundary adjustments and identified this area as Zone 8 
of the Municipal Service Area. This enclave Inter-local Agreement provides for the annexation of the right-of-way 
segments identified in Exhibit B. There are no right-of-way segments for which ownership and maintenance will 
be transferred as shown in Exhibit C. The City has provided written notice to all owners of real property located 
within the enclave, as shown at the end of this staff report. The annexation has been processed through the 
County's review departments, including Fire Rescue, Engineering, Planning Zoning and Building, Environmental 
Resources Management, Parks and Recreation, Water Utilities, County Attorney, Property and Real Estate 
Management, Sheriff's Office and the Office of Financial Management and Budget and no issues were identified 
on the annexation.

Florida Statutes: Chapter 171 of the Florida Statutes establishes the annexation procedures for adjusting the 
boundaries of municipalities, determining when annexations may take place so as to ensure sound urban 
development, ensure the efficient provision of urban services to areas that become urban in character, and ensure 
that areas are not annexed unless municipal services can be provided to those areas. The Florida Statutes allows 
annexation of enclaves less than 10 acres through an Inter-local Agreement between the annexing municipality 



and the County. The Statutes also allows for Inter-locaI Service Boundary Agreements to promote sensible 
boundaries that reduce the costs of local governments, avoid duplicating local services, and Increase political 
transparency and accountability.

Lake Worth Study: Per recommendations of the 2005 Lake Worth Annexation study, adopted by the City of Lake 
Worth and accepted by the Board of County Commissioners, the City and the County agreed to explore and initiate 
inter-local agreements for enclave annexations. The Board of County Commissioners directed County Planning 
staff to participate with the City to develop agreements for the unincorporated land within the City's Future 
Annexation Area.

ANALYSIS:

The table provided in this staff report indicates that each parcel meets the criteria definition of an enclave, 
pursuant to the Definitions Section of Chapter 171.031 of the Florida Statutes. A description is included to indicate 
that the enclave is (a) bounded and surrounded on all sides by the City of Lake Worth, or (b) bounded and 
surrounded on one or more sides by the City of lake Worth and on one or more sides by a natural or manmade 
obstacle that allows the passage of vehicular traffic to the unincorporated area only through the City. A map 
created by County staff of the area is also included in this staff report. The boundary lines are drawn according to 
the legal description of the City. The enclaves depicted on the map show the municipal boundaries either 
surrounding the enclave or depicting the vehicular traffic to the unincorporated area only through the City. The 
annexation of Boutwell Road from its northern terminus to 10th Avenue North and the annexation of 10th Avenue 
North from I-95 to Boutwell Road occurred on June 28,2007 through an Inter-local Agreement between the City 
of lake Worth (Ord. 2007-50) and Palm Beach County (R-2007-1047).  

The proposed Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use West (MU-W) is appropriate for the site and is consistent 
with adjacent properties along 10th Avenue North located within the City. 

The proposed zoning designation of Mixed Use - West (MU-W) is appropriate for the site and is consistent with 
surrounding properties which front 10th Avenue North within the City.  The MU-W District allows for low and
moderate intensity commercial uses including administrative and professional offices, medical offices, retail-type
business services, low-intensity financial institutions, low-intensity convenience sales, personal services, and
eating and drinking establishments.  

->Section 23.2-36: Rezoning of Land and Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendments:

An amendment to the official zoning map processed with the FLUM amendment shall be reviewed based on the 
following factors:

a. Consistency. Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would be consistent with the purpose and 
intent of the applicable Comprehensive Plan policies, Redevelopment Plans, and Land Development 
Regulations. Approvals of a request to rezone to a planned zoning district may include limitations or 
requirements imposed on the master plan in order to maintain such consistency.

Staff Response: While no formal site plan has been submitted as part of the land use change and 
rezoning, the surrounding area within the City Limits has a designation of Mixed Use West, and the 
proposed land use amendment would be consistent with the area and parcels in proximity to the 
site.



 Department for Community Sustainability
Planning & Zoning 

1900 2nd Avenue North
Lake Worth, FL 33461

561.586.1687

b. Land Use Pattern. Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would be contrary to the established 
land use pattern, or would create an isolated land use classification unrelated to adjacent and 
nearby classifications, or would constitute a grant of special privilege to an individual property 
owner as contrasted with the protection of the public welfare. This factor is not intended to exclude 
FLUM amendments that would result in more desirable and sustainable growth for the community.

Staff Response: The proposed Future Land Use Map amendment rezone would not be contrary to 
the established land use pattern. The area surrounding the subject properties will be compatible
to the existing land use and zoning because that area currently has a Mixed Use West Land Use
and zoning designation.  No special land use or zoning designation has been requested, and the
approval of the Future Land Use Map amendment would not grant any special privilege or create 
an isolated land use classification.  The larger area has been the subject of a long term concerted 
effort between the County and City as a joint planning area, and is consistent with the approved 
Inter-local Service Boundary Agreement (ISBA).

c. Sustainability. Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would support the integration of a mix of 
land uses consistent with smart growth or sustainability initiatives, with an emphasis on 1) 
complementary land uses; 2) access to alternative modes of transportation; and 3) interconnectivity 
within the project and between adjacent properties.

Staff Response: The proposed FLUM amendment and rezoning would be the same as the existing 
land use and zoning that currently exist for the surrounding properties.      

d. Availability of Public Services/Infrastructure. Requests for rezoning to planned zoning districts shall 
be subject to review pursuant to Section 23.5-2. 

Staff Response: The subject properties currently receive water, sewer and public service/
infrastructure support from the City of Lake Worth.    

e. Compatibility. The application shall consider the following compatibility factor: Whether the 
proposed FLUM amendment would be compatible with the current and future use of adjacent and 
nearby properties, or would negatively affect the property values of adjacent and nearby properties.

Staff Response: The proposed FLUM is compatibility with the future uses of the surrounding 

properties, and will not negatively affect the property values of the adjacent properties.

f. Economic Development Impact Determination for Conventional Zoning Districts. For FLUM 
amendments involving rezoning to a conventional zoning district, the review shall consider whether 
the proposal would further the City’s Economic Development Program, and also determine whether 
the proposal would: 1) Represent a potential decrease in the possible intensity of development, 
given the uses permitted in the proposed land use category; and 2) Represent a potential decrease 
in the number of uses with high probable economic development benefits.



Staff Response: The proposed land use and zoning designations would further the City’s Economic 
Development Program.   

g. Commercial and Industrial Land Supply. The review shall consider whether the proposed FLUM 
amendment would reduce the amount of land available for commercial/industrial development. If 
such determination is made, the approval can be recommended under the following conditions:

1) The size, shape, and/or location of the property makes it unsuitable for commercial/industrial 
development; or 

(2) The proposed FLUM amendment provides substantiated evidence of satisfying at least four  of 
the Direct Economic Development Benefits listed in subparagraph "g" above; and

(3) The proposed FLUM amendment would result in comparable or higher employment numbers, 
building size and valuation than the potential of existing land use designation.

Staff Response: The proposed FLUM amendment and rezoning does not reduce the amount of land 

available for commercial development, and industrial use is not permitted for the properties under 

the current Land Development Regulations.  

CONSEQUENT ACTION:

The Planning and Zoning Board’s recommendations will be forwarded to the City Commission for consideration at 
the next available regularly scheduled meeting.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board approve the following:

• Approval of the Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment to assign a Future Land Use designation of 
Mixed Use West (MU-W);

• Approval of the Zoning Map Amendment to assign an initial zoning of Mixed Use – West (MU - W) District.

POTENTIAL MOTIONS:

I MOVE THAT THE BOARD FORWARD TO THE CITY COMMISSION A RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE 
P&ZB Case No. 16-00300002 a Small Scale Future Land Use Map (FLUM) change from the County land use 
designation of Commercial High Intensity and Commercial Low Intensity/8 dwelling units per acre (CH/8 and CL/8) 
to the City of Lake Worth land use designation of Mixed Use West (MU-W).  

I MOVE THAT THE BOARD FORWARD TO THE CITY COMMISSION A RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE 
P&ZB Case No. 16-01300002: Zoning Map Amendment from a Palm Beach County Zoning Designation of 
Residential High Intensity (RH)/Commercial to a City Zoning Designation of Mixed Use – West (MU-W).



 Department for Community Sustainability
Planning & Zoning 

1900 2nd Avenue North
Lake Worth, FL 33461

561.586.1687

LOCATION MAP



¬«14

¬«12
¬«13

¬«2

¬«3

¬«6

¬«1

¬«11

¬«4

¬«8

¬«5

¬«10 ¬«9
¬«7

10th Ave N

Bo
utw

ell
 R

d

Keast Ln Paisley Ct

Se
pia

 Ln

Vermilion Dr

Wate
rsi

de
Dr

Kidwin Ln

Lake WorthLake Worth

Lake Clarke ShoresLake Clarke Shores
L a k e  W o r t h  P a r k  o f  C o m m e r c eL a k e  W o r t h  P a r k  o f  C o m m e r c e

Planning, Zoning
& Building
2300 N  Jog Rd

West Palm  Beach, FL 33411
Phone (561) 233-53000 100 200 300

Feet

Interlocal Service Boundary Agreement Area

Proposed Enclave Interlocal

Revision Date: 7/26/2013
Contact: Dale Whitfield.
Filename:  N:/Div/LWPOC/2013/

Note:  Map is not official, for presentations purposes only. .



MAP ID PARID SITE_ADDR_OWNER_NAMEOWNER_NA_1 ACRES ASSESSED_V

1 00434420010330040 2172 10TH AVE N10TH AVENUE REALTY LLC 0.53 632,602$         

2 00434420010270040 2201 10TH AVE NLUTZ PETROLEUM EQUIP INSTALLATIONS INC0.91 1,121,298$     

3 00434420010270020 3185 BOUTWELL RDGRAND SLAM TWO LLC 0.72 646,914$         

4 00434420010270010 3145 BOUTWELL RDSUNRISE DETOXIFICATION CENTER LLC0.31 54,000$           

5 00434420010270050 3161 BOUTWELL RDPRAESUM HEALTHCARE SERVICES0.15 26,000$           

6 00434420010270030 3141 BOUTWELL RDPOWELL CHRISTOPHER 0.69 74,400$           

7 00434420010040020 KEAST LN BARKER K R TR 0.14 -$                 

8 00434420010040090 3113 BOUTWELL RDGARCIA ABEL 0.18 38,216$           

9 00434420010040100 2219 KEAST LNROMANO JEREMIAH &ROMANO LYNNETTE0.09 50,283$           

10 00434420010040110 2221 KEAST LNWEBB DEREK &WEBB DAWN 0.09 67,032$           

11 00434420010040050 3097 BOUTWELL RDROMANO RODNEY ZACHARIAH &ROMANO LYNNETTE0.40 77,740$           

12 00434420010040070 3058 BOUTWELL RDROMANO LYNNETTE A 1.22 146,248$         

13 00434420010040040 2240 KIDWIN LNFOGEL MICHAEL N EST 1.20 188,579$         

14 00434420010030020 3015 BOUTWELL RDSMITH PATRICIA K &SMITH MAUREEN N1.55 149,126$         

Total 8.19 3,272,438.00 



PBC FLU PBC Zoning PADDR1 PADDR2 PADDR3 SALE_DATE PRICE

CH/8 CN PO BOX 970850 COCONUT CREEK FL 33097 08501/18/2008 720,000$        

CH/8 CG 2351 N POWERLINE RD POMPANO BEACH FL 33069 12087/19/2012 850,000$        

CH/8 CN 3185 BOUTWELL RD LAKE WORTH FL 33461 26106/3/2003 440,000$        

CH/8 CN 2328 10TH AVE N STE 302 LAKE WORTH FL 33461 661212/5/2013 140,000$        

CH/8 CN 2328 10TTH AVE N STE 302LAKE WORTH FL 334615/16/2013 90,500$           

HR/8 RH 1465 CHAPPAREL WAY WELLINGTON FL 33414 58566/3/2005 180,000$        

HR/8 RH 2310 KEAST LN LAKE WORTH FL 33461 26044/1/1955 100$                

HR/8 RH 3113 BOUTWELL RD LAKE WORTH FL 33461 260910/30/2014 10$                  

HR/8 RH 2219 KEAST LN LAKE WORTH FL 33461 260411/28/2012 53,500$           

HR/8 RH 14 INLET CAY DR BOYNTON BEACH FL 33435 52061/3/2014 10$                  

HR/8 RH 3097 BOUTWELL RD LAKE WORTH FL 33461 260112/2/2011 35,000$           

HR/8 RS 824 N LAKESIDE DR LAKE WORTH FL 33460 270812/10/2013 159,139$        

HR/8 RS 1500 LUCERNE AVE APT 709LAKE WORTH FL 33460 367512/1/1994 120,000$        

HR/8 AR 1144 CUMBERMEADE RD FORT LEE NJ 07024 42383/30/2013 10$                  

543,412.00 2,788,269.00



TOTAL_MARK MKT_NOT_CA TOTAL_VALU TOTAL_TAXA HMSTD_FLG LAND_MARKE

632,602$           632,602$            632,602$          632,602$          N 368,280$            

1,121,298$        1,121,298$         1,121,298$       1,121,298$      N 848,957$            

778,443$           778,443$            778,443$          646,914$          N 124,968$            

54,000$              54,000$              54,000$            54,000$            N 54,000$              

26,000$              26,000$              26,000$            26,000$            N 26,000$              

74,400$              74,400$              74,400$            74,400$            N 55,545$              

-$                    -$                     -$                   -$                  N -$                     

38,216$              38,216$              38,216$            38,216$            N 19,550$              

55,328$              27,664$              27,664$            26,239$            Y 13,800$              

67,032$              67,032$              67,032$            67,032$            N 13,800$              

85,635$              42,818$              52,740$            52,740$            Y 46,000$              

150,715$           150,715$            150,715$          146,248$          N 74,865$              

188,579$           188,579$            188,579$          188,579$          N 90,045$              

149,126$           149,126$            149,126$          149,126$          N 149,126$            

3,421,374.00 3,350,893.00 3,360,815.00 3,223,394.00 1,884,936.00 



IMPRV_MRKT PROPERTY_U

264,322$            SERVICE STATION

272,341$            SERVICE STATION

653,475$            OFFICE ONE STORY

-$                    VACANT COMMERCIAL

-$                    VACANT COMMERCIAL

18,855$              SINGLE FAMILY

-$                    RESIDENTIAL COMMON AREA/ELEMENT

18,666$              SINGLE FAMILY

41,528$              SINGLE FAMILY

53,232$              SINGLE FAMILY

39,635$              SINGLE FAMILY

75,850$              SINGLE FAMILY

98,534$              SINGLE FAMILY

-$                    VACANT

1,536,438.00 



Sv If\/\ fV1 ,-0
Regular ~-LO\to- 05[1
Public Hearing

[X]

[]

Consent

Workshop

[]

[]

Agenda Ite:t;'.#:J:J - JPALM BEACH COUNTY -""
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: 5/3/2016

Department: Planning, Zoning & Building Department

Submitted By: Planning Division

Submitted For: Planning Division
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

I. EXECUTIVE BRIEF

Motion and Title: Staff recommends motion to approve: An Interlocal Agreement with the City of
Lake Worth providing for the annexation of an enclave, generally located on the northwest and
southeast corners of 10th Avenue North and Boutwell Road.

Summary: The City of Lake Worth adopted an interlocal agreement on April 5, 2016 for the
annexation of an enclave consisting of 14 parcels totaling 8.19 acres, identified in Exhibit A of the
Interlocal Agreement. This enclave is within the Municipal Service Area as defined by the Interlocal
Service Boundary Agreement (ISBA) adopted by the City of Lake Worth and the Board of County
Commissioners on October 6, 2015. Per Chapter 171, Part II, F.S, the ISBA establishes the planning,
service delivery, and boundary adjustments and identified this area as Zone 8 of the Municipal
Service Area. This enclave Interlocal Agreement provides for the annexation of the right-of-way
segments identified in Exhibit B. There are no right-of-way segments for which ownership and
maintenance will be transferred, as shown in Exhibit C. The City has provided written notice to all
owners of real property located within the enclave. The annexation has been processed through the
County's review departments, including Fire Rescue, Engineering, Planning Zoning and Building,
Environmental Resources Management, Parks and Recreation, Water Utilities, County Attorney,
Property and Real Estate Management, Sheriff's Office and the Office of Financial Management and
Budget and no issues were identified on the annexation. The proposed annexation meets the
requirements of Chapter 171, F.S., as well as the requirements of the adopted ISBA, and is
consistent with the Intergovernmental Coordination Element of the County's Comprehensive Plan.
District 3 (RPB)

Background and Policy Issues: Based on the terms of the ISBA entered with the County on
October 6, 2015, the City of Lake Worth has identified an enclave as eligible for annexation and
located within the Municipal Service Area outlined in the ISBA. The Comprehensive Plan includes
policies and objectives to adopt implementation strategies which support municipal efforts to secure
boundary changes and that maintain cost-effective service delivery and assist in the elimination of
enclaves, pockets and finger-like areas. The proposed annexation is located within the City's Future
Annexation Area; and is consistent with the Intergovernmental Coordination Element, Objective 1.4,
of the County's Comprehensive Plan, which encourages the elimination of enclaves.

Attachments: 1. Interlocal Agreement with Exhibits A, Band C of the Interlocal Agreement
2. County Staff Report and Map

Approved By:

===============~=~=-==========================================================

Recommended By.: _O,errn.V ~Mol RGQ. 4/5 )........\-""'~"'--- _
xecutive Dif:ctor "[trtet

_ ~oq<: = J;P~ ~ 'flts-Irb
Assistant County Administrator Date



II. FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (County) =
In-Kind Match (County)
NET FISCAL IMPACT

= =

# ADDITIONAL FTE
POSITIONS (Cumulative) __

Is Item Included In Current Budget? Yes No

Budget Account No.: Fund Agency Org. Object

Reporting Category

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: There is no anticipated fiscal
impact associated with this annexation. Palm Beach County Fire Rescue provides fire protection and
emergency medical services to the City of Lake Worth, if annexed citizens would continue to receive
service from the same station.

C. Departmental Fiscal Review: k ~
III. REVIEW COMMENTS

A. OFMB Fiscal and/or Contract Dev. and Control Comments:

B. Legal SUfficiency:

C. Other Department Review:

/tJIl-tfi21LJdllYwOi!
Department Director



ATTACHMENT 2

I. General Data

Agenda Name:

Project Manager:

Recommendation:

PLANNING DIVISION STAFF REPORT

u u&a Lib kaLa &d £ & 232&£&2L£L . 23 ...... L£.U.LLL

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEARING
MAY 3, 2016

Interlocal Agreement with the City of Lake Worth· Boutwell Rd
Enclave

Patricia Behn, Principal Planner

Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement

II. Item Summary

Summary: The item before the Board is to consider approval of an Interlocal
Agreement that would annex an unincorporated enclave located on the
northwest and southeast corners of Tenth Avenue North and Boutwell
Road.

III. Current Request

Summary: The City of Lake Worth adopted an interlocal agreement on April 5, 2016 for the
annexation of an enclave consisting of 14 parcels totaling 8.19 acres, identified in Exhibit A of
the Interlocal Agreement. This enclave is within the Municipal Service Area as defined by the
Interlocal Service Boundary Agreement (ISBA) adopted by the City of Lake Worth and the
Board of County Commissioners on October 6,2015. Per Chapter 171, Part II, F.S, the ISBA
establishes the planning, service delivery, and boundary adjustments and identified this area as
Zone 8 of the Municipal Service Area. This enclave Interlocal Agreement provides for the
annexation of the right-of-way segments identified in Exhibit B. There are no right-of-way
segments for which ownership and maintenance will be transferred as shown in Exhibit C. The
City has provided written notice to all owners of real property located within the enclave, as
shown at the end of this staff report. The annexation has been processed through the County's
review departments, including Fire Rescue, Engineering, Planning Zoning and Building,
Environmental Resources Management, Parks and Recreation, Water Utilities, County Attorney,
Property and Real Estate Management, Sheriff's Office and the Office of Financial Management
and Budget and no issues were identified on the annexation.

IV. Background

Florida Statutes: Chapter 171 of the Florida Statutes establishes the annexation procedures
for adjusting the boundaries of municipalities, determining when annexations may take place so
as to ensure sound urban development, ensure the efficient provision of urban services to areas
that become urban in character, and ensure that areas are not annexed unless municipal
services can be provided to those areas. The Florida Statutes allows annexation of enclaves

BCC Hearing Staff Report May 3,2016



---------
ATTACHMENT 2

less than 10 acres through an Interlocal Agreement between the annexing municipality and the
Cou~ty. The St~tutes also allows for InterlocaI Service Boundary Agreements to promote
sen~lble bounda~l~s that reduce the costs of local governments, avoid duplicating local services,
and Increase political transparency and accountability.

County Policy: The Comprehensive Plan includes policies and objectives to adopt
implementation strategies which support municipal efforts to secure boundary changes and that
maintain cost-effective service delivery and assist in the elimination of enclaves, pockets and
finger-like areas. It is County policy to support and enter into interlocal agreement for the
annexation of enclaves that are consistent with goals, objectives and policies of the County's
Comprehensive Plan. The proposed annexation is consistent with the Intergovernmental
Coordination Element, Objective 1.4, of the County's Comprehensive Plan, which encourages
the elimination of enclaves.

Lake Worth Study: Per recommendations of the 2005 lake Worth Annexation study, adopted
by the City of Lake Worth and accepted by the Board of County Commissioners, the City and
the County agreed to explore and initiate interlocal agreements for enclave annexations. The
Board of County Commissioners directed staff to participate with the City to develop
agreements for the unincorporated land within the City's Future Annexation Area.

V. Data and Analysis

VI. Staff Assessment

T:lPlanningllntergovernmentallAnnexationsl2016 Fiscal Year\BCC Agenda ltemslLW Boutwell Rd EnclavelStaff Report eiiechement

3.docx

The proposed annexation meets the requirements of Chapter 171, F.S., ~nd is consistent with
the Intergovernmental Coordination Element of the County's comprehensive Plan. County staff
recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement.

May 3,20162BCC Hearing Staff Report

The table provided in this staff report indicates that each parcel meets the criteria definition of
an enclave, pursuant to the Definitions Section of Chapter 171.031 of the Florida Statutes. A
description is included to indicate that the enclave is (a) bounded and surrounded on all sides
by the City of Lake Worth, or (b) bounded and surrounded on one or more sides by the City of
lake Worth and on one or more sides by a natural or manmade obstacle that allows the
passage of vehicular traffic to the unincorporated area only through the City.

A map created by County staff of the area is also included in this staff report. The boundary
lines are drawn according to the legal description of the City. The enclaves depicted on the map
show the municipal boundaries either surrounding the enclave or depicting the vehicular traffic
to the unincorporated area only through the City. The annexation of Boutwell Road from its
northern terminus to 10th Avenue North and the annexation of 10th Avenue North from 1-95 to
Boutwell Road occurred on June 28,2007 through an Interlocal Agreement between the City of
lake Worth (Ord. 2007-50) and Palm Beach County (R-2007-1047).



Enclave Identification

ATTACHMENT 2

Map
PCN Address Acres

Enclave
10 Characteristic
1 00434420010330040 2172 10TH AVE N 0.53

2 00434420010270040 220110TH AVE N 0.91 The area proposed to be

3 00434420010270020 3185 BOUTWELL RD 0.72 annexed is currently bounded

4 00434420010270010 3145 BOUTWELL RD 0.31
and surrounded on the west,

5 00434420010270050 3161 BOUTWELL RD 0.15
south and east sides by the City
of Lake Worth, on the north side

6 00434420010270030 3141 BOUTWELL RD 0.69 by a natural or manmade
7 00434420010040020 KEAST LN 0.14 obstacle that allows the passage

8 00434420010040090 3113 BOUTWELL RD 0.18 of vehicular traffic to the

9 00434420010040100 2219 KEAST LN 0.09 unincorporated area only

10 00434420010040110 2221 KEAST LN 0.09 through the City, therefore the

00434420010040050 3097 BOUTWELL RD 0040
area meets the characteristics of

11 an enclave per Chapter
12 00434420010040070 3058 BOUTWELL RD 1.22 171.031(13}(b), F.S.
13 00434420010040040 2240 KIDWIN LN 1.20

14 00434420010030020 3015 BOUTWELL RD 1.55

BCC Hearing Staff Report 3 May 3,2016



ATTACHMENT 2

Enclave Interlocal through the Interlocal Service Boundary Agreement

Chapter 171.031 (13)(b), F.S., "Enclave" means:
(b) Any unincorporated improved or developed area that is
enclosed within and bounded by a single municipality and a
natural or manmade obstacle that allows the passage of
vehicular trafflc to that unincorporated area only through
the municipality.

lake Worth Park of Commerce

-o 100 200

BCC Hearing Staff Report 4 May 3,2016



ATTACHMENT 2

Sample Written Notice to Property Owners

Lake Worth, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.-

CommunitySustainabl/ity
Administrative DiVision

t9DO /J.v(;'nLIf N:)Clh

I ,Ik,' 'IV,,: th, Frn'H'd

"U06.IG«

1OTH AVENUE REALTVLLC
PO BOX 970850
COCONUT CREEK Fl33091 0850

RE: 2172 10TH AVEN
00434420010330040

Deer 10THAVENUEREALTY LLC

The subject property fs within the area current\' being ,considered for annexation through an Intenocal
,Agreement between the City of LakeWorth andPalmBeach County. Chapter 171.046 FJorJda Statutes
recog... the useoflntertooelAgi'eementl •• iI melnS to eliminate enclaves. Elimination of enclaves
provides for mont efficient de~lvwy of .rvtces to area.

The Agreement will be heard by the City of Lake Worth City Commission dul1ng a public: hearing
scheduled to takeplaceon April5. 2016 at 6:00pm.. or soon thereafter. Themeeting ¥ill take place In
the Commission Chambers1oad&da:' 7 North Dixie Highway, LakeWorth. Fl33460.

Following$doptlonby Itte OUy 01 lake Worth. the agreementwill be forwardedto Palmeeach County for
a pUblic hearing before the Board 01 County Comml&sioners. For further information on the County's
hearing. pleasecontactPatricia Bshnat (561) 233..5300.

Aease refer to the encloeedBtmfllits 01Annexation brochure for more information.

If youhavequestion"pl••do nothesl'tate tocontact meat (561) 586~1634.

Sincerely,

William Waters., AlA, NeARS, U:ED APBO+C, SEED, 10
Oirec1or fOf Community Suslainabilily
City of LakeWorth, RorkIa '

BCC Hearing Staff Report 5 May 3,2016



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 5 7
R2UT6.0 ~

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is made on this __ day of MAY a 3 ~91 '
2016 between the CITY OF LAKE WORTH, a municipal corporation located in Palmeath
County, Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and PALM BEACH COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", each entity
constituting a "public agency" as defined in Part 1, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (2015).

WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes (2015), known as the "Florida Interlocal
Cooperation Act of 1969," as amended, authorizes local governments to make the most
efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis of
mutual advantage, and to thereby provide services and facilities which will harmonize
geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing the needs and development
of local communities; and

WHEREAS, the "Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969" permits public agencies
as defined herein to enter into interlocal agreements with each other to jointly exercise any
power, privilege, or authority which such agencies share in common and which each might
exercise separately; and

WHEREAS, Section 163.3171(3), F.S., authorizes municipalities and counties to
jointly enter into agreements to exercise the powers granted to the county and the
municipalities pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, the Local Government Planning and Land
Development Regulation Act; after each government conducts a public hearing with due
public notice; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 171, Part II, F.S., as amended, establishes the Interlocal Service
Boundary Agreement process as a flexible, joint planning option for counties and
municipalities to cooperatively adjust municipal boundaries while planning for service delivery
and land use changes; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners entered into an Interlocal Service
Boundary Agreement with the City of Lake Worth by Ordinance 2015-037; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the City and by the County that the parcels to
be annexed via this interlocal Agreement meet the requirements set out in the Interlocal
Service Boundary Agreement adopted in 2015 and requirements set out in Section 171.046,
Florida Statutes (2015), as such enclaves are developed or are improved, are ten (10) acres
or less in size, and are completely surrounded by the City or are surrounded by the City and
a natural manmade obstacle that allows passage of vehicular traffic to the enclaves only
through the City; and

WHEREAS, the County and the City agree that the parcels to be annexed via this
Interlocal Agreement is subject to the Land Use Atlas of the Palm Beach County
Comprehensive Plan and County zoning and subdivision regulations until the City adopts a

Page 1 of 7



comprehensive plan amendment to include the parcels to be annexed in the comprehensive
plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual representations, terms, and
covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Purpose
The purpose of the Agreement is to allow annexation by the City of Lake Worth of

certain unincorporated enclaves which are identified in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made
a part hereof:

Section 2. Definitions
The following definition shall apply to this Agreement:

1. The term "enclave" shall be defined as set forth in Section 171.031(13) (a) and
(b), Florida Statutes (2015).

2. "Act" means Part 1 of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (2015).

3. "Agreement" means this Inter/ocal Agreement, including any amendments or
supplements hereto, executed and delivered in accordance with the terms
hereof.

Section 3. Annexation
The unincorporated enclaves identified in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and

made a part hereof, are hereby annexed into and are included in the corporate boundaries
of the City of Lake Worth.

Section 4. Annexation of Rights-of-Way
Palm Beach County hereby consents to the annexation of the right-of-way segments

identified in Exhibit "B" into the corporate boundaries of the City of Lake Worth.

Section 5. Transfer of Ownership and Maintenance Responsibility of Rights-of-Way
identified in Exhibit "C"
Approval of this interlocal agreement by both parties constitutes mutual agreement by

the City and County pursuant to Section 335.0415, Florida Statutes (2015), to the transfer of
the responsibility for ownership, operation and maintenance of the right-of-way segments
identified in Exhibit "C" from the County to the City. Such transfer shall occur upon the
effective date of the annexation of the right-of-way segments identified in Exhibit "C".

Section 6. Effective Date
This agreement shall take effect upon execution by both parties.

Section 7. Filing
Upon execution by both parties, a certified copy of this agreement shall be filed with

the Clerk of Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County.

Section 8. Notification

Page 2 of 7



The City hereby acknowledges that is has provided written notice to all owners of real
property located in the enclaves identified in Exhibit "A" whose names and addresses are
known by reference to the latest published ad valorem tax records of the Palm Beach County
Property Appraiser. The written notice described the purpose of the Interlocal Agreement
and stated the date, time, and place of the meeting of the City Council of the City of Lake
Worth where this Interlocal Agreement is to be considered for adoption. The written notice
also indicated the name and telephone number of the Palm Beach County staff person to
contact regarding the date, time and place when the Board of County Commissioners is to
consider the adoption of this Interlocal Agreement.

Section 9. Captions
The captions and section designations herein set forth are for convenience only and

shall have no substantive meaning.

Section 10. Severability
In the event any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or provision hereof is held by

a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such shall not affect the remaining portions of
this Agreement, and the same shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 11. Entire Agreement & Counterparts
This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties, concerning

the subject, and supersedes all other negotiations, representation, or agreements, either
written or oral, relating this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

remainder ofpage intentionally left blank

Page 3 of?



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures on the day and
year first above written.

ATTEST:

By: ~~o!<
Pamela J. Lopez, City

APPROVED AS TO FORMAN
LEGAL SUFFIENCY

R2016,058i MAY 0 3 2016

ATTEST:

(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFIENCY

By: =-------~---¥---:-----:r:-:--

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, BY ITS
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

BY:~ l.yerr:,Q. ~LA
Mary Lou Berger, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO TERMS
AND CONDITIONS

BY:~~
Re ecca D. C dwell, Executive Director
Planning, Zoning & Building

Page 4 of 7



Exhibit A
Parcel within Enclave

Map
PCN Address Owner Acres Assessed Value

PSC Land PSC Proposed Proposed
ID Use Zoning Land Use Zoning
1 00434420010330040 217210TH AVE N 10TH AVENUE REALTY 0.53 $632,602 CH/8 CN

LLC

2 00434420010270040 220110TH AVE N LUTZ PETROLEUM 0.91 $1,121,298 CH/8 CG

EQUIP INSTALLATIONS

INC

3 00434420010270020 3185 BOUTWELL GRAND SLAM TWO LLC 0.72 $646,914 CH/8 CN

RD

4 00434420010270010 3145 BOUTWELL SUNRISE 0.31 $ 54,000 CH/8 CN

RD DETOXIFICATION

CENTER LLC

5 00434420010270050 3161 BOUTWELL PRAESUM HEALTHCARE 0.15 $ 26,000 CH/8 CN

RD SERVICES

6 00434420010270030 3141 BOUTWELL POWELL CHRISTOPHER 0.69 $ 74,400 HR/8 RH

RD

7 00434420010040020 KEAST LN BARKER K R TR 0.14 $ - HR/8 RH

8 00434420010040090 3113 BOUTWELL GARCIA ABEL 0.18 $ 38,216 HR/8 RH

RD

9 00434420010040100 2219 KEASTLN ROMANO JEREMIAH & 0.09 $ 50,283 HR/8 RH

10 00434420010040110 2221 KEASTLN WEBB DEREK & 0.09 $ 67,032 HR/8 RH

11 00434420010040050 3097 BOUTWELL ROMANO RODNEY 0.40 $ 77,740 HR/8 RH

RD ZACHARIAH &

12 00434420010040070 3058 BOUTWELL ROMANO LYNNETIE A 1.22 $146,248 HR/8 RS

RD

13 00434420010040040 2240 KIDWIN LN FOGEL MICHAEL NEST 1.20 $188,579 HR/8 RS

14 00434420010030020 3015 BOUTWELL SMITH PATRICIA K & 1.55 $149,126 HR/8 AR

RD

Page 5 of 7



lake Worth Park of Commerce
Interlocal. Service Boundary Agreement Area

D Proposed Enclave Interlocal

o 100 200

Page 6 of 7



Keast Ln
Kidwin Ln
10th Avenue North

Exhibit B
Right-of-Way Segments To Be Annexed

Entire se ment from Boutwell Road, west to dead end
Entire se ment from Boutwell Road, west to dead end
From the West line of the East 220' of Tract 27 of Model Land
Co. Subdivision easterly to the West right-of-way for Boutwell
Road

Exhibit C
Right-of-Way Segments Operated and Maintained by the County

For which ownership and maintenance will be transferred to the City

Page 7 of 7



City Of Lake Worth
Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687

MEMORANDUM DATE:  May 19, 2016

AGENDA DATE: June 1, 2016

TO:  Chair and Members of the Planning and Zoning Board

FROM: Curt Thompson, Community Planner
Maxime Ducoste,  Assistant Director for Community Sustainability

RE:  
a) SUBJECT: Consideration of a request for a Major Site Plan PZB Project# 16-01400001, Major Site 

Plan to construct eight (8) townhomes pursuant to Section 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs;

b) PZB Project# 16-00500001, Conditional Land Use to allow for a Mixed-Use development 
consisting of retail and residential uses and services within the Mixed-Use East (MU-E) Zoning 
District, pursuant to Section 23.2-29 and Section 23.4-13 of the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs).

Land Use/Zoning:
The site is located at 110 North F Street, with a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning designation and a 
Mixed Use East (MU-E) Future Land Use Map designation. 

SYNOPSIS: 

Applicant Darrin Engel and Michael Pecar representing Neighborhood Renaissance

General Location 110 North F Street

Zoning Mixed Use East (MU-E)

Existing Land Use Vacant

Future Land Use 
Designation

Mixed Use – East

Applicable Municipal 
Code Sections

23.2-26; 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32; 23.4-13 

Required Proposed/Existing

Lot Area 6,500 square feet 20,933 square feet

Lot Width 25 feet 154.95 feet



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 2

2

Building Height

Comprehensive 
Plan: Maximum 
45’ (Third story 
and above allowed 
with the provision 
of Community 
Benefits) 

Zoning Code: 
Maximum 30’ (not 
to exceed two 
stories) plus 5 feet 
(max 3 stories) 
with   Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive 
Program

35 feet (30 + 5) (This includes 5 
feet for the sustainable bonus)

Setbacks Required Provided

Front (Lucerne) 10 feet minimum, maximum 22 feet 18 feet

Side (F Street) 10 feet minimum, maximum 22 feet 10 feet 

Side (interior) 0 0 feet 

Rear (Alley) 10 13

Bonus Height and 
Stories

5 feet 5 feet 

Living Area Not Applicable Not Applicable

Accessory Structure 
Limitations

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Impermeable Surface 
Total

65% maximum 63.95% 

Maximum Building 
Coverage

55% 35%

Floor Area Ratio .90  .87

Parking 17 
22 parking spaces for cars, plus 
4 motorcycle spaces and 16 
bike rack spaces for bicycles. 

Board Action 
Required

Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 
request for additional information;  

Staff 
Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Land Use and 
Major Site Plan, with conditions, to allow for the construction of 8 
townhomes (+/-16,176 square feet) with a +/- 2,000 square foot 
commercial building. 

Name and Title Initials

Project Planner Curt Thompson, Community Planner CT

Approved by
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and 
Preservation

MD

Project/Property Description:

The applicant, Darrin Engel and Michael Pecar representing Neighborhood Renaissance, are seeking approval for a 
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Mixed-Use Development consisting of retail/commercial 
uses, residential uses (construct eight (8) townhomes) and accessory services within the Mixed-Use East (MU-E) 
Zoning District. 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 3

3

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc., (“Applicant”), has entered into a contract with the Lake Worth Community 
Development Agency (“CRA”) to purchase the property located at 110 North F Street (“Property”). The applicant 
wants to construct eight (8) live work townhouse residences (16, 176 square feet) for working artists that will be 
sold to households earning less than 120% of the area median income which is considered affordable housing. In 
addition, the contract/agreement contemplates construction of additional community/commercial space on the
subject property. 

The site plan was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team (SPRT) at their regular meeting on March 14, 2016.  The 
SPRT recommended a number of conditions of approval, which have been included for the Board’s reference.

On the May 4th, 2016 Planning and Zoning meeting, the Board reviewed the proposed development plan, which 
included three variance requests for mimimum front setback, not to exceed 22 feet; variance from the location of 
the front of the property; and a variance for additional height and stories setback. In that same meeting, the 
Board denied two of the three variances, but granted the variance related tot the location of the lot frontage, 
therefore allowing the front of the property to along Lucerne Ave. As a consequence of the denial of two 
variances, the Major Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit was deferred to a date certain to allow the applicant to 
revised the proposal or proceed with a zoning text amendment.

The following analysis includes a discussion about the specific site improvements the applicant is proposing 
followed by an analysis that addresses each of the two (2) part request outlined in the project description. In 
addition, following the conditional use review requested by the applicant. 

Public Support/Opposition

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

The applicant’s proposal to construct a Mixed-Use Development consisting of retail/commercial uses, residential 
uses (construct eight (8) townhomes) and accessory services within the Mixed-Use East (MU-E) Zoning District at 
the subject property is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies, which are 
outlined below:

• Policy 1.1.3.4.: Redevelopment opportunities will be maximized through use of mixed land use 
designations that permit a flexible mix of multifamily residential and compatible office, service and 
commercial retail uses.

The project site has a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use-East.  The Mixed Use-East zoning 
designation, which is the zoning of the project site, is geared toward the commercial gateways and 
thoroughfares that are adjacent to the central commercial core of the city. The intent of MU-E district is 
to encourage the establishment and expansion of a broad range of office, commercial, hotel/motel and 
medium-density multiple-family residential development as well as to facilitate redevelopment within 
these areas that achieves a mix of residential and professional office land uses.   

• Policy 1.3.9.1: The City shall further discourage urban sprawl by:



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 4

4

1. Continuously promoting compact developments within the mixed use, high density residential and 
TOD areas while providing adequate public services for each development in the most cost effective 
manner possible; and,

The applicant is proposing a compact development in the Mixed Use-East land use category.  Existing 
public services, including potable water, sewer, fire and police services, are adequate to serve the project. 
The compact nature shall be consistent with the Mixed Use-East future land use designation and this 
policy.

It is evident through consistency with the identified objectives and policies that the project is consistent with the 
adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows:

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses
which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area where
located.

Staff Response: The proposed use will be in harmony with the intent of the Mixed Use – East (MU-E) Zoning 
District to construct 8 townhomes, a commercial building at the corner of Lucerne Avenue and North F Street and 
associated site improvements.  

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing uses in
the immediate area where located.

Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows:

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District
Current Use/            

Name of Development

North
Medium Density 

Residential (MDR)
SF-TF-14

Single Family Home

South Public PROS Shuffle Board Courts

East
MU-E MU-E Shopping Center

West
MU-E MU-E Residential – Urban 

Artist Lofts



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 5

5

The majority of existing uses are a mixture of residential and commercial/retail in nature. As such, the proposed 
mixed use project (townhomes and commercial building) shall be in harmony with the existing mix of commercial 
and residential uses in the immediate area.

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than
would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted
on the Property.

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use project will be compatible with the Future Land Use designation (Mixed 
Use-East) and may stimulate investment and development of the surrounding area.  The proposed mixed use will 
not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would result from a use permitted by right  

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of when such
development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan.

Staff Response: The proposed townhomes and commercial building will not result in a more intensive 
development than that approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Rather, the mixed 
use nature shall be compatible with the planning goals, objectives and policies of the Future Land Use Element as 
identified above under Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in a significant
adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than would result from a
development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use project will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will 
reduce the level of service provided on any street to a lower level than would result from a development 
permitted by right. The 8 townhomes and the 2,000 square foot commercial building will replace the former 
County Health department offices of about 5,850 square feet. The residential component includes a work space 
that the applicant expects many of the occupants will work at home thus, reducing traffic impacts.   

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on local streets
than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with respect to collector
and arterial streets.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic 
on local streets.  Traffic accessing the site is anticipated to come from the proposed entrance/exit onto an 
existing alley along the north side of the property. 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions.

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use does not include any operational features that would produce significant
air pollution emissions.



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 6

6

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither extension
nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier
incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: the proposed mixed use project will not require either extension nor enlargement nor any other
alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than
would result from development permitted by right.

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers,
surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other
alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than
would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will be served by existing utilities such that neither extension nor 
enlargement is necessary as a result of the project.

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service beyond the
capacity of those services.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police or fire 
protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by right.

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated noise
to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by right. Any proposed use
must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise control.

Staff Response: The mixed use project is not anticipated to generate significant noise.  

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent property in
excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting.

Staff Response: The proposed lighting plan for the project is anticipated to be in compliance with Section 23.4-3.  
Please refer to Sheet ES - 1 in the site plan, for additional details

Section 23.2-31: Site Design Qualitative Standards

1. Harmonious and efficient organization.  

Staff Response: All of the required elements of the site plan have been harmoniously and efficiently organized in 
relation to topography, and the size and type of parcel.   The site will be developed as to not impede the normal 
and orderly development or improvement of surrounding property.  The proposed development of the project 
site will have no negative impacts on the surrounding properties and/or uses.  The criterion has been met.



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 7

7

2. Preservation of natural conditions. 

Staff Response: The project site is currently vacant. There are of eleven (11) existing mature trees on the site, six 
(6) of the trees will be preserved as best as possible. Any trees removed will be mitigated pursuant to Article 6 of 
the Land Development Regulations.

3. Screening and buffering. 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing landscaping and buffering which will meet the requirements of the 
LDRs. The landscape plan is attached for the board’s review as depicted in sheet ES-1.

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. 

Staff Response: This project shall provide and protect residential privacy.

5. Emergency access. 

Staff Response: Emergency access to the site is provided along the alleyway located along the north side of the 
property.  The criterion has been met.

6. Access to public ways. 

Staff Response: Access to public rights-of-way to the project is being provided via one existing driveway located 
along north side of the property via the existing alleyway.  The criterion has been met.

7. Pedestrian circulation. 

Staff Response:  There is an existing concrete sidewalk along Lucerne Avenue and North F Street. The criterion has 
been met.

 
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. 

Staff Response: The site will utilize one existing entrance/exit along an alleyway at the north side of the site.  The 
criterion has been met.

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. 

Staff Response: The existing on-site circulation has been designed in a manner to coordinate with the proposed 
parking area for the property. The criterion has been met.

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. 

Staff Response: There are no on-site public streets or rights-of-ways associated with the project site.  The 
criterion is not applicable  

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 8

8

Staff Response: Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and screened 
to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.  This criterion has been satisfied.

12. Refuse and service areas.

Staff Response: The residents and commercial tenants will be using carts and will be responsible for setting their 
carts on collection days. They will also be responsible for returning them to their garages or commercial spaces.  
The criterion has been met.

13. Protection of property values. 

Staff Response: The site is currently vacant. The site plan is arranged to enhance the frontage of along Lucerne 
and North F Street.  The redeveloped of this site is expected to serve as a catalyst for investment along Lucerne 
Avenue and North F Street areas.  The redeveloped site should have a positive effect on property values in the 
immediate area.  The criterion has been met. 

14. Transitional development. 

Staff Response: Due to the mixed use nature of the surrounding area, the proposed project and redevelopment 
will be in harmony with the uses in the vicinity.  

15. Consideration of future development.

Staff Response: The vicinity in which the project site is located is in various stages of re-development.  The 
applicant is undertaking the redevelopment of the site that will result in a viable mixed use residential and 
commercial development.  The type of compact urban development proposed by the applicant is consistent with 
the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The redeveloped site is expected to serve as a catalyst 
for investment in the Mixed Use – East area.  The criterion has been met. 

 
d) Buildings, generally.

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity of character 
and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be such as to create one 
(1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is immediately adjacent to, or 
otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the city, the design, scale and location of the 
site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, value and attractiveness of the surroundings. 
Harmonious does not mean or require that the buildings be the same. 

Staff Response: The residential buildings will be design to be compatible with the existing commercial/retail 
uses in the MU-E zoning district. Meets criterion.

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified multi-building 
complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible under the circumstances. If 
a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary requirements shall be met, including honest 
design construction, proper design concepts, and appropriateness to the city. 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 9

9

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. Materials 
shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building. 

Staff Response: The building facades shall be designed to meet this criterion.

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. Harmony can be 
achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, orientation, site planning, 
landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural components including but not limited to 
porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic expression. 

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use project is to be designed to meet this criterion.

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient separation to 
preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not to be construed to 
prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned development where, in the opinion 
of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, or are enhanced by the look-alike buildings 
and their relationship to each other. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible with the 
criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not be allowed 
unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an aesthetic asset to the 
building, project and neighborhood. 

Staff Response: The proposed use is not designed for advertising purposes, the intent is to provide additional 
affordable residential uses and commercial uses for the enhancement of the City.  
Meets criterion.

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in an aesthetic 
manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not compatible to the 
neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the building or grounds at night than 
in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the building will not be allowed if, in the 
opinion of the board, the overall effect will be detrimental to the environment. All fixtures used in exterior 
lighting are to be selected for functional as well as aesthetic value. 

Staff Response: The project as proposed meets this criterion.

8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood.

Staff Response: All building surfaces, walls and roofs are proposed to be compatible and in harmony with the 
surrounding vicinity. Meets criterion.

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a building 
façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to constitute an 
aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood. 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 10

10

Staff Response:  No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. They shall be 
an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private property, 
shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate structure compatible 
with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be readily visible from off-premises. 

Staff Response: No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. Meets criterion.

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is also to be 
understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving atmosphere of the city, 
even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be approved. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash containers. 

Staff Response: No advertising has been proposed by this applicant. Meets criterion.

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light spillage onto 
adjacent residential properties is minimized.

Staff Response: The proposal has been designed to meet this criterion.

l) Community appearance criteria. The general requirements outlined in this section are minimum aesthetic 
standards for all site developments, buildings, structures, or alterations within the corporate limits of the city, 
except single-family residences. However, additions to existing buildings and sites shall be subject to review by 
the development review official for a determination regarding submission to the planning and zoning board or 
historic resources preservation board for review. All site development, structures, buildings or alterations to site 
development, structures or buildings shall demonstrate proper design concepts, express honest design 
construction, be appropriate to surroundings, and meet the following community appearance criteria: 

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design,      and in general 
contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and 
high quality.

Staff Response: Criterion met.

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such as to 
cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially depreciate in appearance and 
value. 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 11

11

Staff Response: The materials to be used on the exterior will be durable. The structure will be built of block clad in 
stucco and tile. The railings and shade structures shall consist of either coasted aluminum or steel. Criterion met 

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, with code 
requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for the city, and with 
the criteria set forth herein. 

Staff Response: The proposed project is designed to be in harmony with the local built environment. Criterion met.

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable

Staff Response: Criterion met. 

Townhouse Standards

(1)  Front setback shall be ten (10) feet along North F Street and eighteen (18) along Lucerne Avenue with an open  
 porch permitted in a minimum of five (5) Feet of setback; 

Staff Response: Meets Criterion.

(2) Distance between townhouse structures shall be twenty (20) feet; however, distance between     
 double-stacked townhouse structures shall be thirty (30) feet;

Staff Response: The distance between the structures shall be about 32 feet. Meets criterion.

(3) Rear setback shall be twenty (20) feet with ten (10) feet for accessory structures;

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

(4) Townhouse structures shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) feet in overall length or six   
 (6) Units; 

Staff Response: Meets Criterion.

(5) The maximum number of attached townhouse units within a townhouse building fronting on 
 Federal Highway shall be four (4) units, unless a planned development district is approved;

Staff Response: This project does not front Federal Highway. Criterion does not apply

(6) No front door access from alleys when abutting single family residential use or district.

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program

The maximum allowable building height for the MU-East district is 30 feet.  However, the proposed site plan and 
architectural plans indicate 35’ for the height of the two proposed townhome buildings.  In order to be allowed to 
increase the height of the building, the applicant has applied for the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, which 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 12

12

allows an increase in height beyond two stories or an increase in floor area ratio (FAR) provided the applicant has 
additional improvements elsewhere on site that go above and beyond what is required by code. In addition, in 
order to benefit from the Sustainable Bonus Incentive, it requires that all stories above the second story, both the 
front façade and rear façade must be setback and additional distance beyond the minimum. In this instance, the 
front façade for the third story and above must have a front setback of height (8) to twelve (12) feet in addition to 
the minimum, which the revised development proposal complies with this requirement. As indicated on the 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program Application included with this submittal, the applicant is required to 
determine the total value of the required improvements and provide a description of the proposed improvements 
and the valuation of the same. 

According to Section B of the Sustainable Bonus Application, Based on a value multiplier of $5.00 per square foot, 
the total value of required improvements is $26,665.  

Multiply the Bonus Area by the Value Multiplier to determine the value of required improvements. 

5,333 square feet (to add a Third Floor) x $5.00/SF of Bonus Area= $26,665  

In addition, according to Section C of the Sustainable Bonus Application, the applicant is proposing the following 
community benefit:

 
On-Site Features & Improvements:
1. The project will be designed to achieve either Florida Green Building Council or ICC 700 National Green Building 
Standard certification: $13,333, which will require a performance bond in this amount.
2. Construction value of the addition of Luna Park Plaza open for use by the public and residents by moving the 
commercial building north by 14 feet and preserving 3 mature trees. Size of the plaza shall be 860 square feet, 
$21,500
3. Inclusion of 12 bike racks to encourage visits by non-motorized vehicles: $2,400
4. Six existing mature trees have been preserved in the site layout plan, $2,120. This feature cannot receive bonus 
credit because these trees would have to be replaced in kind and number when they are removed.   
Total Value of Community Benefit $ 37,233

Site Plan Review Team

The project was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team on March 14, 2016.  

Conclusion:

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional Land Use and, 
Major Site Plan requests.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district and surrounding 
areas, subject to compliance with staff proposed conditions of approval.

CONSEQUENT ACTION: 

The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision on the Conditional Land Use and Major Site Plan will be final. The staff 
recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Major Site Plan and Conditional Use to allow for the 
construction of 8 townhomes with a +/- 2,000 square foot commercial building.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 13

13

Staff recommends the following on the Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use requests:

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board APPROVE PZB Project# 16-01400001, Major Site Plan to 
allow for the construction of eight (8) townhomes  with a +/- 2,000 commercial building pursuant to Section 23.2-
30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs. The site currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future 
Land Use designation of Mixed Use – East (MU-E).       

Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board APPROVE PZB Project# 16-00500001, Conditional Land Use 
to allow for the construction of eight  (8) townhomes with a +/- 2,000 square foot commercial building. The site 
currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use – East 
(MU-E). This motion is pursuant to Section 23.2-29 and Section 23.4-13 of the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs).

POTENTIAL MOTION:

Should the Planning & Zoning Board concur with staff’s recommendation the following motions are 
recommended:

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-01400001: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT Project # 16-01400001, Major 
Site Plan to construct eight (8) townhomes pursuant to Section 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs. The site 
currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use – East 
(MU-E).   

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-00500001: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT Project # 16-00500001, 
Conditional Land Use to allow for the construction of 8 townhomes with a +/- 2,000 square foot commercial 
building. The site currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future Land Use designation of 
Mixed Use – East (MU-E). This motion is pursuant to Section 23.2-29 and Section 23.4-13 of the Land 
Development Regulations (LDRs); 



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 14

14

LOCATION MAP

Attachments: 
A. Conditions of Approval
B. Proposed Plans

Survey
Site Plan 
Architectural Plans
Photometric Plan
Landscape Plan

Preliminary Civil Plans



West Village Art Flats
Conditional Use Permit

Major Site Plan
Page 15

15



DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR
PZB CASE No. 16-01400001 and  PZB CASE No. 16-00500001

Date of Preparation: May 19, 2016
P&ZB Meeting Date: May 1, 2016
Applicant: West Village Art Flats
Location: 110 N F Street

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 16-01400001

Standard Conditions of Approval:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code. 

2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 
granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval.

3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied.

4. This approval is for a conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29 for a Conditional Use 
Permit approval to allow for the construction of a eight (8) townhomes and a +/- 2,000 square 
foot commercial building on a +/- 20,933 square foot parcel within the Mixed Use-East (MU-E)
zoning district at 110 North F Street.

5. This use must operate in compliance with all state and local laws that govern this use.

6. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 
to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.

Additional Conditions of Approval:

Planning and Zoning

1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall provide for adequate emergency 
vehicle access to the site.

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the landscape plan shall be consistent with the revised 
site plan.



PZB No. 16-01400001
PZB No. 16-00500001

110 North F Street
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit 

Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016
Page 2

Public Services:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all 
other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Services Construction 
Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual. 

2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied under 
jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) 
District’s Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City. 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management 
District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.  

4. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall remove and construct a new 5-foot 
wide sidewalk along the east side of North F Street from the southwest property corner to the northwest 
property corner in compliance with the Public Service Department’s specifications and Policy and 
Procedure Manual.

5. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall remove and construct new Type F 
curb and gutter along the east side of North F Street from the southwest property corner to the northwest 
property corner in compliance with the Public Services Department’s specifications.

6. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall construct a 1” mill and overlay along 
the eastern half of North F Street from the southwest property corner to the northwest property corner , 
from the centerline of the roadway to the east curb line in compliance with the Public Services 
Department’s specifications. 

7. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, (should the construction of off-site improvements not 
be feasible due to timing, future City planning, etc.) the applicant shall make a contribution to the City’s 
Construction Fund for the associated costs of those improvements to the associated right of way.

8. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, provide a signage and striping plan that illustrates the striping 
pattern necessary for vehicles entering and exiting the property.
9. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, construct off-site signage and striping improvements per 
the approved plan and in accordance with the construction standards of the Public Services Dept.



PZB No. 16-01400001
PZB No. 16-00500001

110 North F Street
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit 

Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016
Page 3

10. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, alleyway improvements consisting of a 1” mill and 
overlay at the alleyway approach at North F Street to the northeast property corner shall be constructed 
in accordance with the construction standards of the Public Services Dept.

11. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative 
from the Public Services Refuse and Recycling Division to confirm refuse enclosure location, accessibility 
and demand on property and that it is compatible with the requirements of the Department of Public 
Services. Refuse Division contact number is 561-533-7344.

12. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding 
off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and 
structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same 
condition as prior to construction.

13. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and 
indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, 
the applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with Bahia sod.

14. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the 
affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris collected as a result of construction activity.

Utilities – Electric

None

UTILITIES-WATER & SEWER

Prior to Building Permit application, the Preliminary Engineering Plans shall be amended as follows: 

1. Fire department connections must be within 100 feet of a fire hydrant. 

2. Provide a 15 foot utility easement around the proposed watermains and gravity sewer, except between 
proposed buildings “A” and “B” where 10 foot easement will be acceptable, and a 5 foot utility easement 
around proposed fire hydrants.

3. Provide fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test. 

4. Provide cross-section on each property line and grading to indicate site will maintain the runoff from a 
3 year - 1 day storm event. Perimeter swales may be required.

5. Provide geotechnical report on the determination of the hydraulic conductivity “K” value.



PZB No. 16-01400001
PZB No. 16-00500001

110 North F Street
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit 

Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016
Page 4

6. Prior to building permit issuance, reserved capacity fees for water and sewer must be paid in full in 
accordance with the current City Ordinance.

Palm Beach County Fire Department

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall satisfy the Water Supply for Fire-Flow 
Requirement.

Building Division

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall comply with all Building Division regulations 
of the City of Lake Worth as it relates to this development.    

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 16-00500001

Conditional Land Use

1. The proposed Luna Park Plaza shall remain open to the public and remain clear and clean of any 
trash or debris.

2. Any activities associated with the operation of the Luna Park Plaza shall emit no more than 65 
(db) decibels and at no time be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real 
property lines of the site. 

Approved by:

_________________________
Maxime Ducoste
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation





E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
/ R

E
T

A
IL

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

EXISTING ARMORY
ARTS BUILDING

BLDG A
(3) 3-Story

Townhouses

BLDG B
1 Story
Retail BLDG C

(5) 3-Story
Townhouse

SHARED
PARK /

GARDEN

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."

F
" 

ST
R

E
E

T

ALLEY (ASPHALT PAVED)ALLEY (SHELLROCK PAVED)

LUNA PARK

EXISTING CRA PHASE
1 ARTIST LOFTS

EXISTING CRA PHASE
1 ARTIST LOFTS

EXISTING LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL

BUILDING

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING

EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL

BUILDINGS

EXISTING
CONDOMINIUM

COMPLEX

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E

F
.E

.C
. C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PARKING LOT

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

CVR

Cover Sheet -
SPR

03-15-2016

RM

DE/REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

----
 1" = 40'-0"1 00 - Site Plan - Vicinity

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

03-15-2016

West Village Art Lofts
110 North "F" Street

Lake Worth, FL 33460 REG ARCHITECTS - INTERIORS - PLANNERS, INC.
Rick Gonzalez, AIA, President
Darrin Engel, Project manager
300 Clematis Street, West palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561-659-2383 / Fax: 561-659-5546

LAKE WORTH CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1
Lake Worth, FL 33460

NEIGHBORHOOD RENAISSANCE,  INC.
510 24th ST, Suite A
West Palm Beach, FL 33407

WAYNE VILLAVASO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, INC.
Wane Villavaso, President
268 Flamingo Dr.
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561 820-1566 / Fax: 561 833-6707

McLEOD, McCARTHY & ASSOCIATES
Todd McLeod, Vice President
1655 PB Lakes Blvd., Ste. 712
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561 689-9500 / Fax: 561 689-8080

OMN&J
Philip J. Rizzo, P.E. – Vice President, Project Manager
321 LA Kirksey Street, Suite 200
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561-835-9994

ELLIS CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
Ben Ellis, Project Manager
1106 North G Street, Ste. B
Lake Worth, FL  33460
Phone: 561 370-3300 / Fax: 561 370-3294

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

CIVIL ENGINEER

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

MEP, FIRE PROTECTION & PHOTOMETRICS

GREEN / LEED CONSULTING

CONSULTANTS

ARCHITECT

OWNER

LOCATION MAP

LOCATED IN THE CITY
OF LAKE WORTH

1-95

LUCERNE AVE

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

IN
TR

AC
O

A
ST

AL
W

A
TE

RW
AY

A
TL

A
NT

IC
 O

C
EA

N

N
 F

ED
ER

A
L 

HW
Y

10th AVE N

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

PROJECT SITE
LUCERNE AVE

FE
C 

RA
IL

R
O

A
D

LAKE AVE

N
 F

 S
TR

EE
T 2ND AVE N

ARMORY ART
ANNEX

LAKE WORTH
CITY HALL

PHASE 1
PHASE

2

VICINITY MAP

TBD
X
X
X
Phone: 561 000-0000 / Fax: 561 000-0000

SHEET INDEX - SITE PLAN REVIEW

Sheet Number Sheet Name
A-Cover Sheet
CVR Cover Sheet - SPR
B-Civil
1 of 8 Paving, Grading, & Drainage Plan
2 of 8 Paving, Grading, & Drainage Details
3 of 8 Paving, Grading, & Drainage Details
4 of 8 Water & Wastewater Plan
5 of 8 Sanitary Sewer Details
6 of 8 Ssanitary Sewer Details
7 of 8 Water Details

8 of 8 Water Details
C-Landscape Design
L-1 Landscape Plan
L-2 Planting Details
L-3 Planting Specifications
E-Architectural
A-0.01 Site Plan
A-0.01Ex Site Plan Existing Conditions
A-0.10 Overall Plan - Retail & Studio Level
A-0.20 Overall Plan - Living Level
A-0.30 Overall Plan - Sleeping Level
A-0.40 Overall Plan - Roof Plan
A-3.00 Building Elevations
A-3.01 Building Elevations
A-3.02 Elevations - Color and Shade
A-3.03 Building Materials & Colors
G-Electrical
ES-1 Site Lighting

A VIEW FROM LUCERNE AVENUE AND "F" STREET LOOKING NORTH EAST

A VIEW FROM ON LUCERNE AVENUE BY FEC R.R. TRACKS LOOKING NORTH WEST

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision



REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.0

Existing
Conditions

Survey

03-15-2016

PM Survey
PM Survey

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

Designer

SURVEY BY
OTHERS

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



















TYP.

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
/ R

ET
A

IL
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

(3)
3-Story

Townhouses

RETAIL

MAILBOX

A/C 
GROUND
UNIT, TYP.

PROPOSED LINE OF
BALCONIES O.H.,

(5)
3-Story

Townhouse

N
."

F"
 S

TR
EE

T

ALLEY

BIKE RACKS  W/
GRAVEL BELOW

LUNA 
PARK

HYM
2

COC
4

JAS
84

RAP
33

VBS
5JAS

84

COC
5

JAS
65

COC
5

VBS
5

RAP
33

HYM
4

VBS
33

LEG
145

CRO1
7

COC
7

COC
7

VBS
7

CRO1
7

CRO1
7

CRO1
7

COC
48

COC
7

LEG
50

VBS
5

HYM
4

COC
7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

HYM
2

RAP
40

AC

AC

AC

AC AC AC AC AC

VBS
21

QV-M
2

RAP
10

RAP
5

5' FDOT
EASEMENT

PROPOSED LINE OF
BALCONIES O.H.,
TYP.

GRAVEL
(TYP)

TRASH/RECYCLING
CART HOLDING PAD

COC
10

IA-M
1

CF-M
6

TP-M
6

SHARED
PARK /GARDEN

EXISTING 
ESMT.

HYM
2

HYM
4

VBS
31

RAP
16

LEG
21

IA
4

LEG
21

COC
40

RAP
17

LEG
21

NOD
5

NOD
5

RAP
10

CES
7

LEG
14

LEG
16

LEG
14

IA
3

RAP
14

COC
34

CF-M
3

RAP
36

CG
3

HYM
4

RAP
33

LEG
14

LEG
14

LEG
14

LEG
14

LEG
14

HYM
4

JAS
385

CG
2

IA
3

Wayne
Villavaso
Landscape
Architecture,
Incorporated

Copyright 2016 By Wayne Villavaso
Landscape Architecture, Inc. This
drawing is provided for
informational purposes only, unless
signed and sealed by a Professional
Landscape Architect representing
Wayne Villavaso Landscape
Architecture, Inc.

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

CAD FILE:

JOB NO.

SHEET

REVISIONS

Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

268 Flamingo Drive
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401

PH. (561) 820-1566
FX. (561) 833-6707

Reg.  FL.,  N.C.,  N.Y.

WEV

WEV

WEV

3/9/16

AS SHOWN

L1

21533W
ES

T 
V

IL
LA

G
E 

A
R

T 
LO

FT
S

3/14/16 REG/LW

 LANDSCAPE PLANThese plans are based on tree survey rec'd. via e-mail
from REG, site plan from REG rec'd via e-mail on
3/14/16, and MMA civil plan dated 2/8/16.

N

W
E

ST
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
A

R
T

 L
O

FT
S

11
0 

N
or

th
 "

F"
 S

tre
et

La
ke

 W
or

th
, F

L 
33

46
0

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

PRESERVE

Existing Vegetation Inventory
NO. COMMON NAME SIZE ACTIONBOTANICAL NAME

PRESERVE
PRESERVE
PRESERVE
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED
PRESERVE
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED
PRESERVE
PRESERVE
PRESERVE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

SWIETENIA MAHAGONI 20"  CAL
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA OAK

QUERCUS VIRGINIANA OAK

MAHOGANY
XXX

15"  CAL
15"  CAL
12"  CAL
9"    CAL
16"  CAL
6"    CAL.
15"  CAL
15"  CAL
10"  CAL
7"    CAL
9"    CALCONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  SILVER BUTTONWOOD

CONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  SILVER BUTTONWOOD
CONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  SILVER BUTTONWOOD

SWIETENIA MAHAGONI MAHOGANY
SWIETENIA MAHAGONI MAHOGANY
SABAL PALMETTO SABAL PALM
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA OAK
SWEITENIA MAHOGANY MAHOGANY

BUCIDA BUCERAS BLACK OLVE

EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

TREE SYMBOL LEGEND

*

*

*
*

*

* FLORIDA NATIVE SPECIES
MODERATELY DROUGHT TOLERANT SPECIES

STREET TREE REQUIREMENTS 
IN MU-E DISTRICT

REQUIRED
1 TREE/25' L.F.=11 T

PROPOSED
12 TREES

NORTH F STREET (134.72' FRONTAGE) 5 TREES 5 TREES
LUCERNE AVENUE (154.95' FRONTAGE) 6 TREES 6 TREES

PROPOSED USE RETAIL AND TOWNHOUSE

LAND USE
DESIGNATION

P (PUBLIC)

FUTURE LAND USE PROPOSED

MU-E MIXED -USE
(EAST)

 ADJACENT TO:
MU-E: Mixed-Use-East  (Southwest, East, & West)
MDR: Medium Density Residential (North)
AMU: Artisan Mixed-Use  (Northeast)

P (PUBLIC)

EXISTING

ADJACENT
LAND USE
DESIGNATION

PROS: Public Recreation & Open Space (South)

TOTAL SITE ACRES: .4649 ACRES
SQUARE FEET SITE AREA: 20,933 SF

NATIVE STREET TREES 50% MIN.
11 TREES5 TREES

(INCL. EX. TREES #2,3,4)
& 3 PROPOSED TREES)

MITIGATED TREES 18 TREES

Landscape Tabulation

BUCIDA BUCERAS BLACK OLVE

*

3" D.B.H.

M

18 TREES @ 3" D.B.H.

M MITIGATED TREES AT 3" D.B.H.

*M

M

M

MINIMUM TREE & SHRUB SIZES TO MEET MINIMUM LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

TREES - 12' HT. X 6' SPR. 4' CLEAR TRUNK  3" CAL. @ 4.5' HT. 
PALMS - 12' HT.  6' G.W. @ TIME OF PLANTING 
HEDGES - 24" HT. @ TIME OF PLANTING

3/14/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. 6" CI WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED TIP COCOPLUM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRYSOBALANUS ICACO 'RED TIP' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETRA CROTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CODIAEUM VAR. 'PETRA'  

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRO1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAB & GRANULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FERTILIZER  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN GIANT LIRIOPE   

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIRIOPE MUSCARI 'EVERGREEN GIANT'  

AutoCAD SHX Text
372

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEG

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL., 10 BIBS PER POT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-14" HT., 15" O.C., FULL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plant and Materials List

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDIAN HAWTHORN   

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAPHIOLEPIS INDICA  

AutoCAD SHX Text
247

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 14" HT. X 14" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDANKWA VIBURNUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIBURNUM SUSPENSUM   

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
VBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIDER LILY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYMENOCALLIS LATIFOLIA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL PLANTS, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST PALATKA HOLLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILEX X ATTENTUATA 'EAST PALATKA'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
IA

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 5' C.T., 3" D.B.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE TRUNK (9 FEMALE-1 MALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 'HIGH RISE'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH RISE LIVE OAK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
QV-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 3" DBH., 5' C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILVER BUTTONWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
CES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUL3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHREDDED EUCALYPTUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLDEN SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASSIA FISTULA

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
CF-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 3" CAL. D.B.H.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' C.T., FULL BRANCHING PATTERNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWARF SALMON OLEANDER   

AutoCAD SHX Text
NERIUM OLEANDER 'PETITE SALMON'   

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 15" HT. X 15" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWARF CONFEDERATE JASMINE   

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACHELOSPERMUM ASIAT. 'MINIMA'   

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL., 6" HT. X 10" SPR., 12" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. FLORIDA FRIENDLY LANDSCAPING PRINCIPLES SHALL BE UTILIZED IN LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION DESIGN, INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE. 2.  ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM, AUTOMATICALLY OPERATED, AND EQUIPPED WITH A RAIN SWITCH, TO PROVIDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF ALL PLANT MATERIALS TO BE MAINTAINED.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE GEIGER TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORDIA SEBESTENA

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CG

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR.,3" CAL. @4.5'  5' C.T.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST PALATKA HOLLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILEX X ATTENTUATA 'EAST PALATKA'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
IA-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 5' C.T., 3" D.B.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE TRUNK (9 FEMALE-1 MALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TABEBUIA HETEROPHYLLA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINK TRUMPET TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 3" CAL. D.B.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 C.T., SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAHIA SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASPALUM NOTATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRESH SOLID SOD



Wayne
Villavaso
Landscape
Architecture,
Incorporated

Copyright 2016 By Wayne Villavaso
Landscape Architecture, Inc. This
drawing is provided for
informational purposes only, unless
signed and sealed by a Professional
Landscape Architect representing
Wayne Villavaso Landscape
Architecture, Inc.

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

CAD FILE:

JOB NO.

SHEET

REVISIONS

Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

268 Flamingo Drive
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401

PH. (561) 820-1566
FX. (561) 833-6707

Reg.  FL.,  N.C.,  N.Y.

WEV

WEV

WEV

2/12/2016

AS SHOWN

L2

21533W
ES

T 
V

IL
LA

G
E 

A
R

T 
LO

FT
S

W
E

ST
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
A

R
T

 L
O

FT
S

11
0 

N
or

th
 "

F"
 S

tre
et

La
ke

 W
or

th
, F

L 
33

46
0

3/14/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
    UP TO 2.5" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTIIZLER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" x 2" x 7' WOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 24" BELOW GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,  WRAPPED ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#12  GALV. GUY WIRES (MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST BRANCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH + 3" IN GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB & GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB WILL NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL/LEVEL SOIL SO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX IN SHRUB BEDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER BEDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. DEPTH OF CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL TO BE POT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS,  CONNECTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 4"x 10'  WOOD BRACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ADJUST BRACE LENGTH TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIT PALM)   POUNDED INTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND 24". TOENAILED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
COCONUT PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE PALM FRONDS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE COCONUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET PALMS TO LEAN AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFIED IN  PLAN OR AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTED  BY  LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARY. SEE PLAN FOR HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-2"x 4"x 12" WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI-TRUNK TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" x 2" x 8' WOOD STAKES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 24" BELOW GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AROUND FIRST BRANCHES OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,   W/ #12-GALV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER,  STRONGEST TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3"  MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN. 3  PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
    2.5" CAL. TO 4.5" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 4"x 4' WOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 36" BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE OR YELLOW SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
#12  GALV. GUY WIRES (MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,  WRAPPED ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALV. TURNBUCKLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPE ON EACH WIRE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST BRANCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 24" BELOW GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 2"x 8' WOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK (MIN. 3 PER TREE.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,   W/ #12-GALV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AROUND FIRST BRANCHES OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI-TRUNK PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT 180%%d. ATTACHED IN 2-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS TO TRUNK WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP AT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH POINT OF SPLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOT BALL LEVEL WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR ALL SUCKERS PRIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-2"x 2"x 8' SPLINTS EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO SHIPPING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE PALM FRONDS BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%. TIE UP  AND SPLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADS PRIOR TO SHIPPING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ 100% SAND AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SABAL PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE PALM FRONDS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARY. SEE PLAN FOR HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-2"x 4"x 12" WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS,  CONNECTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ALL MATURE LEAVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPLANTING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIOR TO SHIPPING/

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCARS ON TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ALL BURN MARKS, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED INTO GROUND 24".

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOENAILED TO BATTENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN. 3 PER PALM.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 4"x 8' WOOD BRACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROYAL PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRY WOOD HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH PALM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOENAIL TO BATTENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED INTO GROUND 24".

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"x 4"x 10'  WOOD BRACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN. 4 PER PALM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3"  MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: INSTALL 2 BUBBLERS ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO FIT PALM)   

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS,  CONNECTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-2"x 4"x 12" WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARY. SEE PLAN FOR G.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREY WOOD REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE MIN # PALM FRONDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENT.



PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

Wayne
Villavaso
Landscape
Architecture,
Incorporated

Copyright 2016 By Wayne Villavaso
Landscape Architecture, Inc. This
drawing is provided for
informational purposes only, unless
signed and sealed by a Professional
Landscape Architect representing
Wayne Villavaso Landscape
Architecture, Inc.

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

CAD FILE:

JOB NO.

SHEET

REVISIONS

Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

268 Flamingo Drive
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401

PH. (561) 820-1566
FX. (561) 833-6707

Reg.  FL.,  N.C.,  N.Y.

WEV

WEV

WEV

2/12/2016

AS SHOWN

L3

21533W
ES

T 
V

IL
LA

G
E 

A
R

T 
LO

FT
S

W
E

ST
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
A

R
T

 L
O

FT
S

11
0 

N
or

th
 "

F"
 S

tre
et

La
ke

 W
or

th
, F

L 
33

46
0

3/14/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. Container Grown Plants: Plants grown in containers will be accepted as "B & B", providing that all other specified requirements are met.  Container grown plants shall meet plant sizes as specified on the plant list and on the Drawings, and shall not be governed by container sizes. Minimum root balls of container grown material shall be no more than 25% less proportionately in size than that stated in "Grades & Standards" for nursery plants. These plants shall have been grown in the container for a maximum of two years prior to installation and shall exhibit a fully developed root system when removed from the container. B. Protection During Transporting: All plant material shall be protected from possible bark injury on breakage of branches.  All plants transported by open trucks shall be adequately covered to prevent windburn, drying, or damage to plants. C. Protection After Delivery: Plants which cannot be planted immediately on delivery to the site shall be covered with moist soil, mulch, or other protection from drying by wind and/or sun exposure.  All plants shall be watered as necessary until planted.  Plant storage period shall not exceed forty-eight (48) hours. D. Protection of Palms (If Applicable): Only a minimum of fronds shall be removed from the crown of the palm trees to facilitate moving and handling, except for "Hurricane Cut" Sabal Palms, if specified. E. Clear trunk shall be as specified after the minimum of fronds have been removed. Clear trunk shall be measured from the top of root ball to where the mature trunk joins the immature or green portions of the trunk.  All palms shall have a sufficient ball size for rapid growth and acclimation. All palm trunks shall straight and true unless otherwise specified, and be free of damage and scars. Sabal Palms shall have no burn marks on trunks.  Sabal Palm designated to have fronds at installation shall be tied with a biodegradable twine to be left in place until the tree is well established at which time the Contractor is to remove the twine if necessary. F. Protection During Planting: Trees and palms moved by chain, strap, winch, or crane shall be thoroughly protected from chain marks, girdling or bark slippage by means of burlap, wood battens or other approved methods. Trees and palms with damaged or girdled trunks will be rejected and will be replaced as per specified prior to final acceptance by the Owner/Landscape Architect. 3.2 PLANTING OPERATIONS A. Layout:  Location for plants and outline of areas to be planted are indicated on the Drawings.  All plant locations shall be staked in the field by the Contractor, to the satisfaction of the Landscape Architect.  Where construction or utilities below ground or overhead are encountered, or where changes have been made in the construction, necessary adjustments will be approved by the Landscape Architect. B. Soil Preparation: Apply two (2) applications of an approved pre-planting environmentally safe systemic herbicide.  Soil used shall be as herein before specified under "Planting Soil", thoroughly mixed with peat to produce 33 % peat by volume.  The soil should be in a relatively dry state and mixed thoroughly by hand or rotary mixer.  All planting areas shall be treated with an approved pre-emergent environmentally safe herbicide, according to the manufacturer's specifications. All chemicals used are subject to safe environmental applications based on industry standards by licensed professionals using all safety precautions recommended.   C. Excavation for Planting: Excavation of plant pits shall be circular in outline and shall extend to the required subgrades as specified hereunder.  The minimum depth of plant pits specified below shall be measured from the finish grade.  Mass planting beds shall be stripped of all vegetation prior to planting.  Use acceptable excess excavated topsoil to form 6" height 3' diameter watering berms around plants; use 25% of the excavated material and mix with topsoil for Backfill.  Remove all excess material to dump site as directed by Owner. If an on site dump area has not been designated by the Owner, remove excess material off-site. Excavated material in excess of the 6" temporary water berm above is not to mounded around the base of each plant.  The 6" water berm material is to be removed from site and the resulting area is to be mulched/sodded as required after the transplant acclimation period is complete to form a 3' diameter circular mulch ring centered around the base of the plant. D. Balled and Burlapped Plants: After final pit preparation, loosen burlap wrapping and fold burlap down exposing the top 1/3 of the root ball, leaving the ball unbroken.  Remove excessive amount of burlap to eliminate voids which may be caused upon decomposition. Remove all twine, rope, wire, etc., at the base of trunk upon installation to prevent the choking or girdling of the root system as the plant matures. E. Container Grown Plants: Container grown plants shall, when delivered, have sufficient growth to hold earth intact when removed from container and shall not be root bound.  Plant pits for container materials shall be formed flat on the bottom and compacted to avoid air pockets at the bottom of root balls and container shall be removed carefully to prevent damage to plant or root system. Plants with circular root systems will not be accepted and will be replaced by Contractor prior to final acceptance. F. Testing for Drainage: Test fill all tree pits with water before planting to assure proper drainage percolation is available.  Pits which are found not to be adequately draining shall be excavated to a depth sufficient for drainage and backfilling with gravel or crushed rock.  No allowances will be made for lost plants due to improper drainage. G. Pit Sizes: Minimum diameter (width) and depth of planting pits for balled and burlapped, and container grown plants, shall be as follows: 1. Diameter - Trees & Palms:  18"-24" greater than diameter of ball or spread of roots. 2. Diameter - Shrubs:  8"-12" greater than diameter of ball or spread of roots. 3. Depth - Trees and Palms: The center of each pit shall be dug to the depth of the root ball. The root ball shall sit tilled to existing subgrade.* The perimeter of each pit shall be 6" greater than depth of ball to provide 6" of planting soil backfill to enhance downward growth of roots. Also see 3.2 I & 3.2 J. * (If subgrade soils at the bottom of each pit are detrimental to plant growth, each pit is to be dug 6" deeper than root balls and the root ball is to sit on 6" of properly compacted specified planting soil mix to prevent settling.) 4. Depth - Shrubs: The center of each pit shall be dug to the depth of the root ball. The root ball shall sit on tilled existing subgrade.* The perimeter of each pit shall be 4" greater in depth than the root ball to provide 4" of planting soil backfill to enhance downward root growth.* Also see 4.I. 5. Depth - Vine Ground covers: Pits shall conform to accepted nursery practice for the particular species and equal the plant pot depth plus three (3) inches. H. Backfilling:  When the plant pit has been excavated as specified above and the plant has been set, the pit shall be backfilled with planting soil at the following minimum rates:    One-quarter cubic yard per one (1) tree    One cubic yard per twenty-five (25) - 7G (lerio cans / equal)    One cubic yard per fifty (50) - 3G shrubs     One cubic yard per one hundred (100) - 1G (ground covers, etc.) I. Setting Trees and Shrubs: Unless otherwise specified, all trees and shrubs shall be planted in pits, centered, and set on existing tilled subgrade soil* to such depths that the finished grade level of the plant shall be the same as that at which the plant was grown.  They shall be planted upright and faced to give the best appearance or relationship to adjacent structures.  No burlap shall be pulled out from under the balls and the burlap shall be folded down to expose the top 1/3 of ball.  Platforms, wire, and surplus binding from top and sides of the balls, shall be removed.  All broken or frayed roots shall be cut off cleanly. Planting Soil mix (1/3 clean sand, 1/3 peat, 1/3 topsoil) shall be placed and compacted thoroughly, avoiding injury and shall be settled by watering.  No filling around trunks will be permitted.  After the ground settles, additional soil shall be filled in the level of the finished grade allowing for three inches (3") of mulch after the granular fertilizer has been applied. All air pockets will be removed by alternately watering and adding soil as required. Form a shallow saucer around each plant by placing a berm of soil along the edge of the plant pit.  This berm shall be six inches (6") high for all trees and three inches (3") high for all shrubs. J. Setting Palms: All palms shall be planted in pits, centered, and set on existing tilled subgrade soil* to such depths that the finished grade level of the palm is the same as it was grown. They shall be planted upright (unless specified to lean), and faced to give the best appearance or relationship to adjacent structures or views. All broken or frayed roots shall be cut off cleanly. Except for Sabal Palms which are to be backfilled with sand, thoroughly washed in during planting operations, all palms shall be backfilled with planting soil mix of 1/3 clean sand, 1/3 peat, 1/3 topsoil, placed and compacted thoroughly, avoiding injury and shall be settled by watering. After settling, additional planting soil shall be used to fill in to finished grade allowing three inches (3") for mulch to be applied after granular fertilizer has been applied. A shallow saucer shall be formed around each palm by placing a berm of soil along the edge of each planting pit. This berm is to be a minimum of six (6") inches high. K. Fertilizing:  When setting trees, palms and shrubs placed in each plant hole with Agriform Planting Tablets, 20-10-5 formula, 21 gram, according to the following: Tablets application: 1 gallon container plant ......................................1 tablet 2 - 3 gallon container plant ..............................2 tablets 7 -15 gallon container plant.................................4 tablets B & B Shrubs and Trees.....................................1 tablet for every 20" around circumference of root ball above middle of ball. Granular application: Application of granular fertilizer by LESCO will be as per LESCO application rate specifications. Correct Placement of Tablets: Position the plant in the hole and backfill no higher than halfway up the root ball.  Place the recommended number of tablets evenly spaced around the perimeter of, and immediately adjacent to, the root ball at the depth which is between the middle and the bottom of the root ball.  Complete backfilling as described above under setting trees, palms and shrubs.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 02490 LANDSCAPE AND SOD   PART 1 - GENERAL 1.1 DESCRIPTION OF WORK A. The work includes furnishing all plants, materials, equipment, and labor necessary for the procurement and installation of plant and materials indicated on the drawing(s); and / or in the specifications. 1.2 RELATED SECTIONS A. Section 02110 - Site Clearing B. Section 02200 - Earthwork C. Section 02810 - Exterior Irrigation Work  1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE A. The landscape contractor is to be regularly engaged in the installation of living plant material. Labor crews shall be controlled and directed by a landscape foreman well versed in landscape installation, plant materials, reading blueprints and coordination between the job and nursery.  The landscape contractor shall carry any necessary insurance and protect the Owner against all liabilities claims or demands for injuries or damage to any person or property growing out of the performance of the work under this contract and all of his workers shall be covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance. B. The landscape contractor and irrigation contractor must coordinate scheduling and layout prior to commencement of material installation. If necessary, the landscape contractor and irrigation contractor may agree to minor adjustments in sprinkler layout, head type or quantity, in response to specific plant needs.  The landscape architect must be notified 48 hours prior to commencing field changes in order to review and approve of any such changes. PART 2 - PRODUCTS 2.1 PLANT MATERIAL A. All plant materials shall be nursery grown unless otherwise noted.  Abbreviations on plant list: B. Quality and Size: Plants shall have a habit of growth that is normal for the species and shall be healthy, vigorous and equal or exceed the measurements specified in the plant list, which are the minimum acceptable sizes.  Plants shall be measured before pruning with branches in normal position.  Any necessary pruning shall be done at the time of planting.  Requirements for measurements, branching, grading, quality, balling and burlapping of plants in the plant list generally follow the code of standards currently recommended by the American Association of Nursery Stock.  In all cases, plant materials shall be Florida Grade No. 1 or better (as defined by the February, 1998 edition of Grades and Standards).  Plants that meet the requirements specified, but do not have normal balance of heights and spread typical for the respective plant, shall not be accepted.  All plants shall be free of weeds or any other objectionable vegetation. All trees to have a single main leader, unless specified otherwise. C. Quantities:  All quantities indicated on the plant list are intended as a guide for the bidders and does not relieve the bidder of his responsibility to do a comprehensive plant take off.  If a discrepancy occurs between the bidder's take off and the plant list quantity, the Landscape Architect is to be notified for clarification prior to the submittal of bid. D. Substitution:  Plant substitution requests by the Contractor will be considered by the Landscape Architect only upon submittal of conclusive proof that any plant is not obtainable in the type and size specified.  The Landscape Architect shall determine the nearest equivalent replacement in an obtainable size and variety.  The unit price of the substitute item shall not exceed the bid item replaced, without approval of the Owner. E. Sabal Palms:  1. Hurricane cut: All Sabal Palms, if designated on plant list to be hurricane cut, shall be dug and have all fronds removed as standard to good horticultural practices, within 24 hours or transporting to site or transplanting on site. 2: Sabal Palms with fronds: All Sabal Palms, if designated on plant list to be installed with fronds, shall have the palm head trimmed up and have a minimum of seven (7) fronds per head. See specification 3.2,E. 2.2 COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER A. Commercial granular fertilizer shall be from LESCO ph.(561) 848-7122 as follows: 12-2-14 for ornamental trees, palms, shrubs and groundcover. Fertilizer will contain nitrogen, phosphoric acid and potash available plant food by weight.  At least 70% percent of the nitrogen in the fertilizer shall be slow-release.  Fertilizer shall be delivered to the site unopened in original containers, each bearing the manufacturer's guaranteed analysis.  Any fertilizer that becomes caked or otherwise damaged shall not be acceptable. Fertilizer shall be applied at the rate of 3 1/2 to 7 pounds per 1,000 sq. ft. to planting beds.  Use a rotary spreader, chest spreader, or hand application method to apply the fertilizer.  For new plantings, the fertilizer should be applied to the top of the soil around the plants after planting and before mulch is layed.  For trees and larger shrubs, apply one pound of fertilizer per inch of trunk diameter.  Spread evenly on the ground around the plant from the outer edge of the leaves inward to the trunk, or 1 to 1 1/2 pounds of fertilizer per 100 sq. ft. of ornamental bed area.  Apply the fertilizer to dry foliage and water in soon after application.  Wash or brush off walks and painted surfaces following application to avoid discoloration.  B. Planting tablets shall be tightly compressed, long lasting, slow release Agriform fertilizer tablets weighing 21 grams, with a potential acidity of not more than 5% by weight and having an analysis of  20-10-5, respectively. 2.3 PEAT A. Peat shall be horticultural peat composed of not less than 60% decomposed organic matter by weights, on any oven-dried basin.  Peat shall be delivered to the site in a workable condition free from lumps. 2.4 PLANTING SOIL A. Planting soil shall be 1/3 clean sand, 1/3 peat, 1/3 topsoil (by volume).  Planting soil shall be free of clay, stones, plants, roots, and other foreign materials which might be a hindrance to planting operations or be detrimental to good plant growth.  Soil shall be delivered in a loose friable condition and applied in accordance with the Planting Specifications. 2.5 MULCH A. Fibrous Mulch: All mulch material shall be a fibrous, non-floating, shredded Grade 'A' Eucalyptus mulch or as per plant and materials list on plans if listed differently, installed 3" deep (prior to compacting), and moistened at installation to prevent wind dispersement. B. Mulches shall not contain sticks larger that 1/2 inch in diameter or 3" long, stones, or other foreign material that will prevent the eventual decay of the mulch necessary for its complete effectiveness. 2.6 WATER A. Water for planting will be available at the site and will be provided by the Owner.  Landscape Contractor shall not assume that the irrigation system will be operational at the time of planting.  It is the responsibility of the Landscape Contractor to provide all the required water necessary to maintain the plant material in a healthy growing condition.  The watering may include deep watering of trees and the watering of shrub and ground cover areas.  Any plant materials that die or that are not in a healthy growing condition due to lack of water shall be replaced at no addition cost to the Owner. B. If water is not available on site, the Landscape Contractor will coordinate with the owner to determine who will provide the water. The Landscape Contractor will apply the water to all planting areas using a water truck. (Note: Landscape Contractor shall comply with all State, County & Municipal codes for traffic safety, etc.) It is the responsibility of the Landscape Contractor to apply all the required water necessary to maintain the plant material in a healthy growing condition. The watering includes deep watering of trees, palms, shrubs, ground covers and sod. Any plant material that die or that are not in a healthy growing condition due to lack of water shall be replaced at no additional cost to Owner. Minimum watering schedule for the first year by watering truck is: three(3) times per week for months 1 & 2, two(2) times per week for month 3 through month 12. NOTE: Contractor is to observe all code restrictions, if applicable, pertaining to watering of new plantings and advise the Owner/Landscape Architect of  any concerns for the plant material in advance. PART 3 - EXECUTION 3.1 PROTECTION OF PLANTS: A. Root Protection: 1. Balled and Burlapped Plants: Plants designated "B & B" (balled and burlap) shall be dug with firm natural balls of earth of sufficient diameter and depth to encompass to fibrous and feeding root system, necessary for full recovery of plant.  Balls shall be firmly wrapped with natural burlap or similar materials and bound with twine, cord, or wire mesh.  All collected plants shall be balled and burlap.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L. Pruning: Remove dead and broken branches from all plant material.  Prune to retain typical growth habit of individual species with as much height and spread as is practical.  Make all pruning cuts with a sharp instrument flush with trunk or adjacent branch, in such a manner as to ensure elimination of stubs.  "Head back" cuts, right angle to line of growth, will not be permitted and trees will not be poled or topped.  Paint all cuts 1/2" in diameter and larger with approved waterproof antiseptic tree paint and remove trimmings from site. Trees and palms incorrectly pruned will be rejected. M. Guying and Staking:     1. Guy all large trees 1" to 4 1/2" in caliper in three (3) directions with double strands of No. 12 galvanized wire attached to approved wood braces equally spaced and driven below grade per details.  When securing wires to trees, cover all wires which may come in contact with any part of tree with new 2-ply reinforced rubber or plastic hose of 3/4" in diameter or greater.  Place guys not less than 1/3 of the heights of tree above finished grade and above first substantial branches. All hoses shall be interlocked around tree trunk.  Place anchors so that guys are equally spaced. 2. Guy all SMALL TREES (less then 2 1/2" in caliper) as indicated above and stake with three (3) - 2" x 2" x 7' wood braces, equally spaced, 18" to 24" from trunk, pounded 24" below grade. 3. Guy all MEDIUM TREES (2 1/2" to 4 1/2" in caliper) as addressed above and stake with 3-2" x 4" x 8' wood braces, equally spaced around tree, pounded 36" below grade. Each guy wire shall angle from tree at a 45' angles to horizontal.  Keep guys tight until project completion by the use of a galv. steel turnbuckle placed midway between trunk and ground. Each wire shall have a yellow or white surveyor's tape located just above the turnbuckle. Each wood braced to have a 1/2" notch and the guy wire wrapped around the brace 3 times at the notch to prevent slipping. N. In staking palms and large broadleaf trees (4 3/4" caliper and up) no nails or other fasteners will directly penetrate the trunks.  Wood 2 x 4 battens, 12 inches (12") long, separated by a minimum of five (5) layers of burlap can be attached to the trunk of the palms/trees with metal banding.  Stakes can only be nailed to the wooden battens.  Stakes are to be sized according to to the size, weight, and exposure of the tree/palm with a minimum of 2 x 4's up to 6 x 6's or greater members as required. Stakes are to be removed by the Contractor when appropriate after maintenance period is complete subject species, root formation, and the Contractor's acceptance of the stability of  tree/palm. All trees and palms which lean or fall during the guarantee period will be straightened and properly reset at no charge to the Owner. O. Mulching:  All trees and shrub beds shall be mulched immediately after planting, to a three inch (3") depth, with the mulch as specied in the plant and materials list or as per these specifications.  Prevent wind displacement of mulch by thoroughly wetting the mulch down. P. Excess Excavated Soil: Excess excavated soil shall be disposed of off site by the Contractor at no additional expense to the Owner. If the excavated soil is clean and free of debris, it may be used for other on site earthwork if needed, unless specified otherwise. See 2.B. 3.3 SOD and SEED (When Applicable) A. Soil:  The Contractor shall submit a unit price per cubic yard for the supply and distribution of planting soil as herein before specified, to be applied at a compacted depth of one inch (1") to all areas receiving sod.  (The use of this item in the Contract shall be at the discretion of the Landscape Architect after evaluation of the existing soil on the site.)  Payment for this item will be determined by a square foot in place measurement of the installed sod area after sod installation is complete, multiplied by the specified depth of one inch (1"), to determine cubic yards of soil used. B. Grades:  It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to finish (fine) grade all landscape areas, eliminating all bumps, depressions, sticks, stones and other debris to the satisfaction of the Landscape Architect, prior to the application of sod.  If supplemental topsoil is to be spread, no sod shall be laid until the depth of this soil has been approved. C. The sod shall be as called for on the Landscape Drawings.  Sod shall be of firm tough texture having a compact growth of grass with good root development, and shall contain only the species of grasses specified, and no weeds or any other objectionable vegetation.  The soil embedded in the sod shall be 2" of good earth, free from stones and debris and all sod shall be free from fungus, vermin and other diseases. D. Before being cut and lifted, the sod shall have been mowed at least three times with a lawn mover, with the final mowing not more than seven (7) days before the sod is cut.  The sod shall be carefully cut into uniform dimensions. E. Solid sod shall be laid by the Contractor with closely abutting joints with a tamped or rolled, even surface.  It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to bring the sod edge in a neat, clean manner in straight lines or smooth radii as per plans to the edge of all paving, buildings, trees, palms, shrubs, etc. and bed areas or mulch rings. Sod installation, if subcontracted, is to be supervised by the Contractor to insure proper laying and proper bed lines per plans. Improper sod installations will be removed and relaid as necessary. Sod is to be "cut-in" to match the elevation of adjacent areas to develop a finished appearance and to avoid unevenness or tripping hazards. If, in the opinion of the Landscape Architect, top-dressing is necessary after rolling, clean sand will be evenly applied over the entire surface and thoroughly washed in at no additional cost to the Owner. F. Seed (if applicable) 1. Landscape Contractor shall remove all rocks larger than one inch (1") in dia. and all vegetation from the areas to be seeded, scarify the area, then apply 10-10-10 fertilizer at a rate of 500 lbs. per acre. 2. Application: Argentine Bahia grass seed shall be applied at a rate of 80 lbs. per acre, mixed with common Hulled Bermuda Seed - 20 lbs. per acre, and 30 lbs. per acre of suitable cover crop (millet seed or winter rye seed) depending upon the season of installation. 3. Roll immediately after seeding with a minimum 500-pound roller avoiding damage to site utilities and improvements by surveying and marking them as necessary. Then apply straw mulch at a rate of 2.5 tons per acre. 4. Apply approved fertilizer at the rate of 150 pounds per acre, 45 days after seeding. 3.4 CLEAN UP A. Any soil, peat or similar material which has been brought onto any paved areas shall be removed promptly keeping these areas clean as the work progresses.  Upon completion of the planting, all excess soil, stones and debris which has not been previously cleaned up shall be removed from the site. 3.5 MAINTENANCE A. Maintenance shall begin immediately after each plant is planted and shall continue during installation and until all planting has passed final inspection and acceptance.  Maintenance shall include watering, weeding, cultivating, removal of dead materials, resetting plants to proper grades or upright positions and restoration of the planting sauces and any other necessary operations.  Proper protection to lawn areas shall be provided and any damage resulting from planting operations shall be repaired promptly. B. All trees shall be deep watered for a period of 90 days after planting. Saucer berms shall be removed on all plant material 30 days after acceptance, except for all replacement materials. C. In the event of the threat of serious damage resulting from insects or disease prior to final acceptance, the plants shall be treated by preventative or remedial measures approved for good horticultural practice at no additional cost to the Owner. D. The Contractor shall furnish the Owner with a written and detailed description for the care and maintenance of all plant material at the time of final inspection.  The Owner agrees to execute the instructions for such care and maintenance. 3.6 INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE A. Inspection:  Inspection of work to determine completion of contract, exclusive of the possible replacement of plants, will be made by the Owner and/or Landscape Architect at the conclusion of all planting and at the written request of the Contractor. B. Acceptance:  After inspection, the Contractor will be notified by the Owner and/or Landscape Architect of the acceptance of all plant material and workmanship, exclusive of the possible replacement of plants subject to guarantee. 3.7 GUARANTEE AND REPLACEMENT A. Guarantee:  The Contractor, as part of this Contract, shall furnish a written guarantee warranting all materials, workmanship and plant materials, except sod, for a period of one (1) year from the time of completion and acceptance.  All plant materials shall be alive and in satisfactory condition and growth for each specific kind of plant at the end of the guarantee period.  Where vandalism is agreed by the Landscape Architect as the cause for replacement, the Contractor shall not be responsible for replacement during the one (1) year guarantee after final acceptance. B. Sod shall be guaranteed for a two month period dating from final acceptance and any lawn care which becomes necessary during the completion period will be the responsibility of the Owner to ensure a vigorous stand of grass.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G = gallon C T  = clear trunk HT = height          

AutoCAD SHX Text
C W = clear wood   SPR = spread O C  = on center

AutoCAD SHX Text
G W  = grey wood  O A  = overall height              D = diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.8 TREE PROTECTION (When Applicable) A. Protection and care of existing trees, palms, shrubs, and ground cover to remain, to include all aspects of protection, fertilization and watering. B. Tree, palms, shrubs, and ground cover to remain are designated on the drawings or as directed by the Landscape Architect. C. Snow fence detail, when included in plans, will be installed prior to beginning construction activity on project site as part of base bid for contract. 3.9 TREE RELOCATION ( When Applicable) A. Prepare and relocate trees and palms designated for relocation to include all aspects of preparation, protection, fertilization and watering. 1. Trees and palms to be relocated on site are designated on the drawings or as directed by the Landscape Architect. 2. Diameter used herein shall mean diameter measured at breast high (DBH) of dicot or a conifer tree as measured four and one half feet (4 1/2) above ground.  The diameter of a monocot is measured at one foot (1') above ground. 3. All dicot trees, specifically Quercus Virginiana (Native Florida Live Oaks), shall be root pruned between 90-120 days before being relocated.   4. All monocot trees shall be dug with a vermeer or similar type tree spade equipment and moved to its permanent location in one move.  Monocots shall be watered before the move, installed with a complete watering system and maintained under full irrigation for a period adequate to establish the tree. 5. Plans are not complete for bid or construction unless accompanied by written letter/plan  format C.S.I landscape specifications. B. Tree Preparation 1. Excavate the total circumference of the root zone with a minimum eighty (80") inch diameter ball, cut to a depth of not less than thirty (30") depth and one foot wide, to get all roots that are necessary to the support of the tree in relocation.  The cut trench shall be backfilled with loose friable soil (1/3, 1/3, 1/3 mix) - and Eucalytus mulch (unless otherwise specified in plant and materials list on plans) and should be placed under constant watering until the time of the move. The tree shall be watered before the move, installed with a complete watering system and maintained under full irrigation for a sufficient period of time adequate to establish the tree. 2. At the time of root pruning, the oak trees shall also have their canopies selectively trimmed out to form a well shaped tree with a broad spread and a high canopy.  Thin out all interior branches and cut the perimeter branches back to the (1") one inch diameter limb size.  The intent is to reduce the foliar mass but keep plenty of small limbs and branches so that the new growth will emerge in the spring that the root system can support.  Cut no limbs larger than 1" diameter except interior branches to be removed. 3. Six months after the tree is established in its new location, remove stakes, bands, and battons unless they are still needed for bracing tree. 4. Coordinate the orientation of trees before they are set and as they are being set to avoid conflict with branch structure of trees adjacent to either the other trees, the building walls and any other overhead or underground utilities. 5. Excavate holes in scale with root ball of tree as it is dug so tree will be set to grow at the same grade as it was originally growing. C. Watering 1. This contract includes the responsibility to provide a constant supply of water to the tree to be relocated, from the day they are root pruned, throughout the holding period, to the new locations when they are moved, and for the final locations shown on plans.  Coordinate with the irrigation installer and the Contractor to utilize the existing water source(s) and the new irrigation water meter(s), so no period of the time occurs that water is not always available to the trees to avoid stress or loss of trees. 2. While hand watering, keep all upper branches moistened.  Continue any selective pruning that may be needed to adjust to the new planting locations. 3. Maintain supplementary hand watering throughout all phases of construction. 4. Form and maintain tree well for water retention in the root zone. D. Staking 1. Brace with 2 x 4, 4 x 4, or 6 x 6 wooden stakes depending on the tree size or at the landscape contractor's discretion after root pruning in place and after tree relocation.  The landscape contractor is fully responsible to reset trees at no additional cost if required.  All work, care, and follow up is to be included in base bid. 2. Burlap, battons and bands shall be used to protect bark from damage while rigging to lift trees by crane.  No nails in trees. E. Utilities 1. The installing contractor shall be responsible to coordinate with all construction plans and schedules, and all appropriate utility location service companies in the project area and the local agencies to provide locations for all overhead and underground utilities. F. Mulching 1. The installing contractor shall be responsible to coordinate with all construction plans and provide mulch to minimum 3" depth and incorporate the tree(s) with the rest of the new plantings. 2. Root hormones, fungicide and similar chemicals may be applied at the contractor's discretion. G. Soil 1. Backfill the trees with a 1/3, 1/3, 1/3 mix of planting soil.  Construct a tree well unless curbing or planter areas provide necessary well requirements. H. Fertilization 1. Fertilize tree with agriform tablets outside the root zone to encourage root growth. I. Guarantee 1. Equivalent replacement.  A tree (or trees) which due to its classification (based on the table of tree evaluation established by the International Society of Arboriculture) in the case of dicot or conifer condition size, and location, its determined by the city/county/state Landscape Architect/Urban Forester to be the equivalent to the tree (or trees) which it replaces.  In making this determination, the city/county/state Landscape Architect/Urban Forester shall be guided by the standards established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 2. Equivalent value is an amount of money, which reflects the cost of replacing a dicot or conifer tree, determined by multiplying the cross sectional diameter of the tree (measured in square inches) by the values (based on the cost of obtaining an equivalent replacement according to the classifications of tree as listed in the table of tree evaluation established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 3. Any tree or palm that dies or is deemed in unacceptable condition for one (1) year following relocation shall be removed by the Contractor including root ball, and backfilling of pit, at no cost to the Owner and the tree will be replaced with a new tree or palm of the same size and species, and installed to meet these specifications. 4. Acknowledging the nature of tree and palm relocation, the Contractor shall not be responsible for survival of trees and palms if it is deemed by the Landscape Architect or Owner that all possible measures have been taken by the Contractor to insure the tree(s) survivability.  If, however, it is deemed by the Landscape Architect or Owner that the tree or palm mortality is a product of negligence by the Contractor or failure to follow these specifications, the Contractor shall provide and install at no additional cost to the Owner a tree or palm of same size and species. END OF SECTION 02490



EXISTING
FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLEEXISTING UTILITY

POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING CURB
CUT & APRON,
REMOVE AND

REPLACE WITH
SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB CUT &
APRON, REMOVE AND
REPLACE WITH SIDEWALK

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
/ R

E
T

A
IL

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

EXISTING ARMORY
ARTS BUILDING

MIN.

10'-0"

M
IN

.

10
'-0

"

REAR SETBACK
COMMERCIAL

FRONT
SETBACK
"F" ST. T.H.

STREET
SETBACK
COMMERCIAL

FRONT
SETBACK
LUCERNE T.H.

FRONT SETBACK
COMMERCIAL

0'
-0

"
IN

T
E

R
IO

R
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L

2 BD

BLDG. A
(3) 3-Story

Townhouses
2,031 GSF

2 BD

2 BD

BLDG. B
1-STORY
RETAIL

1,993 GSF

2 BD 2 BD 2 BD 2 BD 2 BD

MAIL

A/C GROUND
UNIT, TYP.

J TR E/M

9'-0"13'-0 1/4"

EXISTING

8'-0"

30
'-2

"

PROPOSED
BALCONIES O.H., TYP.

PROPOSED
BALCONIES O.H.,

TYP.

12345

6

7

8

9

EXISTING
CURB EDGE

T
Y

P
.

22
'-0

"

TYP.

22'-0"

T
Y

P
.

8'
-6

"

EXISTING ASPHALT
ALLEY

BLDG. C
(5) 3-Story
Townhouse
3,361 GSF

SHARED
PARK /

GARDEN

13
'-6"

FENCING

10
'-0

"

5'-0"

13
'-0

"
5'

-0
"

PROPOSED TREE
ISLAND

22' MAX.
COMMERCIAL
SETBACK

61'-10"

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."

F
" 

ST
R

E
E

T ALLEY
ALLEY

PROPOSED
T.H. P.L., TYP.

39
'-4

"
.1

2'
-9

"
50

'-8
"

10
'-0

"

10'-0"

50'-8"
10'-3" 84'-0"

40
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

20
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

39
'-0

"

3'-3"
2'-6"

3'-3"

TYP.

9'-0"

40'-0"

10'-0"

18'-0" 20'-0" 5'-0"

BIKE RACKS (3)
RACKS, 2 BIKES EA. 6

BIKES TOTAL

LUNA PARK

4" 16'-8" 16'-8" 16'-8" 16'-8" 16'-8" 4"

4"
16

'-8
"

16
'-8

"
16

'-8
"

4"

B
IK

E
 R

A
C

K
S 

(3
)

R
A

C
K

S,
 2

 B
IK

E
S 

E
A

. 6
B

IK
E

S
 T

O
T

A
L

TRASH/RECYCLING
CART HOLDING PAD

20
5' 

FR
O

M
 E

XI
STI

N
G

 H
YD

RA
NT T

O
 P

RO
PE

R
TY

 C
O

RNER

204' FROM EXISTING HYDRANT TO PROPERTY CORNER

TOWNHOUSE SIDE SETBACK

73
'-7

"

77
'-0

"

ASPHALT PAVED

EXISTING TREES

FDC

FDC

(2) MOTORCYCLE
PARKING SPACES & SIGN

TYP.

9'-0"

NOTE: PARKING
SPACES 6

THROUGH 9 ARE
NOT REQ. PER

CITY L.D.R.

(2) MOTORCYCLE
PARKING SPACES &

SIGN

EXISTING BIKE LANE
STRIPING TO REMAIN

PATCH BIKE LANE
STRIPING WHERE MISSING
OR DAMAGED, TYP.

29
' -

 0
"

V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
R

IA
N

G
LE

20
'-0

"

VISIBILTY TRIANGLE

20'-0"

8'
-0

"T
Y

P
.

TYP.

4'-6"

VIS. TRIANGLE

10'-0"

V
IS

. T
R

IA
N

G
LE

10
'-0"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
 A

V
E

.

18
'-0

"

M
A

X
.

22
'-0

"

2

2

SITE PLAN LEGEND
EXISTING BUILDING

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PALM TREE

OVERHEAD LINES

ZONING SETBACK (TOWNHOUSE EXCLUDED)

PROPOSED FENCING

PROPOSED BUILDING - TOWNHOUSE

PROPOSED BUILDING - RETAIL

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

ZONING SETBACK FOR TOWNHOUSES

PROPERTY LINE - TOWNHOUSE / RETAIL

VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS WITH SURVEY
AND EXISTING SITE, ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY - SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS FOR PROPOSED WORK

NOTE:

T.H.

PROPERTY LINE

TOWNHOUSE

P.L.

PROPERTY LINE - OVERALL

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION - SEE CIVIL

PARKING STRIPE

BIKE LANE STRIPE

EXISTING PROPOSED

ZONING

LW P&Z PROJECT NUMBER 16-01400001

NAME OF PROJECT WEST VILLAGE ART LOFTS

PROPOSED USE MIXED - RETAIL AND TOWNHOUSE

APPLICABLE PLANNING AREA(S): CORE AREA PARKING DISTRICT
PROPERTY CONTROL NUMBERS: 38-43-44-21-15-012-0260

APPLICABLE OVERLAY(S): MAJOR THOROUGHFARE

TOTAL SITE ACRES: .4649 ACRES
SQUARE FEET SITE AREA: 20,933 SF

 ADJACENT TO:
MU-E: Mixed-Use-East (South West, East & West)
MDR:  Medium Density Residential (North)
AMU: Artisan Mixed-Use  (North  East)
PROS: Public Recreation & Open Space (South)

ADJACENT
ZONING
DESIGNATIONS

FIRE DEPARTMENT (AHJ - FIRE ONLY): PALM BEACH COUNTY

SITE DATA

MUNICIPALITY (AHJ - ALL BUT FIRE): CITY OF LAKE WORTH

SUSTAINABILITY CERT. PROG.: NATIONAL GREEN BLDNG. STANDARD (NGBS)

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION

LOT AREA
LOT WIDTH

MIN. REQ. PROPOSED

BUILDING HEIGHT - T.H. - FEET
MAX. HGT./STORIES PROP. HGT./STORIES

BUILDING HEIGHT - RETAIL - FEET

BUILDING HEIGHT - ACCESSORY N/AN/A

BUILDING SETBACKS:
FRONT - LUCERNE*

SIDE STREET - N. "F" St.*
SIDE - EAST P.L.*
REAR - ALLEY*

*Building setbacks are applied after variance to change primary street to Lucerne Ave.

MIN./MAX.

**Additional setback requested to allow for existing tree in Luna Park

FRONT - TOWN HOUSE*

***10'-0" setback requested to utilize 10' side setback requirement for Town Houses

REAR - AT F ST. TOWN HOUSES***

PROPOSED
10'/22' 22'

10' 10'(F)/18'(LUCERNE)
10' 10'

ZERO LOT LINE 0'
10% (13.5')*** 71.5' Rtl./85' T.H.

10' 10'***

RESIDENTIAL UNIT DENSITY/ACRE 30/14 8
MAX. AC./SITE PROPOSED

PROP. LIVING AREA/UNIT - PRIM.
PROP. LIVING AREA/UNIT - ACCESS. N/AN/A

MIN. PROPOSED
1450 S.F./UNIT 1630 GSF/UNIT

IMPERMEABLE SURFACE MAX. PROPOSED

65%

5551 S.F.

LOT COVERAGE BUILDING
MAX. PROPOSED

MIN. PROPOSED

F.A.R.

WALL HGT. @ PROP. SIDE SETBACK

MAX. PROPOSED
.9 (1.4 w/Sust.Bon.) .87

WALKWAYS/PAVING

BUILDING

COMBINED TOTAL

7385 S.F.
BALCONIES 457 S.F.

13,393 S.F.
AS A % 64%

PARKING DATA - SHARED PARKING IS AVAILABLE - 25% REDUCTION

PROPOSED

RETAIL 1 SP / 500 SF
Gross Floor Area

6 SP. LUCERNE

RESIDENTIAL - T.H. (2 BDRM.) MIN. 1.75 SP / UNIT 16 SPACES

PROPOSED PARKING - Core Area Parking Requirements per LDR Sec 23.4-10
ON STREET SPACES: 9 SPACES
OFF STREET PARKING:   8 SPACES
GARAGE:  8 SPACES

TOWNHOUSES, DEDICATED

FOR RETAIL USE

BIKE PARKING (EXTERIOR) ----- 12 SPACES

REQUIRED

3 SPACES

14 SPACES

0 SPACES

30' (35' w/Sust.Bon.) 35'

55% 35%

30' (35' w/Sust.Bon.) 35'
BUILDING HEIGHT - T.H. - STORIES 2 (3 w/Sust.Bonus) 3

BUILDING HEIGHT - RTL. - STORIES

30' (35' w/Sust.Bon.) 22'
2 (3 w/Sust.Bonus) 1

P (PUBLIC) MU-E (MIXED USE)
P (PUBLIC) MU-E (MIXED USE)

6500 S.F. 20,933 S.F.
25' 155'

TOTAL GROSS BUILDING AREA
 RETAIL         1,993 S.F.
 TOWNHOUSE       16,176 S.F.
 TOTAL        18,169 S.F. (18,169 SF/ 20,933 SF= .87)

*Lot widths are applied after variance to change primary street to Lucerne Ave.

HEIGHT

LOT

ZONING & FLU

HISTORIC - DESIGNATION TYPE N/A N/A

DENSITY

UNIT LIVING AREA - UNDER AIR

BUILT COVERAGE

WALL HEIGHT

F.A.R.

RESIDENTIAL TOWN HOUSES

PROPOSED USES (AFTER REZONING)

LOW INTENSITY RETAIL

ALLOWED
AS COND. USE (AFTER REZONING)
BY RIGHT (AFTER REZONING)

5 SP. "F" ST.

MOTORCYCLE PARKING ----- 4 SPACES0 SPACES

(4 less 25%)

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.01

Site Plan

03-15-2016

DE/RM

DE/REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 3/32" = 1'-0"1 00 - Site Plan

Impervious/Pervious Schedule (Automatic Generation from Model)

Count Name Projected Area Comments
1 Impervious Concrete 3600 SF Concrete Parking & Vehicle Circulation

1 Impervious Concrete 1951 SF Concrete Walkways
1 Pervious Landscape Exposed 7509 SF Pervious Landscaping Open to Sky Above
1 Pervious Stone 464 SF Pervious Stone Paving

2

2

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
1 03-14-16 Site Plan Rev. Mtg.
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision

2

2

2

2

2

2

2



EXISTING
FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLEEXISTING UTILITY

POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING CURB CUT & APRON.
REMOVE AND REPLACE WITH CURB
AND SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB CUT & APRON. REMOVE
AND REPLACE WITH CURB AND
SIDEWALK

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
/ R

E
T

A
IL

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN

PRESERVE EXISTING TREES

REMOVE EXISTING TREES

EXISTING TREES TO
BE REMOVED

EXISTING
ON-STREET
PARKING

EXISTING BOLLARDS TO
BE REMOVED

EXISTING ON-STREET
PARKING

EXISTING O.H. LINES

EXISTING O.H.
LINES

PROPOSED BUILDING PADS

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."

F
" 

ST
R

E
E

T ALLEY
ALLEY

SEE SURVEY ALL EXISTING
GRADES

SITE PLAN LEGEND
EXISTING BUILDING

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PALM TREE

OVERHEAD LINES

ZONING SETBACK (TOWNHOUSE EXCLUDED)

PROPOSED FENCING

PROPOSED BUILDING - TOWNHOUSE

PROPOSED BUILDING - RETAIL

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

ZONING SETBACK FOR TOWNHOUSES

PROPERTY LINE - TOWNHOUSE / RETAIL

VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS WITH SURVEY
AND EXISTING SITE, ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY - SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS FOR PROPOSED WORK

NOTE:

T.H.

PROPERTY LINE

TOWNHOUSE

P.L.

PROPERTY LINE - OVERALL

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION - SEE CIVIL

PARKING STRIPE

BIKE LANE STRIPE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.01Ex

Site Plan Existing
Conditions

03-15-2016

DE

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

---

 1" = 10'-0"1 Site Plan - Existing / Demolition
N

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W D

UP

W D

UP

W D

UP

LINE OF CANOPY
ABOVE.

4"

T.H.-D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H.-H

16'-8" 4"

STUDIO

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

FUTURE JANITOR
CLOSET COORDINATE
LOCATION WITH
TENANT

FUTURE TOILET
ROOM. COORDINATE
LOCATION WITH
TENANT

FUTURE ELECTRICAL/
MECHANICAL ROOM

WALL MOUNTED
MAILBOX

.1
2'

-9
"

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A

50
'-8

"

PARKING
4

PARKING
5

PARKING
6

PARKING
7

PARKING
8

PARKING
3

PARKING
2

PARKING
1

PERVIOUS
PAVING CENTER
STRIP, TYP.

1,630 GSF

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

STUDIO STUDIO STUDIO STUDIO

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

STUDIO

STUDIO

STUDIO GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

40'-0"

BUILDING B

50'-8"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
 P

.L
.

22
'-0

" 
M

A
X

. C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
39

'-4
"

40
'-0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
. P

.L
.

18
'-0

"

RETAIL
1,993 SF

T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

(3) BIKE RACKS,
6 BIKES

(3) BIKE
RACKS,
6 BIKES

J TR E/M

BUILDING B

4"

T
.H

.-
C

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-
B

16
'-8

"

T
.H

. -
A

16
'-8

"
4"

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A

50
'-8

"
.1

2'
-9

" 10'-3"

BUILDING C

84'-0"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
. P

.L
.

10
'-0

" 
M

IN
. C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L

SETBACK - N. F ST. P.L.

10'-0"

PROPERTY LINE (P.L.) TYPICAL

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

A
LL

E
Y

10
'-0

" 
  T

.H
.

SETBACK - N. F ST.

10'-0"   T.H.

LINE OF BALCONY
ABOVE.

LINE OF BALCONY
ABOVE.

5'-0" 5'-0"

13
'-0

"
5'

-0
"

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.10

Overall Plan -
Retail & Studio

Level

03-15-2016

RM/DE

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 10 - Overall Plan - Retail & Studio Level

22

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision

2



DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DNUP

DW

DNUP

DW

DNUP

DW

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

KITCHEN KITCHEN KITCHEN KITCHEN

LIVING ROOMLIVING ROOMLIVING ROOMLIVING ROOM

DINING ROOM /
OFFICEKITCHENLIVING ROOM

LIVING ROOM KITCHEN DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

KITCHENLIVING ROOM

ROOF BELOW

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

4"

T.H.-D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H.-H

16'-8" 4"

5'-0" 5'-0" 40'-0"

4"

T
.H

.-A

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-B

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-C

16
'-8

"
4"

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A

50
'-8

"
.1

2'
-9

"

40
'-0

"
5'

-0
"

13
'-0

"

50'-8" 10'-3"

BUILDING C

84'-0"

BUILDING B

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
 P

.L
.

18
'-0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 -

 L
U

C
E

R
N

E
 A

V
E

. P
.L

.

22
'-0

" 
M

A
X

. C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
39

'-4
"

SETBACK - N. F ST.
10'-0" COMMERCIAL

SETBACK - N. F ST.

10'-0"   T.H.

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

A
LL

E
Y

10
'-0

" 
  T

.H
.

PROPERTY LINE (P.L.) TYPICAL

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
.

7'
-1

1"
 M

IN
. C

O
M

M
.

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.20

Overall Plan -
Living Level

03-15-2016

DE/RM

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 20 - Overall Plan - Living Level

22

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision



DN

D
W

DN

D
W

DN

D
W

DN

D
W

DN

DN

DW

DN

DW

DN

BEDROOM 2

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2BEDROOM 2BEDROOM 2BEDROOM 2

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2MASTER
BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 2

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

ROOF BELOW

4"

T.H.-D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H.-H

16'-8" 4"
4"

T
.H

.-
C

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-
B

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-
A

16
'-8

"
4"

BUILDING C

84'-0"

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A

50
'-8

"
.1

2'
-9

"

CANOPIES AND
BALCONIES
BELOW, TYP.

BUILDING B

5'-0" 5'-0" 40'-0"
SETBACK - N. F ST.

10'-0"   T.H.

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

A
LL

E
Y

10
'-0

" 
  T

.H
.

PROPERTY LINE (P.L.) TYPICAL

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 -

 L
U

C
E

R
N

E
 A

V
E

. P
.L

.

22
'-0

" 
M

A
X

. C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
39

'-4
"

SETBACK - N. F ST.
10'-0" COMMERCIAL

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
.

7'
-1

1"
 M

IN
. C

O
M

M
.

50'-8" 10'-3"

BUILDING C

84'-0"

40
'-0

"
5'

-0
"

13
'-0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
 P

.L
.

18
'-0

"

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.30

Overall Plan -
Sleeping Level

03-15-2016

DE/RM

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 30 - Overall Plan - Sleeping Level

22

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision



CANOPY
BELOW

2ND LEVEL
BALCONY BELOW

ROOFTOP
MECHANICAL
UNIT

CANOPIES
BELOW, TYP.

COLLECTOR BOX AND RAIN CONDUCTOR

1

A-4.00
2

A-4.00

5

A-4.00

.1
2'

-9
"

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A

50
'-8

"

BUILDING B

4"

T
.H

.-
C

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-
B

16
'-8

"

T
.H

.-
A

16
'-8

"
4"

SETBACK - N. F ST.

10'-0"   T.H. 40'-0"

PROPERTY LINE (P.L.) TYPICAL

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

A
LL

E
Y

10
'-0

" 
  T

.H
.

4"

T.H. -D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H. -H

16'-8" 4"

50'-8" 10'-3"

BUILDING C

84'-0"

COLLECTOR BOX AND
RAIN CONDUCTOR, TYP.

40
'-0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 -

 L
U

C
E

R
N

E
 A

V
E

. P
.L

.

18
'-0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 -

 L
U

C
E

R
N

E
 A

V
E

. P
.L

.

22
'-0

" 
M

A
X

. C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
39

'-4
"

SETBACK - N. F ST.
10'-0" COMMERCIAL

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 - 

LU
C

E
R

N
E

 A
V

E
.

7'
-1

1"
 M

IN
. C

O
M

M
.

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.40

Overall Plan -
Roof Plan

03-15-2016

DE/RM

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 40 - Overall Plan - Roof

22

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision



WING WALL WITH
ALUMINUM SUPPORTS
FOR FASTENING. ART
BY OTHERS

ALUMINUM GLAZED DOORS

ALUMINUM WRAPPED VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL MULLIONS,
TYP.

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM, TYP.

METAL SUNSHADE AND
SUPPORTS. WEST SIDE ONLY

ALUMINUM CHANNEL LETTER
SIGNAGE BY OTHERS,
INTERNALLY LIT; TYP.;  12 S.F.
EACH; 3 SIGNS TOTAL 36 S.F.

VERTICAL CONTROL
JOINT, TYP.

FIXED SSG ALUMINUM CORNER WINDOW, TYP.

ALUMINUM AWNING WINDOW, TYP.

ALUMINUM COPING, TYP.

SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH, TYP.

VERTICAL CONTROL JOINT, TYP.

HORIZONTAL STUCCO REVEAL, TYP.

PORCELAIN TILE -
WOODGRAIN

METAL SUNSHADE, 8" TO 10"
DEEP, TYP. TOP LEVEL

ALUMINUM ROLLER WINDOW,
TYP.

METAL SUNSHADE AND
SUPPORTS, VARYING DEPTH,
TYP. LIVING LEVEL

ALUMINUM WRAPPED MULLIONS, TYP.

ALUMINUM  / GLAZED DOORS, TYP.

AWNING ALUMINUM TRANSOM, TYP.

FIXED ALUMINUM WINDOW

WALL-
MOUNTED
BIKE RACK,
TYP.

1

A-4.00

2

A-4.00

5

A-4.00

ALUMINUM RAINWATER
CONDUCTOR, TYP.

ALUMINUM RAINWATER
COLLECTOR BOX, TYP.

13
'-4

"
10

'-0
"

9'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

F
LO

O
R

 T
O

 H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

34
'-7

" 
 B

LD
G

. "
A

"
1'

-9
"

6"
G

A
R

A
G

E
 O

F
F

S
E

T

STUDIO
LEVEL

LIVING
LEVEL

SLEEPING
LEVEL

ROOF
BEARING

WING WALL WITH
ALUMINUM SUPPORTS
FOR FASTENING. ART BY
OTHERS

METAL SUNSHADE
AND SUPPORTS

STUCCO FINISH
WING WALL FOR
VISIBILITY AND
SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE BY
OTHERS, LIGHTED;
17 S.F.; CONTEXT &
LOCATION T.B.D.

ARTIST SIGNAGE /
LOGO BY OTHERS,
NOT LIGHTED

WOOD RAFTER,
TYP.

CEDAR 2X4
SUNSHADE SLATS,
TYP.

CEDAR FASCIA
(OBSCURED), TYP.

ALUMINUM DRIP
EDGE
(OBSCURED), TYP.

REPEATING (8' PATTERN) WAVE
PATTERN BALCONY GUARD,
SHOP CUT CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM INSTALLED OVER
STEEL TUBE, COATED, TOP
AND BOTTOM HORIZONTAL
TUBES W/ POSTS 48" O.C., TYP.

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM, TYP.9'-0"

1'
-1

1"

EXISTING COMMERCIAL
BUILDING IN
FOREGROUND

ALUMINUM O.H. SECTIONAL DOOR,
STANDARD COLOR  TBD

FIBERGLASS DOOR

SIGNAGE BY OTHERS, 24 S.F.;
CONTEXT & LOCATION T.B.D.

STUDIO
LEVEL

LIVING
LEVEL

SLEEPING
LEVEL

ROOF
BEARING

T
O

 H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

34
'-7

"B
LD

G
. "

B
"

1'
-9

"

4'
-0

"
9'

-0
"

10
'-0

"
13

'-4
"

36
'-4

"

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.00

Building
Elevations

03-15-2016

RM/DE

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Lucerne Ave (South) Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 Alley (North) Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 North "F" Street (West) Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 East (Side/Rear) Elevation

INCLUDES TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES FOR ALL THREE BUILDINGS

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision

2

2



01 - STUDIO
LEVEL

02 - LIVING
LEVEL

03 - SLEEPING
LEVEL

04 - ROOF
BEARING

1'
-9

"

T
O

 H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

34
'-7

"B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 "
C

"

13
'-4

"
10

'-0
"

9'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

6"
D

R
O

P
 A

T
 G

A
R

A
G

E

01 - RETAIL
LEVEL

02R - ROOF AVG.
LEVEL

 L
O

W
 P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 R

O
O

F

13
'-1

0"
B

LD
G

 "
B

"
8'

-2
"

22
'-0

"

HIGH SIDE OF ROOF BEYOND

LOW SIDE OF ROOF AT WALL

WALL MOUNTED BIKE RACK,
(6) UNITS, (6) BIKES

16
'-6

"
5'

-6
"

01 - STUDIO
LEVEL

02 - LIVING
LEVEL

03 - SLEEPING
LEVEL

04 - ROOF
BEARING 4'

-0
"

9'
-0

"
10

'-0
"

13
'-4

"

1'
-9

"

H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

34
'-7

"B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 "
A

"

6"
D

R
O

P
 A

T
 G

A
R

A
G

E

5

A-4.00

01 - RETAIL
LEVEL

02R - ROOF AVG.
LEVEL

HIGH SIDE OF ROOF BEYOND

LOW SIDE OF ROOF AT WALL

WALL MOUNTED BIKE RACK,
(3) UNITS, (6) BIKES

16
'-6

"
5'

-6
"

22
'-0

"

H
IG

H
 S

P
O

T
 O

F
 R

O
O

F

18
'-1

0"
 B

LD
G

. "
B

"
3'

-2
"

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.01

Building
Elevations

03-15-2016

DE/RM

DE/REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 Building "C" West Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 Building "B" East Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 Building "A" South Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Building "B" North Elevation

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00 FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION
2 05-11-16 Setback Revision

2



REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 20 16

DESIGNER

OW N ER S H IP  A ND  U SE  OF  T HE S E  D O C UME N TS  &
SP E CI F IC A TI O NS  AS  IN S TR U ME N TS  OF  SE R VI C E
AR E  A N D S HA L L R EMA IN  TH E  P R OP E RT Y  O F  T H E
AR CH I TE C T W HE T HE R  T H E P RO J EC T  T H EY  AR E
MA DE  FO R I S E XE CU T ED  OR  N O T.   T HE Y  S H AL L
NO T  B E  U S ED  BY  TH E  O W NE R  O R  O T HE R S O N
OT HE R  P RO J EC T S OR  FO R A DD I TI ON S  T O T HI S
PR OJ E CT  BY  OT H ER S , E XC E PT  BY  AG R EE MEN T  I N
WR I TI N G A ND  WI T H A PP R OP R IA T E
CO MP E NS A TI O N T O T HE  AR C HI T EC T .

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.02

Elevations - Color
and Shade

03-15-2016

DE/RM

REG

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

Shadow Study: June 1st at 4:00 p.m.

Shadow Study: June 21st at 1:00 p.m.

Shadow Study: June 21st at 8:00 a.m.

Shadow Study: June 21st at 8:00 a.m.

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Lucerne Ave (South) Elevation - Shade & Shadow

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 Alley (North) Elevation - Shade & Shadow

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 North "F" Street (West) Elev. - Shade & Shadow

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 East (Side/Rear) Elevation - Shade & Shadow

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

PROPOSED SITE LIGHTING PLAN

N

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Arrangement Manufacturer Description Lum. Lumens LLF Lum. Watts

2 SA SINGLE Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED 40C 1000 40K T5W MVOLT

MH: 20' POLE MOUNT A.F.G.

15739 0.855 138

26 SW SINGLE Lithonia Lighting OLWX1 LED 13W 40K DDB

MH: 12' WALL MOUNT A.F.F.

1261 0.855 14

Calculation Summary

Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

SIDEWALK AROUND RETAIL STORE Illuminance Fc 1.75 4.0 0.1 17.50 40.00

ROAD Illuminance Fc 2.13 2.7 1.6 1.33 1.69

SHARED PARK-GARDEN Illuminance Fc 2.16 2.7 1.1 1.96 2.45

TOWNHOUSE ENTRIES Illuminance Fc 2.82 4.4 1.7 1.66 2.59

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

SA

MH: 20

SA

MH: 20

SW

MH: 12

SW

MH: 12

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.3 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4

0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5

1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6

0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 0.7 1.0 1.2 1.6 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.8

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 0.8 1.1 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0

2.8 2.5 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 1.7 1.6 1.3

1.6 1.3

2.0 1.6

2.3 1.8

2.3 1.8

2.2 1.7

1.9 1.5

1.6 1.4

1.4 1.2

1.2 1.0

0.5 1.0

0.6 1.0

1.0 1.1

1.4 1.6

2.2 2.5

2.6 2.5

3.0 2.8

3.2 2.9

3.2 2.9

3.0 2.7

2.7 2.5

3.4 2.9 2.4 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.7 3.4 3.7 4.0 3.9 3.9 3.4 2.8 2.3 1.9 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.5

3.4 2.9 2.5 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.9 4.0 3.9 4.0 3.5 2.9 2.5 2.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.3

1.2 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.7 1.8 2.4 3.0 3.6 3.9 3.9 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.5 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.9 3.4 3.0 2.5 2.1 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.1

1.3 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.8 2.0 2.6 3.2 3.7 3.9 3.9 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 3.7 3.6 3.8 3.5 3.8 3.4 2.9 2.5 2.2 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9

1.9 1.8 1.7

1.7 1.7 1.6

1.7 1.6

2.8 3.4 3.8 3.3 3.6 4.2 3.8 3.7 4.4 4.2 3.7 4.1 4.3 3.7 3.7 4.0 3.1

2.7 2.8 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.0 3.1 3.4 3.4 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.4

2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9

1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7

1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6

3.3 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7

4.0 3.0 2.2 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.6

3.6 3.0 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6

3.5 3.0 2.3 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6

4.2 3.4 2.4 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.6

4.0 3.3 2.5 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6

3.4 3.0 2.4 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4

3.8 3.1 2.4 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3

3.9 3.1 2.3 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3

2.7 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2

1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1

1.1

1.4

1.9

2.3

2.5

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.91.5

2.21.9

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.9

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.5

2.21.9

1.1 1.0

1.4 1.3

1.9 1.6

2.2 1.9

2.5

1.6

2.2 1.9

1.1 1.0

1.4 1.3

1.9 1.6

2.2 1.9

2.5

1.6

2.2 1.9

1.1 1.0

1.4 1.3

1.9 1.6

2.2 1.9

2.5

1.6

2.2 1.9

1.1

1.4 1.9
2.3 2.5

1.0 1.3 1.6 1.9

1.5

2.2

1.9

1.1

1.0

1.4

1.3

1.9

1.6

2.2

1.9

2.5

1.6

2.2

1.9

1.1

1.0

1.4

1.3

1.9

1.6

2.2

1.9

2.5

1.6

2.2

1.9

ELECTRICAL

CONCEPTUAL

SITE LIGHTING

PLAN

REG #

DATE: 2016-02-09

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.

510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA

29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

BEN ELLIS, PE
LICENSED ENGINEER #67568

STATE OF FLORIDA
CERT. OF AUTH. #30408

DATE
PROJECT NUMBER-16004

ENGINEERING FOR TODAY'S
BUILT ENVIRONMENT

1106B NORTH G STREET
LAKE WORTH, FL 33460

(561) 370-3300 phone
www.ellisgritter.com

 SITE PLAN REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT TYPE "SA"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT TYPE "SW"

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE MOUNTED AREA LIGHTS FOR DRIVE AND GREEN SPACE PARKING; CONTROL VIA PHOTOCELL (TYP.	OF 2 POLES, 4 HEADS)OF 2 POLES, 4 HEADS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIXTURE TYPE: 	SURFACE MTD SURFACE MTD LAMP TYPE:	13W LED, 4000K COLOR 13W LED, 4000K COLOR MOUNTING HT:	10'-0" A.F.G.10'-0" A.F.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIXTURE TYPE: 	POLE MTD. AREA LIGHT POLE MTD. AREA LIGHT LAMP TYPE:	68W 40 LED, 4000K COLOR 68W 40 LED, 4000K COLOR MOUNTING HT:	20'-0" A.F.G.20'-0" A.F.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE MOUNTED LED LIGHT, ONE EACH FRONT AND REAR CENTER OF EACH TOWNHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE MOUNTED LED LIGHT, TWO EACH SIDE OF RETAIL BUILDING  (8 TOTAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/14/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN REV. MTG.



DISTRICT FOUR (4) 
AMENDMENT TO HIGHWAY BEAUTIFICATION AND MAINTENANCE 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
DSF-MAINTENANCE 

This is an Amendment to the Agreement made and entered into on August 18,997, 
by and between the State of Florida Department of Transportation hereinafter called 
the"Department" and the City of lake Worth, a political subdivision of the State of 
Florida, hereinafter called the "Agency". 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into the Agreement for the purpose of providing 
funding for a landscape project and identify the AGENCY'S responsibility for the future 
maintenance on State Road 802 from A Street to Golfviewand 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to increase the project limits to allow for 
additional landscaping and maintenance responsibilities: 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of mutual benefits that flow each 
to the other, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Attachment "A", as contained in the August 18, 1997 Agreement reflecting 
the project location is hereby amended by the Attachment" A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. 

2. Attachment "C" as contained in the August 18, 1997 Agreement reflecting 
the project cost is hereby amended by the Attachment "C" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. 

3. Except as modified by this amendment, all terms and conditions of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have cause these presents to be 
executed this 71 1,. ~ ,2001. 

By: Romano, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
CORRECTNESS: 

Le~~proval 

~/>&:1_AIA_L_~ 



SECTIONNO. 
FIN NO.(s): 

COUNTY: 
S.R. NO.: 

CONTRACT NO.: 

EXHIBIT "A" 

93180 
40968715801 
23001045412 
Palm Beach 
802 
AI 629 

PROJECT LOCATION ________________________________________ ___ 

Lake Worth medians from Detroit Street east to the start of Roundabout - 1650 
meters west of A Street 

7 



SECTION NO :-=-.93=-1..:......::8::....::0=---__ _ 
FIN NO.(s): 40968715801 

23001045412 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 
S.R. NO.: 802 

CONTRACT NO.: AI 629 

ATTACHMENT C 
(GENERAL) 

PROJECT COST 

This Exhibit forms an integral part of the Highway Beautification Grant 
Agreement between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation and 
the AGENCY. 

Dated ------------

I. PROJECT COST: $56,488 

FIN # 40868715801 
Palm Beach MPO Grant 28,244.00 
FIN # 23001045412 
Additional DOT Participation 28,244.00 

TOTAL $56,488.00 



DISTRICT FOUR (4) 
HIGHWA Y BEAUTIFICATION GRANT AND 

MAINTENANCE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
DSF-MAINTENANCE 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ~ day of August 1997 by and 
between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, a component 
agency of the State of Florida, hereinafter called the "DEPARTMENT" and the City of Lake 
Worth, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, existing under the Laws of Florida, hereinafter 
called the "AGENCY". 

WIT N E SSE T H: 

WHEREAS,a.s part of the continual updating of the State of Florida Highway System, the 
Department, for the purpose of safety, protection of the investment and other reasons, has 
constructed and does maintain various lane highway facilities as described in Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference herein, within the corporate limits of the AGENCY; and 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY is of the opinion that said highway facilities that contain 
landscape medians and areas outside the travel way to the right of way line, excluding sidewalk, shall 
be maintained by periodic trimming, cutting, mowing, fertilizing, litter pick-up and necessary 
replanting; and 

WHEREAS,the parties hereto mutually recognize the need for entering into an Agreement 
designating and setting forth the responsibilities of each party; and 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY by Resolution No.49-97 dated 8/12 , 1997 ,attachedhereto 
and by this reference made a part hereof, desires to enter into this Agreement and authorizes its 
officers to do so; 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual benefits to flow each to the 
other, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. The DEPARTMENT hereby agrees to install or cause to be installed landscaping, 
hardscaping (brick pavers )and decorative lighting on the highway facilities as specified in 
plans and specifications hereinafter referred to as the Project; and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit "B" 

2. The AGENCY, agrees to maintain the landscaping within the medians and areas outside the 
travel way to the right of way line, excluding sidewalk, by periodic trimming, cutting, 
mowing, fertilizing, litter pickup and necessary replanting, following the Department's 
landscape safety and plant care guidelines. The AGENCY's responsibility for maintenance 
shall include alliandscape/turfed areas and areas covered with interlocking pavers or similar 
type surfacing (hardscape) within the median and areas outside the travel way to the right of 



way line, excluding sidewalk, on Department of Transportation right-of- way within the limits 
of the Project. Such maintenance to be provided by the AGENCY is specifically set out as 
follows: 

To maintain, which means the proper watering and fertilization of all plants and keeping them 
as free as practicable from disease and harmful insects; to properly mulch the plant beds; to 
keep the premises free of weeds; to mow and/or cut the grass to a proper length; to properly 
prune all plants which includes (l) removing dead or diseased parts of plants, or (2) pruning 
such parts thereof which present a visual hazard for those using the roadway. To maintain 
also means removing or replacing dead or diseased plants in their entirety, or removing or 
replacing those that fall below original project standards. All plants removed for whatever 
reason shall be replaced by plants of the same size and grade as specified in the original plans 
and specifications. To maintain also means to keep the hardscape areas free from weeds and 
replacement of any areas becoming in disrepair so as to cause a safety hazard. To maintain 
also means to keep litter removed from the median and areas outside the travel way of the 
right of way line, excluding sidewalk. Plants shall be those items which would be scientifically 
classified as plants and include but are not limited to trees, grass, or shrubs. 

The above named functions to be performed by the AGENCY, shall be subject to periodic 
inspections by the Department. Such inspection findings will be shared with the AGENCY and shall 
be the basis of all decisions regarding, repayment, reworking or agreement termination. The 
AGENCY shall not change or deviate from said plans without written approval of the Department. 

3. If at any time after the AGENCY has assumed the landscaping installation and/or 
maintenance responsibility above-mentioned, it shall come to the attention of the 
Department's District Secretary that the limits or a part thereof is not properly maintained 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, said District Secretary may at his option issue a 
written notice that a deficiency or deficiencies exist(s), by sending a certified letter to the of 
AGENCY, to place said AGENCY on notice thereof. Thereafter the AGENCY shall have 
a period of thirty (30) calendar days within which to correct the cited deficiencies. If said 
deficiencies are not corrected within this time period, the Department may at its option, 
proceed as follows: 

(a) Maintain the landscaping or a part thereof, with Department or contractor's personnel 
and invoice the AGENCY for expenses incurred, or 

(b) Terminate the Agreement in accordance with Paragraph 6 of this Agreement and 
remove, by Department or contractor's personnel, all of the landscaping installed 
under this Agreement or any preceding agreements except as to trees and palms and 
charge the AGENCY the reasonable cost of such removal. 

4. It is understood between the parties hereto that the landscaping covered by this Agreement 
may be removed, relocated or adjusted at any time in the future as determined to be necessary 

2 



by the Department in order that the adjacent state road be widened, altered or otherwise 
changed to meet with future criteria or planning of the Department. The AGENCY shall be 
given sixty (60) calendar days notice to remove said landscaping after which time the 
Department may remove same. 

5. The Department agrees to enter into a contract for the installation of the improvements for 
an amount not to exceed $ 22,000,000.00 as defined in Attachment "C" and attached 
proposed schedule 

The Department's participation in the project cost, as described in Attachment "C" is limited to only 
those items which are directly related to this project. The agencies landscape architect or designee 
shall assist the Department in final inspection and provide written acceptance of the Project. 

6. The AGENCY agrees to reimburse the Department all monies expended for the project, 
should the landscaped area fail to be maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. 

7. This Agreement may be terminated under anyone of the following conditions: 

(a) By the Department, if the AGENCY fails to perform its duties under Paragraph 3, 
following ten (10) days written notice. 

(b) By the Department, for refusal by the AGENCY to allow public access to all 
documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes, and made or received by the AGENCY in conjunction with this 
Agreement. 

8. The term of this Agreement commences upon execution. 

9. To the extent permitted by law, the AGENCY shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
Department, its officers and employees from all suits, actions, claims and liability arising out 
of the AGENCY's negligent performance of the work under this agreement, or due to the 
failure of the AGENCY to construct or maintain the Project in conformance with the 
standards described in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

10. The AGENCY may construct additional landscaping within the limits of the rights-of-ways 
identified as a result of this document, subject to the following conditions: 

(a) Plans for any new landscaping shall be subject to approval by the Department. The 
AGENCY shall not change or deviate from said plans without written approval by 
the Department. 

(b) All landscaping shall be developed and implemented in accordance with appropriate 

3 



state safety and road design standards; 

(c) The AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements of this Agreement with regard 
to any additional landscaping installed; 

(d) No change will be made in the payment terms established under item number five (5) 
of this Agreement due to any increase in cost to the Department resulting from the 
installation of landscaping added under this item. 

11. This writing embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto and 
there are no other agreements and understanding, oral or written, with reference to the subject 
matter hereof that are not merged herein and superseded hereby. 

12. The Department, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur and liability, or enter 
into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of the 
amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any contract, verbal 
or written, made in violation of this subsection is null and void, and no money may be paid 
on such contract. The Department shall require a statement from the Comptroller of the 
Department that funds are available prior to entering into any such contract or other binding 
commitment offunds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the making of contracts for 
periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so made shall be executory only for the value of 
the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this 
paragraph shall be incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the Department which are for an 
amount in excess of$25,000.00 and which have a term for a period of more than 1 year. 

13. The Department's District Secretary shall decide all questions, difficulties and disputes of any 
nature whatsoever that may arise under or by reason of this Agreement, the prosecution or 
fulfillment of the service hereunder and the character, quality, amount and value thereof; and 
his decision upon all claims, questions and disputes shall be final and conclusive upon the 
parties hereto. 

14. This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by the AGENCY in whole or part 
without the consent of the Department. 

15. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida. In the event ofa conflict between any portion of the contract and Florida law, the 
laws of Florida shall prevail. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be 

4 



executed the day and year first above written. 

AGENCY 

Attest:~)tllb ,EJjJl, (SEAL) 
Acting City Cler i 

~ ~J rIoJ/t 1-
Form 

',., 

. , 
'" 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Attest:---.!7~)~h~\.tA.:!;.:. ~\, -:../'110_.~_{;-=-=l(.k...:' I£\:------f=~~~ 
Executive Si cretary 

5 



EXHffiIT "A" 

JOB NO.: Various(see below) 
WPI NO.(s): Various(see below) 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 
S.R. NO.: VariolJs(see below) 

PROJECT LOCATION ________________________________________ __ 

1. 93180-3502 WPI#4118779 - Lake/Lucerne Ave- Resurface roadway, install 
decorative lighting, landscaping and brick pavers 
in sidewalk, stripe bike lane, install drainage 

WPI#4118831 Goes along with WPI#4118779 
WPI#4218251 Goes along with WPI#4118779 

2. 93050-3503 WPI#4118803 Dixie Hwy- Resurface roadway, construct 
median modifications, install landscaping and 
brick pavers in sidewalk, install decorative 
lighting, construct new signals 

3. 93020-3502 WPI#4118673 Federal Hwy-Reconstruct roadway, install 
93020-3503 WPI#4118750 decorative lighting; landscaping with brick 

pavers, construct drainage, install new signals 

4.93050-3513 WPI#4118132 Dixie Hwy- Reconstruct roadway, install 
93050-3518 WPI#4118469 decorative lighting, landscaping, install new 
93050-3509 WPI#4118048 signals, construct drainage 

5. 93180-3506 WPI#4118832 Lake/Lucerne Ave- Resurface roadway, install 
decorative lighting, landscaping with brick 
pavers in sidewalk, stripe for bike path 

6. 93180-3520 WPI#4118840 A Street Roundabout- Reconstruct intersection 
with roundabout design, install decorative 
lighting and landscaping 

7. 99004-3136 WPI#4119110 Landscaping from A Street west to Detroit St. 

6 



EXHmIT "B" 

JOB NO.: Various see page 6 
WPI NO.(s): Various see page 6 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 
S.R. NO.: Various see page 6 

The Department agrees to install the Project with a contractor in accordance with the 
plans and specifications attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

Please see attached plans. 

7 



JOB NO.: Various see page 6 
WPI NO.(s): Various see page 6 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 
S.R. NO.: Various see page 6 

ATTACHMENT "C" 
(GENERAL) 

PROJECT COST 

This Exhibit forms an integral part of the Highway Beautification Grant Agreement 
between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation and the AGENCY. 

Dated 8/18/97 

I. PROJECT COST: $ 22,000,000 

The City of Lake Worth's responsibility for maintenance of the landscaping and 
brick pavers will not commence until the projects have been individually completed 
and accepted by the City and the Department 

C:\WPDOC\ADMIN\DSF.MAl(rev.7/6/95) 

8 



Steve Fischer 
VP - Market Director of Construction 
New Build Development – Southeast Region 
Path of Travel Program – Northeast/Southeast Region 

Steve Fischer • 970 Denmeade Walk, Marietta, GA 30064 

Telephone: 770 910 5495  

Steve.D.Fischer@Chase.com 

11/27/15 

RE:  200 Lake Ave - Lake Worth, FL Chase Relocation (Proposed) 

To whom it may concern: 

I am writing to clarify the trash removal policy of JP Morgan Chase for our Retail Locations.  The majority of 

our trash is Secure, in which a document shredding company is engaged to carefully remove the waste by 

secure shredding.  The very little waste that is generated by a branch (typically break room waste) is removed 

during the normal maintenance of the branch by a third party vendor and the trash is taken with them.  It is 

due to the small volume of non-secure waste that we typically design all branches without a dumpster or 

dumpster enclosure.  If you have any questions, please contact me.  Thank you for your time and 

understanding.  

Sincerely, 

Stephen Fischer 

VP – Market Direct of Construction, Southeast 

O292802
Signature



kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

Chase Lake Ave Branch
200 Lake Ave, Lake Worth Florida
Project Narrative
May 9, 2016



Page 2

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

Project Information

This subject site is generally located at the northeast corner of North O Street and Lake 

Avenue.  This parcel’s Palm Beach County Property Appraiser PCN is 38-43-44-21-15-512-

0010.  The parcel’s zoning designation is DT, Downtown District and the future land use, 

downtown mixed use DMU, is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

Note that the property appraiser’s tax folio number includes a multi-story building on the east 

he entire block, bounded on the east by Palmway, on the south by Lake Avenue, the north by 

Lucerne Avenue and the West by ‘O’ Street.  This block can be understood as two parts 

separated by a platted 10’ alley, the east half, which includes a multi-story building (11,899 

square feet) and associated parking which is not included in the application.  The applicant is 

proposing to convert the existing Financial Institution/office purely to an office use, no 

modification or additional square footage is proposed for the eastern half of the project.  The 

western half currently supports a detached three lane drive-thru.  The applicant will demolish 

the existing drive through lane canopy and construct a new 3,691 square foot Financial 

Institution.  Part of this redevelopment includes the closing of an egress point onto Lake 

Avenue, which will be improved to match the adjacent paver brick sidewalk.  Note that on 

August 18th, 1997 The City of Lake Worth agreed to a maintenance agreement with FDOT for 

Lake and Lucerne Avenue (copy attached).  

The applicant is requesting the following:

- Site Plan Approval

- Conditional Use Permit Approval 

Compliance with the Conditional Use Permit Standards in Section 23.2.-29

D.) General Findings relating to harmony with LDRS and protection of public 

interest.  Prior to approving any conditional use permit, the decision making authority shall 

find based on competent and substantial evidence that:

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in 

harmony with the uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, 

are most likely to occur in the immediate area where located. 

The proposed drive through is an efficient replacement of the existing use, and is 

in harmony with the more compact bank layout as proposed.  The area has a mix 

of uses including multi family, small retail, and hotel uses which is compatible with 

the proposed use.



Page 3

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in 

harmony with existing uses in the immediate area where located. 

Currently existing at the proposed development is a three lane ATM drive-thru. The 

proposed two lane drive-thru ATM is in harmony with the existing uses in the 

immediate area where located and will not adversely affect the surrounding uses.  

The area has a mix of uses including multi family, small retail, and hotel uses which 

is compatible with the proposed use.

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public 

benefit or greater harm than would result from use of the site for some use 

permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted on the site.

The issuance of the Conditional Use Permit for the accompanying drive through 

use will free up half of the square block currently occupied by a multi story bank 

and multi lane drive through; the more compact and efficient land use will allow the 

eastern half of the project to redevelop at a later date.  

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive 

development in advance of when such development is approved by the future land 

use element of the comprehensive plan. 

The proposed redevelopment is a reduction in traffic from the existing developed 

block; and is in harmony with the future land use element as currently adopted.

E.) Specific findings for all conditional uses. Prior to approving any conditional use, 

the decision making authority shall find that:

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or 

movements which will result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the 

level or service provided on any street to a level lower than would result 

from a development permitted by right. 

This proposed two lane ATM drive-thru will result in a reduction of trips from 

the current project (multi story bank and multi lane drive through).  

2. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution 

emissions, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level 

compatible with that which would result from a  development permitted by 

right

This proposed conditional use will not produce air pollution emissions.  The 

proposed two lane ATM drive-thru is a reduction in lanes from the existing 

condition.



Page 4

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

3. The proposed conditional use will be located in relation to the thoroughfare 

system that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of 

that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier 

incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by 

right. 

This proposal has received preliminary approval from FDOT, and 

concurrency from Palm Beach County Traffic.  No negative impacts or 

enlargements of existing public utilities are triggered by this development.

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, 

sanitary sewers, storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility 

systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alternation 

of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier 

incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by 

right. 

The proposed development does not trigger additional public cost relative 

to drainage, water and sewer utilities, or other utilities that serve the site.

5. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police 

or fire protection service beyond the capacity of those services, except that 

the proposed facility may place a demand on municipal police or fire 

protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a 

development permitted by right. 

The proposed conditional use will not have a negative impact on municipal 

police or fires services; it is important to note that the aspect of the project 

which is subject to the conditional use is the drive through itself, the bank 

building is permitted by right.

6. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will 

appropriately mitigate anticipated noise to a level compatible with that 

which would result from a development permitted by right.  Any purposed 

use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 

15.24, Noise control. 

The proposed two land ATM drive-thru will not generate a substantial 

amount of noise that will negatively impact the adjacent uses

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which 

encroaches onto any residential property in excess of the allowed in section 

23.4-40, Exterior Lighting. 



Page 5

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

Please see the submitted photometric plan displaying that this two lane 

ATM drive-thru does not create a substantial amount of glare that would 

negatively impact the residential property to the north. 

G.) Additional requirements.  Prior to approving any conditional use permit, the decision 

making authority shall ensure that the following requirements have been met:

1. Any and all outstanding code enforcement fees and fines related to the project site 

have paid to the city. 

There are no outstanding code enforcement fees and fines related to this project 

site. 

2. Any previously imposed conditions of approval for the use at the site have been 

met, if applicable, unless request for amendment of conditions is part of the current 

conditional use permit application. 

There are no known conditions of approval for the existing project.

Compliance with the Site Design Qualitative Standards in Section 23.3-31

1. Harmonious and efficient organization.  All elements of the site plan shall be 

harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation to topography, the size and type of 

plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of buildings.  The site 

shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these LDRs. 

This site adheres to all LDRS and fits the urban character of the neighborhood.  

2. Preservation of Natural conditions.  The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 

of these LDRS) landscape shall be preserved in its natural state to the greatest degree 

possible, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil removal and by such other 

site planning approaches as are appropriate.  Terrain and vegetation shall not be 

disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within 

or adjacent to a development site.  

Landscape design is based on-site discussion regarding trees to be removed, 

street tree infill and other design considerations.



Page 6

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

3. Screening and buffering.  Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided 

where needed and practical to protect residents and user from undesirable views, 

lighting noise, odors or other adverse off-site effects, and to protect residents and 

users of off-site development from on-site adverse effects.  This section may be 

interpreted to required screening and buffering in addition to that specifically required 

by other section of these LDRs, but not less. 

This development will provide adequate site lighting, landscaping, and other 

design criteria that will meet LDR requirements and be pleasing to the eye.  No 

fences are proposed.

4. Enhancement of residential privacy.  The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual 

and acoustical privacy for all dwelling units located therein and adjacent thereto.  

Fences, walks, barrier sand vegetation shall be arranged for the protection and 

enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the occupants. 

This is a commercial development, and the proposed landscaping and site 

improvements will be an enhancement to the surrounding properties. 

5. Emergency access.  Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to 

permit emergency vehicle access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings.

Due to the fact that this subject site is located in the Downtown District of Lake 

Worth, this site is bordered by Lucerne Avenue that is a one way that directs traffic 

west, Lake Avenue is a one way that direct traffic east, North O Street and N 

Palmway allow for traffic to move North and South.  This site has adequate access 

for all emergency and maintenance vehicles. No fire access is proposed within 

the interior of the site, there are sufficient public rights of way in proximity to all

sides of the building.

6. Access to public ways.  All buildings, dwellings units and other facilities shall have 

safe and convenient access to a public street, walkway or other area dedicated to 

common use; curb cuts close to railroad crossings shall be avoided.

As mentioned before, this subject site is located in the Downtown District and due 

to the Downtown District Land Development Regulations, it promotes public 

walkability.  This building is located five feet from the property line, adjacent to the 

street with two accessible entry points. 



Page 7

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

7. Pedestrian.  There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is 

insulated as completely as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system. 

Existing sidewalks encompass the subject site providing pedestrian circulation 

adequate for ADA compliance as well as the safe and orderly pedestrian 

movement from parked vehicles and pedestrian access from the public right of 

way.  

8. Design of ingress and egress.  The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress 

drives to the site will be arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and 

private ways and on adjacent private property.  Merging and turnout lanes traffic 

dividers shall be provided where they would significantly improve safety for vehicles 

and pedestrians. 

This site currently has two 24’ ingress and egress drives.  One (egress only) is 

located on Lake Avenue and the other (ingress only) is located on Lucerne

Avenue.  Due to this development, an existing egress point onto Lake Avenue will 

be closed and sidewalk will be constructed to match existing paver bricks.  This 

will minimize negative impacts and improve safety for both vehicles and 

pedestrians.   Existing access from the platted 10’ alley will be maintained.

9. Coordination of the on-site circulation with offsite circulation.  The arrangement 

of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated 

with the pattern of existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in 

the area.  Minor streets shall not be connected to major streets in such a way as to 

facilitate improper utilization. 

Offsite circulations currently exists.  To enhance the safety of circulation an egress 

point has been closed on Lake Avenue.  A sidewalk will be built in place and will 

match existing sidewalk paver bricks. 

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way.  On-site public street and right-of-way shall 

be designed for maximum efficiency.  They shall occupy no more land than is required 

to provide access, no shall they unnecessarily fragment development into small 

blocks.  Large developments containing extensive public right-of-way shall have said 

rights-of-way arranged in a hierarchy with local streets providing direct access to 

parcels and other streets providing no or limited direct access to parcels. 

No on site public right of way is a part of this petition.



Page 8

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas.  Off-street parking, 

loading and vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and screened to 

minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 

Off-street parking is located to be screened by a landscape buffer of hedge 

material and street trees that provides an adequate screen from adjacent property 

without creating a safety concern (CPTED).  The on-site circulation includes 

customer parking and a two lane drive through (ATM machines) for customer use.

12. Refuse and service areas.  Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and 

screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 

This financial institution will utilize two types of waste removal. The first type of 

service is a trash enclosure and bin that is located on-site.  The second type of 

service is used for security reasons, the bank disposes of its trash (largely private 

paperwork that requires shredding or other form of handling) through a private 

service.

13. Protection of property values.  The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so 

as to have minimum negative impact on the property values of adjoining property. 

This development will not have a negative impact on the surrounding properties’ 

value.  The development is architecturally pleasing and has met all design criteria 

to increase visual appearance. 

14. Transitional development.  Where the property being developed is located on the 

edge of the zoning district, the site plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious 

transition between districts.  Building exteriors shall complement other buildings in the 

vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, rhythm of openings and character.  Consideration 

shall be given to a harmonious transition in height and designed style so that the 

change in zoning districts is not accentuated.  Additional consideration shall be given 

to complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development 

The subject site is not at the edge of a zoning district.

15. Consideration of future development.  In findings whether or not the above 

standards are met, the review authority shall consider likely future development as 

well as existing development. 

The applicant has asked for consideration of the existing and future operations of 

the subject property in reference to solid waste/dumpster provision.  A future 

location for an enclosed dumpster is shown on the site plan which can be utilized 

if the proposed use of financial institution were to change.



Page 9

kimley-horn.com 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 100, Delray Beach, FL 33445 561 330 2345

Compliance with Community Appearance Criteria Section 23.3-32(I)

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, 

and in general contributes to the image of the City as a place of beauty, spaciousness, 

harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and high quality.  The proposed bank branch has 

incorporated extensive architectural improvements to the façade (glazing, articulation, 

height) as well as the floor plan layout (re positioning of interior spaces to allow for 

increased street side glazing and transparency) in response to preliminary comments 

from City staff.  The proposed building easily fits within the intent of a beautiful, tasteful 

and high quality City aesthetic.

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality 

such as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially 

depreciate in appearance and value. As referenced above the proposed structure’s 

design and appearance will be high quality and relates to the pedestrian orientation of 

Lake Avenue.

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general 

area, with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the 

comprehensive plan for the City, and the criteria set forth herein.  The proposed structure is 

in harmony with the existing built environmental surrounding the project.  While the 

land development code provides for potential incentives to height and density with the 

incorporation of sustainable design elements, this maximum development intensity is 

not a requirement of redevelopment.  The proposed project has complied with all other 

aspects of the land development code and comprehensive plan. 

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable. 

As described in the above paragraphs, this project is in compliance with the City of 

Lake Worth Land Development Code, ‘Site Design Qualitative Standards’, and 

‘Community Appearance Criteria.’  

Thank you for your consideration of the proposed request; please feel free to contact me at 

561-404-7244 or via email at mark.rickards@kimley-horn.com should you have any questions 

or concerns.

Mark Rickards, AICP





City Of Lake Worth
Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461

Phone: 561-586-1687 

DATE: June 1, 2016

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning Board

FROM: Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner

Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation

SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 15-01400004 and 16-00500012:  Request by Mark 

Rickards, AICP, Kimley-Horn, for consideration of a Major Site Plan and Conditional Land 

Use to allow construction of a Single Story financial commercial office building with 

drive through facilities totaling +/- 3,691 square feet and the associated site 

improvements on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) located at 200 Lake Avenue 

(PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-512-0010), located in the Downtown Zoning District (DT). This 

request is pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs. 

Meeting Date: June 1, 2016

SYNOPSIS:

Applicant Mr. Mark Rickards, AICP representing the Applicant

General Location 200 Lake Avenue

Zoning Downtown (DT)

Existing Land Use Three Land Drive Through Facility

Future Land Use 

Designation
Downtown Mixed Use (DMU)

Applicable Municipal 

Code Sections
23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32

Required Proposed/Existing

Lot Area 6,500 square feet 27,000 square feet



Lot Width
25 feet on Lake and Lucerne Avenue; 

50 feet in general
135 feet

Building Height

Comprehensive 

Plan: Maximum 

30’ (not to exceed 

two stories) plus 

15 feet (max 4 

stories) with 

Sustainable Bonus 

Incentive Program

Zoning Code: 

Maximum 30’ (not 

to exceed two 

stories) plus 15 

feet (max 4 

stories) with 

Sustainable Bonus 

Incentive Program

24 feet

Setbacks Required Provided

Front (Lake Avenue) 10 feet minimum, 22 feet maximum 5 feet

Side (North O Street) 10 feet 10 feet

Side (Alleyway) 10 feet 33 feet

Rear (Lucerne Avenue) 5 feet 151 feet

Bonus Height and 

Stories
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Living Area Not Applicable Not Applicable

Accessory Structure 

Limitations
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Impermeable Surface 

Total
80% maximum

37%

(+/-9,983 sq. ft.) 

Maximum Building 

Coverage
60% 14% (+/- 3,691 sq. ft.)

Floor Area Ratio 1.1  0.137

Parking 1 per 300 square feet (13 spaces) 27 spaces provided

Board Action

Required

Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 

request for additional information;  



Staff 

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Land Use and 

Major Site Plan, with conditions, to allow for the construction of a Single 

Story financial commercial office building with drive through facilities

totaling +/- 3,691 square feet and the associated site improvements on a 

+/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) located at 200 Lake Avenue

Name and Title Initials

Project Planner Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner CT

Approved by
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and 

Preservation
MD

Project/Property Description:

The applicant is proposing to convert the existing Financial Institution/office purely to an office use, no 

modification or additional square footage is proposed for the eastern half of the project.  The western 

half currently supports a detached three lane drive-through facility.  The applicant will demolish the 

existing drive through lane canopy and construct a new 3,691 square foot Financial Institution with drive 

through facilities.  Part of this redevelopment includes the closing of an egress point onto Lake Avenue, 

which will be improved to match the adjacent paver brick sidewalk.  

The site plan was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team (SPRT) at their regular meeting on November 

9, 2015.  The SPRT recommended a number of conditions of approval, which have been included for the 

Board’s reference.

The following analysis includes a discussion about the specific site improvements the applicant is 
proposing followed by an analysis that addresses each of the two (2) part request outlined in the project 
description.

ANALYSIS: 

As mentioned above, the applicant is proposing to construction of a Single Story financial commercial 
office building totaling +/- 3,691 square feet with drive through facilities on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 
square feet) located at 200 Lake Avenue (PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-512-0010), located in the Downtown 
Zoning District (DT). 

Public Support/Opposition

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

The applicant’s proposal to construction of a Single Story commercial financial office building totaling +/-
3,691 square feet with drive through facilities on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) located at 



200 Lake Avenue. The subject site is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan objectives and 
policies, which are outlined below:

• Policy 1.1.3.6: Redevelopment opportunities will be maximized through use of mixed land use 
designations that permit a flexible mix of multifamily residential and compatible office uses.

The project site has a Future Land Use Designation of Downtown Mixed Use (DMU).  The 
Downtown (DT) zoning designation, which is the zoning of the project site, is intended to 
“encourage through incentives the use of innovative land planning and development techniques 
to create more desirable and attractive development in the City”.  The Downtown Mixed Use 
Land Use designation is intended to provide for the establishment and expansion of a broad 
range of office, retail and commercial uses, including higher intensity commercial within the 
traditional downtown core of the City. The implementing zoning districts are DT, MU-E, MF-20 
and MF-30.

• Policy 1.2.2.: Locational Strategy for the Downtown Mixed Use

The Downtown Mixed Use land use category is intended for mapping of areas considered to be 

the traditional downtown core. The area is primarily bounded on the north by 2nd Avenue North, 

the east by Golfview Road, the south by 1st Avenue South, and the west by H Street. This 

concentrated downtown core demonstrates a reasonably good potential for intensive use by 

office and retail establishments and shall provide for the vertical or horizontal mixing of land uses 

within a single site in order to allow development and redevelopment in specific geographic 

areas of the City that take maximum advantage of existing utility systems and services.

The applicant is proposing a compact development in the Downtown Mixed Use land use category.  

Existing public services, including potable water, sewer, fire and police services, are adequate to serve 

the project. The compact nature shall be consistent with the Downtown Mixed Use future land use 

designation and this policy.

It is evident through consistency with the identified objectives and policies that the project is consistent 

with the adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection 
of public interest, as follows:

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the
uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate
area where located.

Staff Response: The proposed use will be in harmony with the intent of the Downtown Mixed Use 
Zoning District to construction of a Single Story financial commercial financial office building totaling +/-
3,691 square feet and the associated site improvements.



2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with
existing uses in the immediate area where located.

Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows:

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District
Current Use/  
Name of Development

North Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Downtown (DT)
Residential 
Condominiums

South Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Downtown (DT) Residential Uses

East Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Downtown (DT) Offices

West Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Downtown (DT) Financial Institution

The majority of existing uses are commercial and multi-family residential in nature.  Therefore, the 
proposed use shall be in harmony with the existing mix of commercial uses in the immediate area.

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater
harm than would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other
conditional use permitted on the Property.

Staff Response: The proposed use will be compatible with the Future Land Use designation (Downtown 
Mixed Use) and may stimulate development of the surrounding area.  The proposed use will not result 
in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would result from a use permitted by right  

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of
when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan.

Staff Response: The proposed financial use will not result in a more intensive development than that 
approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Rather, the commercial nature
of the use shall be compatible with the planning goals, objectives and policies of the Future Land Use 
Element as identified above under Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in a
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than
would result from a development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed financial institution will not generate traffic volumes or movements, 
which will reduce the level of service provided on any street to a lower level than would result from a 
development permitted by right.  The applicant has provided a Traffic Impact Analysis letter prepared 
by Palm Beach County’s Traffic Division. Based on the County’s review, the proposed development 
does not have a significant peak hour traffic impact as defined in the Palm Beach County Traffic 



Performance Standards (TPS) on the roadway network and therefore meets the Traffic Performance 
Standards of Palm Beach County.

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on
local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located
with respect to collector and arterial streets.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of 
through traffic on local streets.  Traffic accessing the site is anticipated to come from Lucerne Avenue 
along the north side of the site and through the existing alleyway to the west of the site from Lake 
Avenue. 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions.

Staff Response: The proposed financial institution does not include any operational features that would 
produce significant air pollution emissions.

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither
extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net
public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: the proposed use will not require neither extension nor enlargement nor any other
alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost
than would result from development permitted by right.

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm
sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor
any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion
of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will be served by existing utilities such that neither 
extension nor enlargement is necessary as a result of the project.

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service
beyond the capacity of those services.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police 
or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by 
right.

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by
right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24,
Noise control.



Staff Response: The proposed expansion is not anticipated to generate significant noise.  

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent
property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting.

Staff Response: The proposed lighting plan for the project is anticipated to be in compliance with 
Section 23.4-3, which requires that lighting not impact residential properties by more than one (1) foot-
candle.  Please see the attached plan for additional details

Section 23.2-31: Site Design Qualitative Standards

1. Harmonious and efficient organization. 

Staff Response: All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation 
to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of 
buildings.  The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these LDRs. The criterion has been met.

2. Preservation of natural conditions. 

Staff Response: The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRS) landscape shall be 

preserved in its natural state to the greatest degree possible, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and 

soil removal and by such other site planning approaches as are appropriate.  Terrain and vegetation shall 

not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or 

adjacent to a development site.   This criterion has been met.

3. Screening and buffering. 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing landscaping and buffering which will meet the requirements 
of the LDRs. The landscape plan is attached for the board’s review as depicted in sheet L 1.00 and L 1.01.

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. 

Staff Response: This project does not involved residential privacy.

5. Emergency access. 

Staff Response: Due to the fact that this subject site is located in the Downtown District of Lake Worth, 
this site is bordered by Lucerne Avenue that is a one way that directs traffic west, Lake Avenue is a one 
way that direct traffic east, North O Street and N Palmway allow for traffic to move North and South.  
This site has adequate access for all emergency and maintenance vehicles.  No fire access is proposed 
within the interior of the site, there are sufficient public rights of way in proximity to all sides of the 
building.   The criterion has been met.

6. Access to public ways. 



Staff Response: Access to public rights-of-way to the project is being provided via Lucerne Avenue and 
an existing 24 foot wide alleyway to the east of the site.  The criterion has been met.

7. Pedestrian circulation. 

Staff Response:  Existing sidewalks encompass the subject site providing pedestrian circulation 
adequate for ADA compliance as well as the safe and orderly pedestrian movement from parked 
vehicles and pedestrian access from the public right of way. This criterion has been met.

 
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. 

Staff Response: This site currently has two 24’ ingress and egress drives.  One (egress only) is located on 
Lake Avenue and the other (ingress only) is located on Lucerne Avenue.  Due to this development, an 
existing egress point onto Lake Avenue will be closed and sidewalk will be constructed to match existing 
paver bricks. Customers will access the site from Lake Avenue using a two way alleyway for ingress and 
egress. This will minimize negative impacts and improve safety for both vehicles and pedestrians.  
Existing access from the platted 10’ alley will be maintained.  The criterion has been met.

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation.

Staff Response: Off-site circulations currently exists.  To enhance the safety of circulation an egress 
point has been closed on Lake Avenue.  A sidewalk will be built in place and will match existing sidewalk 
paver bricks.  The criterion has been met.

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. 

Staff Response: There are no on-site public streets or rights-of-ways associated with the project site.  
The criterion is not applicable  

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. 

Staff Response: Off-street parking will be screened by a landscape buffer of hedge material and street 
trees that provides an adequate screen from adjacent property without creating a safety concern 
(CPTED).  The on-site circulation includes customer parking and a two lane drive through (ATM 
machines) for customer use.  

12. Refuse and service areas.

Staff Response: This financial institution will not utilize a trash enclosure and bin.  A future space has 
been provided if the use of the building changes.  For security reasons, the bank disposes of its trash 
(largely private paperwork that requires shredding or other form of handling) through a private service.  
The full planting palette is depicted on the proposed landscape plan.  The criterion has been met.

13. Protection of property values. 



Staff Response: This development will not have a negative impact on the surrounding properties’ value.  
The development is architecturally pleasing and has met all design criteria to increase visual appearance.   
The redeveloped site should have a positive effect on property values in the immediate area.  The 
criterion has been met. 

14. Transitional development. 

Staff Response: The subject site is not at the edge of a zoning district    

15. Consideration of future development.

Staff Response: The applicant has asked for consideration of the existing and future operations of the 
subject property in reference to solid waste/dumpster provision.  A future location for an enclosed 
dumpster is shown on the site plan which can be utilized if the proposed use of the financial institution 
were to change.   The type of compact urban development proposed by the applicant is consistent with 
the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The redeveloped site is expected to serve as a 
catalyst for investment in Downtown Lake Worth.  The criterion has been met. 

 
d) Buildings, generally.

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity of 
character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be 
such as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is 
immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the 
city, the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, 
value and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the 
buildings be the same. 

Staff Response: The proposed commercial building will be design to be compatible with the existing 
commercial/retail uses in the DT zoning district. Meets criterion.

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified 
multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible 
under the circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary 
requirements shall be met, including honest design construction, proper design concepts, and 
appropriateness to the city. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. 
Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building. 

Staff Response: The building facades shall be designed to meet this criterion.



4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. 
Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, 
orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural 
components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic 
expression. 

Staff Response: The proposed structure shall be designed to meet this criterion.

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not 
to be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned 
development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, 
or are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each other. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible with 
the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not be 
allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an aesthetic 
asset to the building, project and neighborhood. 

Staff Response: The proposed use is not designed for advertising purposes, the intent is to provide a 
financial service for the residents of Lake Worth and Palm Beach County.  Meets criterion.

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in an 
aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not 
compatible to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the 
building or grounds at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the 
building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will be detrimental to 
the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for functional as well as 
aesthetic value. 

Staff Response: The project as proposed meets this criterion.

8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood.

Staff Response: All building surfaces, walls and roofs are proposed to be compatible and in harmony 
with the surrounding vicinity. Meets criterion.

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a 
building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to 
constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood. 

Staff Response:  This proposal does not involve a retail or wholesale activity. 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. 
They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood. 



Staff Response: Meets criterion.

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private 
property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate 
structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be 
readily visible from off-premises. 

Staff Response: No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. Meets criterion.

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is also 
to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving atmosphere 
of the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be approved. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers. 

Staff Response: No such advertising has been proposed by this applicant. Meets criterion.

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light spillage 
onto adjacent residential properties is minimized.

Staff Response: The proposal has been designed to meet this criterion.

Section 23.4-13 (14) Drive Through Facilities:

Visibility: The facility, including the stacking lanes must not be visible from public rights-of-way.

Staff Response: The facility and the vehicular stacking area is be screened with adequate landscaping

along North O Street and Lucerne Avenue to provide the necessary buffering needed to screen this use 

from adjacent properties. The drive through area is proposed to be located along the northern portion 

of the site, and is separated by a +/- 10 foot wide landscape buffer between the principal building and 

the drive through facilities.

Separation: Each drive-through lane will be separated from circulation routes necessary for ingress or 

egress from the property or access to any parking space.

Staff Response: As mentioned above, the entire drive through area is separated from the principal 

building and its parking area by a landscaped buffer located at the northern portion of the subject site.

Drive-through facilities shall be 100 feet from any residential zoning district.

Staff Response: The proposed drive through facilities is proposed be at least 100 feet from any 

residential zoning district.

Marking. Each drive-through lane shall be striped, marked, or otherwise distinctly delineated in a 

manner acceptable to the city.



Staff Response: Each drive through lane will be striped, marked as required by the LDRs. Criterion has 

been met.

Queuing and stacking. The queuing or vehicle stacking capacity of a drive-through facility shall be at 

least 100 feet. The minimum distance shall be measured from the centerline of the window closest to 

the edge of right-of-way from which access is provided. The stacking capacity may be increased based 

upon individual circumstances as determined by the city.

Staff Response: Criterion has been met.

Drive-through facilities shall not be allowed on any building facade that directly fronts on a public or 

private right-of-way. On eligible building facades (sides and/or rear) the following design standards are 

required where windows for drive-through facilities are proposed:

All principal and accessory structures related to the drive-through facilities shall be 100 feet from any 

residential zoning district.

Staff Response: This criterion has been met.

The building facade is proposed to have windows that occupy no less than 25% of the facade and that 

are located at the pedestrian level. A maximum of 10% of this 25% may be non-transparent windows.

Staff Response: The proposed building facade shall meet this criterion.

The building facade will be modulated and divided into smaller identifiable pieces to articulate the plane 

of the facade.

Staff Response: This criterion shall be met.

The building facade shall have at least one offset having a roof.

Staff Response: This criterion shall be met.

Additional landscaping for the screening of drive-through facilities is required in accordance with Article 

6, Section 23.6-1 Landscape Regulations.

Staff Response: This criterion has been met through the landscape plan (please see sheet L 100).

Roofing. Roofs constructed as part of a drive-through facilities shall be consistent with the architectural 

style, materials, and colors of the principal structure.

Staff Response: The proposed structures as proposed will meet this criterion.

Noise. Any drive-up or drive-through speaker system shall emit no more than 65 (dB) decibels and at no 

time shall any speaker system be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real property 

lines of the site. The system shall be designed to compensate for ambient noise levels in the immediate 

area.

Staff Response: This criterion shall be met.



Conclusion:

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Major Site Plan and 
Conditional Land Use requests.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district 
and surrounding areas, subject to compliance with staff’s proposed conditions of approval.

CONSEQUENT ACTION: 

The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision on the Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use will be final. 
The staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Major Site Plan and Conditional 
Use to allow construction of a Single Story financial commercial building with a drive through totaling +/-
3,691 square feet and the associated site improvements on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) 
located at 200 Lake Avenue, in the Downtown Zoning District (DT). This request is pursuant to Sections 
23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.4-13 of the LDRs.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the following on the various requests: 

Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board APPROVE the Major Site Plan to allow construction 
of a Single Story financial commercial office building with drive through facilities totaling +/- 3,691 
square feet and the associated site improvements on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) located 
at 200 Lake Avenue located in the Downtown Zoning District (DT). This request is pursuant to Sections 
23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs.

Staff also recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board APPROVE a Conditional Land Use to allow 
construction of a Single Story financial commercial office building with drive through facilities totaling 
+/- 3,691 square feet and the associated site improvements on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) 
located at 200 Lake Avenue, located in the Downtown Zoning District (DT). This request is pursuant to 
Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.4-13 of the LDRs.

POTENTIAL MOTION:

Should the Planning & Zoning Board concur with staff’s recommendation the following motions are 
recommended:

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 15-01400004: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 15-01400004:  
A Major Site Plan to allow construction of a Single Story commercial financial office building totaling +/-
3,691 square feet with drive through facilities on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) located at 
200 Lake Avenue, located in the Downtown Zoning District (DT).

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-00500012: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-00500012:  
A Conditional Land Use to allow construction of a Single Story commercial financial office building 
totaling +/- 3,691 square feet with drive through facilities on a +/- .62 acre parcel (27,000 square feet) 
located at 200 Lake Avenue, located in the Downtown Zoning District (DT).



LOCATION MAP

Attachments: 
A. Conditions of Approval
B. Proposed Plans

Survey
Site Plan 
Architectural Plans
Photometric Plan
Landscape Plan
Preliminary Paving, Graving and Drainage Plans
Traffic Statement



DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR
PZB CASE No. 14-01400004 & 16-00500012

Date of Preparation: May 23, 2016
P&ZB Meeting Date: June 1, 2016
Applicant: Chase Bank
Location: 200 Lake Avenue

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 14-01400004 & 16-00500012

Standard Conditions of Approval:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code. 

2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 
granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval.

3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied.

4. This approval is for a conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29 for a Major Site Plan and
Conditional Use Permit approval to allow for a proposed single story financial institution with
drive through facilities totaling +/- 3,691 square feet on a +/- 0.62 acre site within the Downtown 
(DT) Zoning District, pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.4-13 of the 
Land Development Regulations (LDRs). This use must operate in compliance with all state and 
local laws that govern this use.

5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 
to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.

Additional Conditions of Approval:

Planning and Zoning

1. The applicant shall provide an easement of parking access along the alleyway prior to the issuance 
of a Certificate of Occupancy.

2. No outdoor storage shall be permitted on the property without the request and approval of a 
separate conditional land use application.



PZB No. 15-01400004 & 16-00500012
200 Lake Avenue

Major Site Plan &Conditional Land Use Application
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 2

3. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Section 23.5-1 Signs, and shall require approval 
of a building permit application before installation.

4. All fully operated activities shall occur within the building and within the site’s property lines.

5. Upon submittal of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a revised site plan indicating the 
location of the principal building along Lake Avenue to be 10 feet from the front property line as 
required by the Land Development Regulations, Section 23.3-14.  

Public Services:

6. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake 
Worth Public Services Construction Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual.

7. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied 
under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services.

8. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall re-stripe the off-site parking 
stalls with thermoplastic paint along North O Street in compliance with the Public Services 
Department’s specifications.

9. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire 
surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater 
system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other 
improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction.

10. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and 
indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices.

Electric Utilities

11. Developer must provide a load calculation and voltage requirements prior to obtaining a building 
permit.

Water Utilities

The building department Engineering Submittal shall include the following:



PZB No. 15-01400004 & 16-00500012
200 Lake Avenue

Major Site Plan &Conditional Land Use Application
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 3

1. All final engineering plans. At a minimum, label all pipes, meters, valves and fittings (size, 

material, slope), and all structure rim and invert elevations. 

2. Fire Flow calculations based on recent flow test.

3. Signed and Sealed Drainage Calculations including Statement regarding Floodplain 

Management.

4. Any storm water permits from LWDD and SFWMD, if applicable.

5. All applicable City of Lake Worth details.

6. Address Traffic Performance Standards, including outside agencies review, if applicable.

7. Prior to building permit issuance, reserved capacity fees for water and sewer must be 

paid in full in accordance with the current City Ordinance.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 16-00500012

Conditional Land Use

1. The subject site shall remain clear and clean of any trash or debris when the business has closed 
for the day.

2. Any activities associated with the operation of the business shall emit no more than 65 (db) 
decibels and at no time be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real property 
lines of the site. 

Approved by:

_________________________
Maxime Ducoste
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation



 

10.8 14.1 14.6 11.3

17.8 17.5 14.1 14.0 13.9 14.3

16.8 16.8 17.1 17.4 18.0

14.1 14.4 14.7 15.0



 

ATM 3

ATM 2

Z

MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 10.6 MH: 10.6

Z

S5-2

MH: 25

17.6 15.2 16.9

20.8 17.0 15.0 16.7 20.9

22.9 20.5 14.2 13.2 17.8 20.7 20.3

20.8 19.6 21.0

26.5 22.3 20.0 22.5 25.7

27.9 23.3 19.3 16.8 19.8 24.0 26.5

8.8 9.5 8.3 7.6 6.8 5.4 5.0 3.5

8.6 8.1 9.7 15.9 13.9 11.2 6.2 4.1

8.0 7.3 10.7 12.5 4.4 2.7

7.1 8.1 8.9 12.7 4.7 3.0

6.0 6.6 8.3 3.3 6.5 6.7 4.1 3.1

4.8 5.3 5.6 6.0 4.2 4.4 3.7 3.1

3.6

3.2

2.5

2.4



 

N
O
R
T
H
 
O
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
(
O
N
E
 
W
A
Y
)

LAKE AVENUE (ONE WAY)

ATM 1

ATM 3

ATM 2

SFT

MH: 25

SFT

MH: 25

W

MH: 15

W1

MH: 15

Z

MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 10.6 MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 18

W1

W1

MH: 18

W1

MH: 15

W1

MH: 18

MH: 25

S5-2

S5

MH: 25

W

MH: 15

W

MH: 15

MH: 15

W W

MH: 15

W

MH: 15

17.6 15.2 16.9

20.8 17.0 15.0 16.7 20.9

22.9 20.5 14.2 13.2 17.8 20.7 20.3

20.8 19.6 21.0

26.5 22.3 20.0 22.5 25.7

27.9 23.3 19.3 16.8 19.8 24.0 26.5

3.1 6.5 5.7

5.4 5.6 6.2 7.6 10.8 14.1 14.6 11.3 9.9 5.7 7.0 5.2

5.3 5.1 5.5 5.7 6.1 6.6 6.9 7.5 7.1 6.5 5.3 3.9

4.2 4.3 4.3 4.1 3.9 3.9 4.5 4.5 4.2 4.0 3.4

3.7 3.6 3.2 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.3

3.1 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6

3.8 3.9 3.8 3.7

17.8 17.5 14.1 14.0 13.9 14.3

16.8 16.8 17.1 17.4 18.0

14.1 14.4 14.7 15.0

4.5 4.3 3.9 3.4

6.0 5.8 5.5 5.0 4.1 3.0 2.0

7.0 7.1 6.8 6.5 6.0 5.3 4.2 3.5 2.4

7.6 8.1 8.1 7.5 6.6 5.7 4.6 4.2 3.0

7.3 8.0 8.8 9.5 8.3 7.6 6.8 5.4 5.0 3.5

7.2 7.9 8.6 8.1 9.7 15.9 13.9 11.2 6.2 4.1

6.7 7.5 8.0 7.3 10.7 12.5 4.4 2.7

6.1 6.6 7.1 8.1 8.9 12.7 4.7 3.0

5.1 5.5 6.0 6.6 8.3 3.3 6.5 6.7 4.1 3.1

4.1 4.3 4.8 5.3 5.6 6.0 4.2 4.4 3.7 3.1

3.4 3.8 4.3 4.6 4.9 3.8 3.9 3.5 3.0

2.6 3.0 3.4 3.8 4.0 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.8

2.5 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.8

3.3 2.2 1.2

3.5 2.2 1.3

2.9 1.5

2.9 1.5

2.6 1.4

3.0 2.2 1.4

3.1 2.6 2.1 1.6

2.0 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.0

2.3 3.3 3.5 3.9 4.5 4.9 5.0 4.8 2.4

2.8 3.9 4.1 4.4 5.0 5.7 6.0

3.6 4.5 4.8 5.3 5.7 6.2

4.1 4.5 4.8 5.6 6.0 6.4

3.8 4.6 4.7 5.4 5.8

2.8 3.8 4.2 4.5 5.2

2.2 3.3 3.5 4.0 4.7

1.9 2.9 3.1 3.4

2.9 2.9

2.5 2.6 2.4

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.7

2.0

2.5

3.1

3.6

3.2

2.5

2.4

2.4

2.2

2.22.42.52.92.92.82.62.32.12.12.22.12.31.50.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.4

3.7

6.4

8.6

10.0

7.5

7.7

8.9 5.4 5.4 4.6 2.0 1.4 3.6 5.8 5.1 8.6 7.8 4.4 2.4 1.2

10.5 7.9 7.2 7.8 4.1 1.6 1.0 1.7 4.3 7.7 7.2 12.6 10.8 8.2 5.5 3.0 1.7 0.8

7.1 7.3 7.2 10.1 6.0 3.3 1.9 1.0

9.3 3.5 3.2 2.4 1.7 1.0

11.2 3.7 3.7

9.1 3.7 3.4

6.9

5.5 1.8 3.4

3.1 2.2 4.1

1.4 2.2 3.9

0.7 1.5 3.3 3.7

0.4 0.8 3.0 3.3

0.3 0.5

0.3 0.6

0.3 0.6

0.3 1.0

0.2 1.5

0.3 1.9

0.2 1.7

0.3 1.2

0.3 0.8

0.3 0.6

0.3 0.5 3.8 4.0

0.2 0.4 2.6 2.8 3.3 3.5

0.2 0.6 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8

0.1 0.8 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.5

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Arrangement [MANUFAC] Description

Calculation Summary

SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-PLED-VSQ-M-80LED-1050mA-NW 24955 0.860 266.1

1 S5-2 BACK-BACK U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-PLED-VSQ-M-80LED-1050mA-NW 24955 0.860 266.1

2 SFT SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-PLED-FT-80LED-1050mA-NW-HS 16796 0.860 260

6 W SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-WM1-II-FR-20PLED-1050mA-NW 5952 0.860 66.7

Lum. Lumens LLF Lum. Watts

Label CalcType Units Avg Max

5 W1 SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-WM1-IV-20PLED-1050mA-NW 5797 0.860 66.7

ATM3 Face Illuminance Fc 22.40 27.9 16.8 1.33 1.66

Misc Areas Illuminance Fc 3.15 12.6 0.1 31.50 126.00

Parking Illuminance Fc 3.55 6.4 1.2 2.96 5.33

Property Line Illuminance Fc 2.63 10.0 0.1 26.30 100.00

4 Z SINGLE Lithonia Lighting DMW2 3000LM ND AFL MVOLT 40K 80CRI 3518 0.860 27.85

Min Avg/Min Max/Min

ATM1 Area Illuminance Fc 5.07 14.6 2.3 2.20 6.35

ATM1 Face Illuminance Fc 15.73 18.0 13.9 1.13 1.29

ATM2 and 3 Area Illuminance Fc 5.59 15.9 2.0 2.80 7.95

ATM2 Face

1 S5

Illuminance Fc 17.98 22.9 13.2 1.36 1.73



ATM 1

ATM 3

ATM 2

FFE = 9.00'
+/- 3,691 S.F.

C
H

A
S

E
B

A
N

K
20

0
L

A
K

E
A

V
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

F
O

R

B
D

G
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

,L
LP

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
X

H
IB

IT

C-100/A

©

NORTH

Parking Breakdown

Chase Bank

Required Parking @ 1 Space / 300 SF 12

Provided on-site parking 27

Provided street parking 12

TOTAL 39

2 Story Office Building

Required Parking @ 1 Space / 300 SF, But
No Less Than 0.8 Space Per Employee

40

Provided on-site parking 30

Provided street Parking 10

TOTAL 40



SIGHT

VISIBILITY

LINE

SIGHT

VISIBILITY

LINE

PROPERTY

LINE (EAST

PROPERTY

NIC)

PAVER BRICK

TO MATCH

EXISTING

CHASE MONUMENT

SIGN TO REMAIN

SOD

SOD

SOD

TRA

37

LAN

16

DIA

40

LAN

21

BUL

31

LAN

29

QH

1

DIA

24

LAN

24

CRI

3

MUH

15

COD

3

BUL

31

CNE

2

BBE

2

CHR

29

WB

6

CHR

72

CRI

3

IXO

12

HIB

7

MUH

14

RHA

4

MUH

5

MUH

5

CRI

6

LAN

32

COD

7

RHA

14

IXO

9

HIB

9

TRA

66

MUH

19

CRI

9

BUL

36

LAN

19

TRA

25

DIA

23

LAN

19

BUL

64

LAN

39

CNE

2

DIA

35

DIA

36

IXO

19

LAN

33

BUL

34

TRA

69

LAN

55

TRA

33

DIA

32

LAN

34

DIA

29

TRA

35

MUH

15

TRA

57

TRA

23

MUH

7

BUL

8

COD

6

CRI

6

IXO

18

DIA

62

BUL

7

HIB

3

WB

1

COE

4

QH

4

TRA

69

SP

6

QH

1

WOE

1

STEEL EDGE TYP.

MULCH TYP.

MULCH TYP.

STEEL EDGE TYP.

COD

8

WB

1

QH

3

QV2

2

CS

1

TRA

12

RHA

19

MULCH TYP.

BUL

10

TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS REMARKS

                                         QH 9 Quercus virginiana `High Rise` / High Rise Live Oak 4" cal, 16` ht, 6`spr Full, Straight, Single leader

                                         QV2 2 Quercus virginiana `High Rise` / High Rise Live Oak 6" cal, 18` ht, 6` spr Specimen with branching characteristic.

(6" reqired for mitigation < 18")

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS REMARKS

                                         BBE 2 Bucida buceras / Black Olive Existing EXISTING TO REMAIN

                                         CNE 4 Cocos nucifera / Coconut Palm Existing EXISITING TO REMAIN

                                         COE 4 Chrysophyllum oliviforme / Satinleaf Existing EXISTING TO REMAIN

                                         WOE 1 Wodyetia bifurcata / Foxtail Palm Existing EXISTING TO REMAIN

PALM TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS REMARKS

                                         SP 6 Sabal palmetto / Palmetto FG 6` CT. min. 12` OA min. Smooth, Straight

                                         WB 8 Wodyetia bifurcata / Foxtail Palm FG 6` CT. min. 12` OA min. Straight

UNDERSTORY TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS REMARKS

                                         CS 1 Cordia sebestena / Orange Geiger Tree 2.5" cal. 10` ht. 4` spr Full, Straight, Single leader

SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS REMARKS

                                         CHR 101 Chrysobalanus icaco / Cocoplum 30" ht, 24" spr, 24" oc Full

                                         COD 24 Codiaeum variegatum `Norma` / Croton 24" ht, 18" spr, 36" oc Full

                                         CRI 27 Crinum augustum `Queen Emma` / `Queen Emma` Crinum 24" ht, 18" spr, 36" oc Full, 3 head min.

                                         HIB 19 Hibiscus coccineus / Scarlet Hibiscus 24" ht, 18" spr, 36" oc Full

                                         IXO 58 Ixora coccinea `Nora Grant` / Nora Grant Ixora 24" ht, 18" spr, 24" oc Full

                                         MUH 80 Muhlenbergia capillaris / Gulf Muhleygrass 24" ht, 18" spr, 24" oc Full

                                         RHA 37 Rhaphiolepis indica / Indian Hawthorn 18" ht, 18" spr, 24" oc Full

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS SPACING REMARKS

                                         BUL 221 Bulbine frutescens `Hallmark` / Stalked Bulbine 12" ht, 12" spr, 18"oc 18" o.c.

                                         DIA 281 Dianella tasmanica / Flax Lily 12" ht, 12" spr, 18"oc 18" o.c.

                                         LAN 321 Lantana camara / Lantana 12" ht, 12" spr, 18"oc 18" o.c.

                                         TRA 426 Trachelospermum asiaticum / Dwarf Confederate Jasmine 12" ht, 12" spr, 18" oc 18" o.c.

PLANT SCHEDULE

MISC CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME SPECIFICATIONS

                                         SOD TBD Bermuda Grass / Cynodon dactylon Solid, sand, filled joints, 100% weed, pest, and disease free

MULCH TBD Hardwood Shredded, 3" depth minimum, trees within sod areas

shall receive 4' diameter mulch ring

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

L1.00

C
H

A
S

E
 
B

A
N

K
 
2

0
0

L
A

K
E

 
A

V
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

B
D

G
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

,
 
L
L
P

0
4
3
4
0
9
1
3
8

1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6

L
R

H

L
M

C
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6

L
R

H

©

NORTH

ZONING DESIGNATION: DOWNTOWN (DT)

USE: MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

ZONING DESIGNATION: DOWNTOWN (DT)

USE: OFFICE BUILDING

ZONING DESIGNATION: DOWNTOWN (DT)

USE: MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

ZONING DESIGNATION:

DOWNTOWN (DT)

USE: BANK/OFFICE

Landscape Notes

1. Plant list quantities are provided for convenience. In the event of quantity

  discrepancies, the drawings shall take precedence.  Contractor should verify 

quantities.

2. All plantings shall include 3" layer of Flora Mulch or approved equal.

3. All landscaped areas shall be fully irrigated with an automatic irrigation system.

4. All landscaping shall be installed according to sound nursery practices, and shall 

 be Florida No. 1 or better as given in "Grades and Standards for Nursery Plants, 

Parts I and II," State of Florida, Department of Agriculture.

5. No substitutions shall be made without written authorization from the L.A. or owner.

6. All plant material in shock has to be replaced prior to a CO.

7. Notify Landscape Architect 772-794-4100 should availability issue(s) arise.

8. Existing landscape that is damaged, not scheduled for removal, shall be replaced to existing

condition.

9. All invasive/ exotic species onsite to be removed.

10. all existing trees to be pruned/ cleaned-up by a certified arborist.

Irrigation Notes

1. Cultivated landscape areas shall be watered with an underground irrigation system 

designed to provide one hundred (100) percent coverage on a day when winds are 

no more than five (5) miles an hour.

2. Equipment with check valves used in low-lying areas to prevent low head drainage.

3. Irrigation zones divided according to: available flow rate, vegetated groupings (i.e., 

turf, shrubs, native plants, etc.), sprinkler types (i.e., sprinklers with matching 

precipitation rates), and soil characteristics.

4. No direct spray onto walkways, buildings, roadways, and drives.

Systems shall dispense no more than: 

A.   One inch of water per week for high volume irrigation areas;

B.   One-half inch of water per week for medium volume irrigation areas;

C.   One-quarter inch of water per week for low volume irrigation

5. All irrigation, including all drip and spray heads,  to be sourced from the on-site well.

General location of the irrigation well is indicated on the plan above.  Contractor to 

determine exact location in field for viable water quantity, and avoidance of utility 

conflicts.  

Contractor Please Note:

1. Minimum 5 foot tree setback from all Utilities & 7.5' clearance around fire hydrants & FDC's

from landscaping.

NOTE:  PLANT QUANTITIES ARE PROVIDED FOR CONVENIENCE

ONLY.  IN THE CASE OF A DISCREPANCY, THE DRAWING SHALL

TAKE PRECEDENCE.

NOTE:  PLANTS ARE SPECIFIED BY HEIGHT AND SPREAD, NOT

CONTAINER SIZE.  ALL PLANTINGS ARE EXPECTED TO MEET

ALL SPECIFICATIONS PROVIDED.

LAKE WORTH LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

LANDSCAPE BUFFER  (O. STREET)

WIDTH: 10 FT

1 TREE PER 20 LF

NORTH:

113 LF / 20 = 6 TREES

WEST:

200 LF / 20 = 10 TREES

3' SCREEN

NORTH: 6 TREES

WEST: 10 TREES

3' SCREEN: YES

NORTH: 6 TREES (2 EX, 2 PROP, 6 PALMS)

WEST: 10 TREES (4 EX, 6 PROP.)

3' SCREEN: YES

INTERIOR LANDSCAPE

MIN. 20% PARKING AREA

11,466 SF X 20% = 2,293.2 SF

1 TREE PER 100 SF OF REQUIRED

PARKING SPACES:

27 SPACES

1 TREE OR 3 PALMS PER 10 SPACES

27 SPACES / 10 = 2.7 TREES

ISLANDS:

MIN. 75 SF

(PLACED 1:10 RATIO)

1 TREE PER ISLAND

2,293.2 SF

3 TREES

1 TREE PER ISLAND: YES

2,333 SF

3 TREES

1 TREE PER ISLAND: YES

50% NATIVE SPECIES YES YES

TOTAL 19 TREES 19 TREES*

REQUIRED PROPOSED

NOTE: *EXISITING TREES USED IN TOTAL REQUIREMENT

2 ADDITIONAL CANOPY TREES, 6  ADDITIONAL PALMS, 1 ADDITIONAL ORNAMENTAL TREE

11 EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN ON SITE. 

PLAN SUBJECT TO FDOT REVIEW. TREES TO BE REMOVED/RELOCATED AS NEEDED.

NOTE: 12 EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

15" OF MITIGATION PROVIDED BY EXTRA INCHES FROM REQUIRED TREES

91" TO BE PAID INTO TREE CANOPY RESTORATION FUND



C
H

A
S

E
 
B

A
N

K
 
2

0
0

L
A

K
E

 
A

V
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

B
D

G
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

,
 
L
L
P

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

D
E

T
A

I
L

S

L1.01

©

C
H

A
S

E
 
B

A
N

K
 
2

0
0

L
A

K
E

 
A

V
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

B
D

G
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

,
 
L
L
P

0
4
3
4
0
9
1
3
8

1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6

L
R

H

L
M

C
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6

L
R

H

©

8. 3" MINIMUM OF MULCH

AS SPECIFIED ON PLANT

SCHEDULE

STARTING 3" FROM TRUNK.

GRAY WOOD

(MEASURED TO

TOP OF HARDENED

TRUNK)

CLEAR WOOD

(MEASURED TO

BOTTOM OF

LEAF SHEATHS)

OVERALL PALM

HEIGHT (MEASURED

TO TOP OF BUD)

D. CONTRACTOR SHALL

ASSURE PERCOLATION

OF ALL PLANTING

PITS PRIOR TO

INSTALLATION.

C. FINAL TREE STAKING

DETAILS AND PLACE-

MEANT TO BE AP-

PROVED BY OWNER.

B. SEE PLANS AND

SPECS. FOR PALMS W/

BOOTS TO REMAIN ON

TRUNK.

A. WASHINGTONIA

PALMS SIMILAR

W/BOOTS INTACT.

A

C

E

NOTES:

ORANGE COLOR PLASTIC UTILITY

BARRIER BY CONWED PLASTICS.

CALL R.H. MOORE &

ASSOCIATES:

800-330-2333.

3. FILTER CLOTH

6. THE WORK SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH OTHER TRADES TO PREVENT CONFLICTS.  COORDINATE THE

PLANTING WITH THE IRRIGATION WORK TO ASSURE AVAILABILITY OF WATER AND PROPER LOCATION OF

IRRIGATION ITEMS AND PLANTS.

FIFTY PERCENT (50%) OF THE NITROGEN SHALL BE DERIVED FROM NATURAL ORGANIC SOURCES.  THE

FOLLOWING FERTILIZERS SHALL BE USED AND APPLIED AT RATES AS SUGGESTED BY MANUFACTURER'S

SPECIFICATIONS:

ALL PLANTS AND PLANTING INCLUDED UNDER THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY WATERING,

CULTIVATING, SPRAYING, AND ALL OTHER OPERATIONS (SUCH AS RE-STAKING OR REPAIRING GUY

SUPPORTS) NECESSARY TO INSURE A HEALTHY CONDITION BY THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL CERTIFICATION OF

ACCEPTABILITY BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER. MAINTENANCE AFTER THE CERTIFICATION

OF ACCEPTABILITY SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION.

CONTRACTORS ARE REQUESTED TO PROVIDE A BID ESTIMATE TO COVER LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION

MAINTENANCE FOR A PERIOD OF 90 CALENDAR DAYS COMMENCING AFTER ACCEPTANCE.

UPON COMPLETION OF ALL PLANTING WORK AND BEFORE FINAL ACCEPTANCE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

REMOVE ALL MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT, AND DEBRIS RESULTING FROM HIS WORK.  ALL PAVED AREAS SHALL

BE BROOM CLEANED AND THE SITE LEFT IN A NEAT AND ACCEPTABLE CONDITION AS APPROVED BY

THE OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.

B. WATER EVERY DAY FOR TEN (10) SUCCESSIVE DAYS, THEN WATER THREE (3) TIMES PER WEEK (AT

EVEN INTERVALS) FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL WEEKS.  ALL WATERING SHALL BE OF SUFFICIENT QUANTITY

TO WET OR RESTORE WATER TO DEPTH OF FOUR (4) INCHES.

A. WITHIN THE CONTRACT LIMITS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRODUCE A DENSE, WELL ESTABLISHED LAWN.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REPAIR AND RE-SODDING OF ALL ERODED, SUNKEN

OR BARE SPOTS UNTIL CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTABILITY BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER.

REPAIRED SODDING SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED AS IN THE ORIGINAL WORK (INCLUDING REGRADING IF

NECESSARY).

5. DURING DELIVERY, PRIOR TO AND DURING THE PLANTING OF THE LAWN AREAS, THE SOD PANELS SHALL

AT ALL TIMES BE PROTECTED FROM EXCESSIVE DRYING AND UNNECESSARY EXPOSURE OF THE ROOTS

TO THE SUN.  ALL SOD SHALL BE STACKED SO AS NOT TO BE DAMAGED BY SWEATING OR EXCESSIVE

HEAT AND MOISTURE.

C. SOD PANELS SHALL BE LAID TIGHTLY TOGETHER SO AS TO MAKE A SOLID SODDED LAWN AREA.

SOD SHALL BE LAID UNIFORMLY AGAINST THE EDGES OF ALL CURBS AND OTHER HARDSCAPE ELEMENTS,

PAVED AND PLANTED AREAS.  ADJACENT TO BUILDINGS, A FOUR INCH MULCH STRIP SHALL BE

PROVIDED.  IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING SOD LAYING, THE LAWN AREAS SHALL BE ROLLED WITH A LAWN

ROLLER CUSTOMARILY USED FOR SUCH PURPOSES, AND THEN THOROUGHLY IRRIGATED.  IF, IN THE OPINION

OF THE OWNER, TOP-DRESSING IS NECESSARY AFTER ROLLING TO FILL THE VOIDS BETWEEN THE SOD

PANELS AND TO EVEN OUT INCONSISTENCIES IN THE SOD, CLEAN SAND AS APPROVED BY THE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER SHALL BE UNIFORMLY SPREAD OVER THE ENTIRE SURFACE OF THE

SOD AND THOROUGHLY WATERED IN.

B. THE SOD SHALL BE CERTIFIED TO MEET FLORIDA STATE PLANT BOARD SPECIFICATIONS, ABSOLUTELY

TRUE TO VARIETAL TYPE, AND FREE FROM WEEDS, FUNGUS, INSECTS AND DISEASE OF ANY KIND.

A. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SOD ALL AREAS THAT ARE NOT PAVED OR PLANTED AS DESIGNATED ON

THE DRAWINGS WITHIN THE CONTRACT LIMITS, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. SOIL PREPARATION:  PREPARE LOOSE BED FOUR (4) INCHES DEEP.  APPLY FERTILIZER AT RATE OF

TWENTY (20) POUNDS PER ONE THOUSAND (1000) SQUARE FEET.  APPLICATION SHALL BE UNIFORM,

UTILIZING APPROVED MECHANICAL SPREADERS.  MIX FERTILIZER THOROUGHLY WITH THE SOIL TO A

DEPTH OF THREE (3) INCHES.  HAND RAKE UNTIL ALL BUMPS AND DEPRESSIONS ARE REMOVED.  WET

PREPARED AREA THOROUGHLY.

2. LAWN BED PREPARATION:  ALL AREAS THAT ARE TO BE SODDED SHALL BE CLEARED OF ANY

ROUGH GRASS, WEEDS, AND DEBRIS, AND THE GROUND BROUGHT TO AN EVEN GRADE.  THE WHOLE

SURFACE SHALL BE ROLLED WITH A ROLLER WEIGHING NOT MORE THAN ONE-HUNDRED (100) POUNDS

PER FOOT OF WIDTH.  DURING THE ROLLING, ALL DEPRESSIONS CAUSED BY SETTLEMENT OF ROLLING

SHALL BE FILLED WITH ADDITIONAL SOIL, AND THE SURFACE SHALL BE REGRADED AND ROLLED UNTIL

PRESENTING A SMOOTH AND EVEN FINISH THAT IS UP TO THE REQUIRED GRADE.

1. THE WORK CONSISTS OF LAWN BED PREPARATION, SOIL PREPARATION, AND SODDING COMPLETE, IN

STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS AND THE APPLICABLE DRAWINGS TO PRODUCE A

GRASS LAWN ACCEPTABLE TO THE OWNER.

16. HERBICIDE WEED CONTROL:  ALL PLANT BEDS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF NOXIOUS WEEDS UNTIL

FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF WORK.  IF DIRECTED BY THE OWNER, "ROUND-UP" SHALL BE APPLIED FOR

WEED CONTROL BY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL TO ALL PLANTING AREAS IN SPOT APPLICATIONS PER

MANUFACTURER'S PRECAUTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION, TREAT ALL

PLANTING BEDS WITH AN APPROVED PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE AT AN APPLICATION RATE

RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER.

15. MULCHING:  PROVIDE A THREE (3) INCH MINIMUM LAYER OF SPECIFIED MULCH OVER THE ENTIRE

AREA OF EACH SHRUB BED, GROUND COVER AND VINE BED AND TREE PIT.

14. TREE GUYING AND BRACING SHALL BE INSTALLED BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS TO INSURE STABILITY AND MAINTAIN TREES IN AN UPRIGHT POSITION.  IF

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AND OWNER DECIDE TO WAIVE THE TREE GUYING AND BRACING, THE

OWNER SHALL NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN WRITING OF THEIR INTENTIONS AND AGREE TO HOLD

HARMLESS THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN THE EVENT ANY TREES FALL DOWN AND DAMAGE PERSON OR

PROPERTY.

13. SHRUBS AND GROUND COVER PLANTS SHALL BE EVENLY SPACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

DRAWINGS AND AS INDICATED ON THE PLANT LIST.  CULTIVATE ALL PLANTING AREAS TO A MINIMUM

DEPTH OF 6", REMOVE AND DISPOSE ALL DEBRIS.  TILL INTO TOP 4" THE PLANTING SOIL MIX AS

SPECIFIED IN SECTION E.  THOROUGHLY WATER ALL PLANTS AFTER INSTALLATION.

12. PRUNING:  EACH TREE SHALL BE PRUNED TO PRESERVE THE NATURAL CHARACTER OF THE PLANT AS

SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS.  ALL SOFT WOOD OR SUCKER GROWTH AND ALL BROKEN OR BADLY DAMAGED

BRANCHES SHALL BE REMOVED WITH A CLEAN CUT.

4. 3-2" X  8' LODGE POLES.

NAIL (DRILL AND NAIL IF

NECESSARY) TO BATTENS

2" X 4" STAKES. FLAG AT

MIDPOINT AND AT BASE.

6. FINISHED GRADE

  (SEE GRADING PLAN)

1. ALL CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL SHALL BE HEALTHY, VIGOROUS, WELL-ROOTED PLANTS AND

ESTABLISHED IN THE CONTAINER IN WHICH THEY ARE SOLD.  THE PLANTS SHALL HAVE TOPS WHICH ARE

OF GOOD QUALITY AND ARE IN A HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION.

2. WORK SHALL INCLUDE MAINTENANCE AND WATERING OF ALL PLANTING AREAS OF THIS CONTRACT UNTIL

CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTABILITY BY THE OWNER.

1. THE WORK CONSISTS OF FURNISHING ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, TOOLS, TRANSPORTATION,

AND ANY OTHER APPURTENANCES NECESSARY FOR THE COMPLETION OF THIS PROJECT AS SHOWN

ON THE DRAWINGS, AS INCLUDED IN THE PLANT LIST, AND AS HEREIN SPECIFIED.

5. SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER.

4. 3" MINIMUM OF LAYER OF

MULCH AS SPECIFIED ON PLANT

SCHEDULE STARTING 3" FROM

TRUNK.

3. THREE 2" X 8' LODGE POLES

  SPACE EVENLY AROUND TREE.

2. #10 GAUGE WIRE (NOTE FOR

  MULTI-TRUCK TREES, GUY TO

  STRONGEST TRUNK AT

CENTER).

1. PROTECT TREE TRUNK WITH

  BLACK RUBBER HOSE.

3. FIVE 2" X 4" X 18" WOOD

BATTONS

2. TWO STEEL BANDS TO

SECURE BATTENS

1. 5 LAYERS OF BURLAP

TO PROTECT TRUNK

4. PROTECTION OF PALMS (IF APPLICABLE):  ONLY A MINIMUM OF FRONDS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM

THE CROWN OF THE PALM TREES TO FACILITATE MOVING AND HANDLING.  CLEAR TRUNK (CT) SHALL BE

AS SPECIFIED AFTER THE MINIMUM OF FRONDS HAVE BEEN REMOVED.  ALL PALMS SHALL BE BRACED

PER DETAIL.

5. EXCAVATION OF TREE PITS SHALL BE DONE USING EXTREME CARE TO AVOID DAMAGE TO

SURFACE AND SUBSURFACE ELEMENTS SUCH AS UTILITIES OR HARDSCAPE ELEMENTS, FOOTERS AND

PREPARED SUB- BASES.

COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER SHALL BE A COMPLETE FORMULA; IT SHALL BE UNIFORM IN COMPOSITION, DRY

AND FREE FLOWING.  THIS FERTILIZER SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN THE ORIGINAL UNOPENED

CONTAINERS, EACH BEARING THE MANUFACTURER'S GUARANTEED STATEMENT OF ANALYSIS.

WATER NECESSARY FOR PLANTING AND MAINTENANCE SHALL BE OF SATISFACTORY QUALITY TO SUSTAIN

AN ADEQUATE GROWTH OF PLANTS AND SHALL NOT CONTAIN HARMFUL, NATURAL OR MAN-MADE ELEMENTS

DETRIMENTAL TO PLANTS. WATER MEETING THE ABOVE STANDARD SHALL BE OBTAINED ON THE SITE

FROM THE OWNER, IF AVAILABLE, AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAKE ARRANGEMENTS

FOR ITS USE BY HIS TANKS, HOSES, SPRINKLERS, ETC.  IF SUCH WATER IS NOT AVAILABLE AT THE SITE,

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SUCH SATISFACTORY WATER FROM SOURCES OFF THE SITE AT NO

ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

SAND SHALL BE COARSE, CLEAN, WELL DRAINING NATIVE SAND.  CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT RESULTS

OF SOIL TESTS FOR TOPSOIL AND SAND PROPOSED FOR USE UNDER THIS CONTRACT FOR APPROVAL

BY THE OWNER.

TOPSOIL FOR USE IN PREPARING SOIL FOR BACKFILLING PLANT PITS SHALL BE THIRTY PERCENT (30%)

MUCK AND SEVENTY PERCENT (70%) SAND AND BE FERTILE, FRIABLE, AND OF A LOAMY CHARACTER,

WITHOUT MIXTURE OF SUBSOIL MATERIALS, AND OBTAINED FROM A WELL-DRAINED, ARABLE SITE.  IT

SHALL CONTAIN THREE (3) TO FIVE (5) PERCENT DECOMPOSED ORGANIC MATTER AND SHALL BE FREE

FROM HEAVY CLAY, COARSE SAND, STONES, LIME, LUMPS, PLANTS, ROOTS OR OTHER FOREIGN MATERIALS,

 OR NOXIOUS WEEDS.  IT SHALL NOT CONTAIN TOXIC SUBSTANCES WHICH MAY BE HARMFUL TO PLANT

GROWTH.  PH RANGE SHALL BE 5.0 TO 7.0 INCLUSIVE.  FOUR (4) INCHES OF TOPSOIL TO BE PROVIDED FOR ALL

TURF AREAS.  TWENTY FOUR (24) INCHES OF TOPSOIL TO BE PROVIDED FOR ALL PLANTING BEDS.

C. INSPECTION:  PLANTS SHALL BE SUBJECT TO INSPECTION AND APPROVAL AT THE PLACE OF

GROWTH, OR UPON DELIVERY TO THE SITE, AS DETERMINED BY THE OWNER, FOR QUALITY, SIZE, AND

VARIETY; SUCH APPROVAL SHALL NOT IMPAIR THE RIGHT OF INSPECTION AND REJECTION AT THE SITE

DURING PROGRESS OF THE WORK OR AFTER COMPLETION FOR SIZE AND CONDITION OF BALLS OR ROOTS,

LATENT DEFECTS OR INJURIES.  REJECTED PLANTS SHALL BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY FROM THE SITE.

NOTICE REQUESTING INSPECTION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING BY THE CONTRACTOR AT LEAST ONE

(1) WEEK PRIOR TO ANTICIPATED DATE.

A. PLANT SPECIES AND SIZE SHALL CONFORM TO THOSE INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS.

NOMENCLATURE SHALL CONFORM TO STANDARDIZED PLANT NAMES, 1942 EDITION.  ALL NURSERY

STOCK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GRADES AND STANDARDS FOR NURSERY PLANTS

PARTS I AND II, LATEST EDITION PUBLISHED BY THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND

CONSUMER SERVICES.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FLORIDA GRADE NO. 1 OR BETTER AS DETERMINED BY

THE FLORIDA DIVISION OF PLANT INDUSTRY.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FRESHLY DUG, SOUND, HEALTHY,

VIGOROUS, WELL-BRANCHED AND FREE OF DISEASE AND INSECTS, INSECT EGGS AND LARVAE AND

SHALL HAVE ADEQUATE ROOT SYSTEMS.  TREES FOR PLANTING IN ROWS SHALL BE UNIFORM IN SIZE AND

SHAPE.  ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE OWNER.  WHERE ANY REQUIREMENTS

ARE OMITTED FROM THE PLANT LIST, THE PLANTS FURNISHED SHALL BE NORMAL FOR THE VARIETY.

PLANTS SHALL BE PRUNED PRIOR TO DELIVERY ONLY UPON THE APPROVAL OF THE OWNER.

SAMPLES OF MATERIALS AS LISTED BELOW SHALL BE SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL, ON THE SITE OR

AS OTHERWISE DETERMINED BY THE OWNER.  UPON APPROVAL OF SAMPLES, DELIVERY OF

MATERIALS MAY BEGIN.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL UNAUTHORIZED CUTTING OR DAMAGE TO TREES

AND SHRUBS EXISTING OR OTHERWISE, CAUSED BY CARELESS OPERATION OF EQUIPMENT,

STOCKPILING OF MATERIALS, ETC.  THIS SHALL INCLUDE COMPACTION BY DRIVING OR PARKING INSIDE

THE DRIP-LINE OR THE SPILLING OF OIL, GASOLINE, OR OTHER DELETERIOUS MATERIALS WITHIN THE

DRIP-LINE.  NO MATERIALS  SHALL BE BURNED WHERE THE HEAT WILL DAMAGE ANY PLANT.  TREES

KILLED OR DAMAGED SO THAT THEY ARE MISSHAPEN AND/ OR UNSIGHTLY SHALL BE REPLACED AT

THE COST TO THE CONTRACTOR OF ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100) PER CALIPER INCH ON AN

ESCALATING SCALE WHICH ADDS AN ADDITIONAL TWENTY  (20) PER CENT PER INCH OVER FOUR (4)

INCHES CALIPER AS FIXED AND AGREED LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  CALIPER SHALL BE MEASURED SIX

(6) INCHES ABOVE GROUND LEVEL FOR TREES UP TO AND INCLUDING FOUR (4) INCHES IN CALIPER

AND TWELVE (12) INCHES ABOVE

GROUND LEVEL FOR TREES OVER FOUR (4) INCHES IN CALIPER.

ALL EXISTING BUILDINGS, WALKS, WALLS, PAVING, PIPING, AND OTHER ITEMS OF CONSTRUCTION AND

PLANTING ALREADY COMPLETED OR ESTABLISHED SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE BY THIS

CONTRACTOR UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.  ALL DAMAGE RESULTING FROM NEGLIGENCE SHALL BE

REPAIRED OR REPLACED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER.

TREES SHALL BE PLANTED IN THE EXISTING NATIVE SOIL ONSITE UNLESS DETERMINED TO BE

UNSUITABLE AT WHICH POINT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO DISCUSS

ALTERNATE RECOMMENDATION PRIOR TO PLANTING.

3. 5 LAYERS OF BURLAP

TO PROTECT TRUNK.

BEST FACE OF SHRUB/

GROUNDCOVER TO FACE

FRONT OF PLANTING BED.

Large Tree Planting Detail

B. FINAL TREE STAKING DETAILS

AND PLACEMENT TO BE

APPROVED BY OWNER.

A.CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL   

PLANTING PITS PRIOR TO

INSTALLATION.

10. ROOTBALLS GREATER THAN

    24" DIAMETER SHALL BE

    PLACED ON MOUND OF

    UNDISTURBED SOIL TO

    PREVENT SETTLING

    ROOTBALLS SMALLER THAN

    24" IN DIA. MAY SIT

    ON COMPACTED EARTH.

9. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL

  AS SPECIFIED.

8. B & B OR CONTAINERIZED

  (SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR

  ROOT BALL REQUIREMENTS).

7. TOP OF ROOTBALL MIN. 1"

  ABOVE FINISHED GRADE

2. PRUNE AND TIE FRONDS WITH

   HEMP TWINE. CABBAGE PALMS

   TO BE "HURRICANE CUT"

1. MINIMUM OF NINE (9)

  GOOD PALM FRONDS

C. "TREE SAVER"

ANCHORING SYSTEM MAY BE

SUBSTITUTED FOR WOOD

STAKING SYSTEM UPON

APPROVAL BY OWNER OR

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

(Less Than 14') NTS

SECTION

Small Tree Planting Detail

SECTION

B

A. CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING

PITS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

12. ROOTBALLS GREATER THAN

24" DIAMETER SHALL BE

PLACED ON MOUND OF

UNDISTURBED SOIL TO

PREVENT SETTLING.

11. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL

AS SPECIFIED.

10. 2" x 4" x 3' (MIN), P.T. WOOD

STAKES BURIED 3" BELOW

FINISHED GRADE.

9. B&B OR CONTAINERIZED

(SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROOT

BALL REQUIREMENTS).

8. TOP OF ROOTBALL MIN. 1"

ABOVE FINISHED GRADE

7. FINISHED GRADE

(SEE GRADING PLAN)

6. SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER.

5. 3" MINIMUM DEPTH OF  MULCH

AS SPECIFIED ON PLANT

SCHEDULE.  STARTING 3" FROM

TRUNK.

NOTES:

C. "TREE SAVER"

  ANCHORING SYSTEM MAY BE

  SUBSTITUTED FOR WOOD

  STAKING SYSTEM UPON

  APPROVAL BY OWNER OR

  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

B. FINAL TREE STAKING DETAILS

  AND PLACEMENT TO BE

  APPROVED BY OWNER.

(14' or Larger) NTS

REFER TO PLANT

SCHEDULE FOR SPACING

MAINTAIN 12" DEAD ZONE

AT BED EDGE.

Shrub / Groundcover Planting Detail

11. 2" X 4" X 24" (MIN)

P.T. WOOD STAKES (TYP.)

NAIL TO SUPPORT POLES

6. 3-2" X 4" x 8' LODGE POLES.

NAIL (DRILL AND NAIL IF

NECESSARY) TO BATTENS

AND 2" X 4" STAKES.  FLAG

AT MIDPOINT AND AT BASE.

7. PROVIDE FLAGGING

9. BERM SOIL TO HOLD WATER

10. FINISH GRADE

5. SECURE BATTENS WITH 2-

3/4" CARBON STEEL BANDS

TO HOLD BATTENS IN PLACE.

NO NAILS SHALL BE DRIVEN

INTO PALM.  HEIGHT OF

BATTENS SHALL BE LOCATED IN

RELATION TO THE HEIGHT OF

THE PALM FOR ADEQUATE

BRACING.

4. FIVE 2" X 4" X 18" WOOD

BATTENS.

12. PREPARED PLANTING

SOIL AS SPECIFIED

Palm Planting Detail

SECTION
NTS

1. FINISH GRADE

2. BACKFILL WITH PREPARED

PLANTING SOIL MIX

AS SPECIFIED.

SECTION

D

6. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS

SPECIFIED.  NOTE: WHEN

GROUND-

COVERS AND SHRUBS USED IN

MASSES ENTIRE BED TO BE

AMENDED WITH PLANTING

SOIL MIX AS SPECIFIED.

5. FINISHED GRADE (SEE

GRADING

PLAN).

4. EXCAVATE ENTIRE BED

SPECIFIED

FOR GROUNDCOVER BED.

3. 3" MINIMUM OF MULCH

AS SPECIFIED ON PLANT

SCHEDULE

2. PRUNE ALL SHRUBS TO

ACHIEVE

A UNIFORM MASS/HEIGHT

1. TOP OF SHRUB

ROOTBALLS TO BE

PLANTED 1" - 2" HIGH

WITH SOIL MOUNDING UP

TO THE TOP OF

ROOTBALL.

NOTES:

PLAN VIEW

7. SCARIFY ROOTBALL SIDES

AND BOTTOM.

NTS

1. FINE GRADING UNDER THIS CONTRACT SHALL CONSIST OF FINAL FINISHED GRADING OF LAWN AND

PLANTING AREAS THAT HAVE BEEN ROUGH GRADED BY OTHERS.  BERMING AS SHOWN ON THE

DRAWINGS SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. AN ESTABLISHED CONTAINER GROWN PLANT SHALL BE TRANSPLANTED INTO A CONTAINER AND GROWN

IN THAT CONTAINER SUFFICIENTLY LONG FOR THE NEW FIBROUS ROOTS TO HAVE DEVELOPED SO THAT

THE ROOT MASS WILL RETAIN ITS SHAPE AND HOLD TOGETHER WHEN REMOVED FROM THE CONTAINER.

CONTAINER GROWN STOCK SHALL NOT BE HANDLED BY THEIR STEMS.

3. PLANT ROOTS BOUND IN CONTAINERS SHALL NOT BE ACCEPTABLE.

4. SUBSTITUTION OF NON-CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL FOR MATERIAL EXPLICITLY SPECIFIED TO BE

CONTAINER GROWN WILL NOT BE PERMITTED UNLESS WRITTEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED FROM THE OWNER

AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

WHEN THE USE OF COLLECTED STOCK IS PERMITTED AS INDICATED ON THE PLANT LIST SCHEDULE,

THE MINIMUM SIZES OF ROOTBALLS SHALL BE EQUAL TO THAT SPECIFIED FOR THE NEXT LARGER SIZE OF

NURSERY GROWN STOCK OF THE SAME VARIETY.

PLANTS COLLECTED FROM WILD OR NATIVE STANDS SHALL BE CONSIDERED NURSERY GROWN WHEN THEY

HAVE BEEN SUCCESSFULLY REESTABLISHED IN A NURSERY ROW AND GROWN UNDER REGULAR NURSERY

CULTURAL PRACTICES FOR A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) GROWING SEASONS AND HAVE ATTAINED ADEQUATE

ROOT AND TOP GROWTH TO INDICATE FULL RECOVERY FROM TRANSPLANTING INTO THE NURSERY ROW.

QUANTITIES NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK ON THE DRAWINGS SHALL BE FURNISHED BY THE

CONTRACTOR. QUANTITY ESTIMATES HAVE BEEN MADE CAREFULLY, BUT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR

OWNER ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR OMISSIONS OR ERRORS. SHOULD A DISCREPANCY OCCUR BETWEEN

THE BIDDERS TAKE OFF AND THE PLANT LIST QUANTITY, THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT SHALL BE

NOTIFIED FOR CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE SUBMISSIONS OF BIDS.  ALL DIMENSIONS AND/OR SIZES

SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE SIZE

2. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE THE LAWN AND PLANTING AREAS TO BRING THE

ROUGH GRADE UP TO FINAL FINISHED GRADE ALLOWING FOR THICKNESS OF SOD AND/OR MULCH DEPTH.

THIS CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE BY HAND AND/OR WITH ALL EQUIPMENT NECESSARY INCLUDING A

GRADING TRACTOR WITH FRONT-END LOADER FOR TRANSPORTING SOIL WITHIN THE SITE.

3. ALL PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE GRADED AND MAINTAINED TO ALLOW FREE FLOW OF SURFACE WATER.

AREAS ADJACENT TO BUILDINGS SHALL SLOPE AWAY FROM THE BUILDINGS.

1. CLEANING UP BEFORE COMMENCING WORK: THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN UP WORK AND

SURROUNDING AREAS OF ALL RUBBISH OR OBJECTIONABLE MATTER.  ALL MORTAR, CEMENT, AND TOXIC

MATERIAL SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SURFACE OF ALL PLANT BEDS.  THESE MATERIALS SHALL NOT BE

MIXED WITH THE SOIL.  SHOULD THE CONTRACTOR FIND SUCH SOIL CONDITIONS BENEATH THE SOIL

WHICH WILL IN ANY WAY ADVERSELY AFFECT THE PLANT GROWTH, HE SHALL IMMEDIATELY CALL IT TO THE

ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER.  FAILURE TO DO SO BEFORE PLANTING SHALL

MAKE THE CORRECTIVE MEASURES THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

2. VERIFY LOCATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES, CONDUITS, SUPPLY LINES AND CABLES, INCLUDING BUT NOT

LIMITED TO:  ELECTRIC, GAS (LINES AND TANKS), WATER, SANITARY SEWER, STORMWATER LINES, CABLE AND

TELEPHONE.  PROPERLY MAINTAIN AND PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES.

3. SUBGRADE EXCAVATION:  SITE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO REMOVE ALL EXISTING AND

IMPORTED LIMEROCK AND LIMEROCK SUB-BASE FROM ALL LANDSCAPE PLANTING AREAS TO A MINIMUM

DEPTH OF 36".  SITE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO BACKFILL THESE PLANTING AREAS TO ROUGH

FINISHED GRADE WITH CLEAN TOPSOIL FROM AN ON-SITE SOURCE OR AN IMPORTED SOURCE.  IF

LIMEROCK OR OTHER ADVERSE CONDITIONS OCCUR IN PLANTED AREAS AFTER 36"  DEEP EXCAVATION

BY SITE CONTRACTOR, AND POSITIVE DRAINAGE CAN NOT BE ACHIEVED, LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR

SHALL UTILIZE PLANTING DETAIL THAT ADDRESSES POOR DRAINAGE.

4. FURNISH NURSERY'S CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS AS HEREIN SPECIFIED AND

REQUIRED.  INSPECT AND SELECT PLANT MATERIALS BEFORE PLANTS ARE DUG AT NURSERY OR GROWING

SITE.

5. GENERAL:  COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY, AND LOCAL REGULATIONS

GOVERNING LANDSCAPE MATERIALS AND WORK.  CONFORM TO ACCEPTED HORTICULTURAL PRACTICES

AS USED IN THE TRADE.  PLANTS SHALL BE PROTECTED UPON ARRIVAL AT THE SITE BY BEING

THOROUGHLY WATERED AND PROPERLY MAINTAINED UNTIL PLANTED.   PLANTS SHALL NOT REMAIN

UNPROTECTED FOR A PERIOD EXCEEDING TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS.  AT ALL TIMES WORKMANLIKE

METHODS CUSTOMARY IN GOOD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICES SHALL BE EXERCISED.

FINAL INSPECTION AT THE END OF THE GUARANTEE PERIOD SHALL BE ON PLANTING, CONSTRUCTION

AND ALL OTHER INCIDENTAL WORK PERTAINING TO THIS CONTRACT.  ANY REPLACEMENT AT THIS TIME

SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE SAME ONE (1) YEAR GUARANTEE (OR AS SPECIFIED BY THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT OR OWNER IN WRITING) BEGINNING WITH THE TIME OF REPLACEMENT AND ENDING WITH THE

SAME INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE HEREIN DESCRIBED.

4. IN THE EVENT THE OWNER DOES NOT CONTRACT WITH THE CONTRACTOR FOR LANDSCAPE (AND

IRRIGATION) MAINTENANCE, THE CONTRACTOR IS ENCOURAGED TO VISIT THE PROJECT SITE

PERIODICALLY DURING THE ONE YEAR WARRANTY PERIOD TO EVALUATE MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES

BEING PERFORMED BY THE OWNER, AND SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER IN WRITING OF MAINTENANCE

PROCEDURES OR CONDITIONS WHICH THREATEN VIGOROUS AND HEALTH PLANT GROWTH.  IT IS

SUGGESTED SUCH SITE VISITS SHALL BE CONDUCTED A MINIMUM OF ONCE PER MONTH FOR A PERIOD

OF TWELVE (12) MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE.

3. REPLACEMENT: ANY PLANT NOT FOUND IN A HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION AT THE END OF THE

GUARANTEE PERIOD SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND REPLACED AS SOON AS WEATHER

CONDITIONS PERMIT.  ALL REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE PLANTS OF THE SAME KIND AND SIZE AS

SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT LIST.  THEY SHALL BE FURNISHED PLANTED AND MULCHED AS SPECIFIED

UNDER "PLANTING", AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

2. THE LIFE AND SATISFACTORY CONDITION OF ALL OTHER PLANT MATERIAL (INCLUDING SOD) INSTALLED

BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE GUARANTEED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR A MINIMUM OF 90

CALENDAR DAYS, COMMENCING AT THE TIME OF CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTABILITY BY THE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER.

1. THE LIFE AND SATISFACTORY CONDITION OF ALL 15 GALLON AND LARGER PLANT MATERIAL INSTALLED BY

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE GUARANTEED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR A MINIMUM OF ONE (1)

CALENDAR YEAR COMMENCING AT THE TIME OF CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTABILITY BY THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT OR OWNER.

1. CONTRACTORS ARE REQUESTED TO PROVIDE A BID ESTIMATE FOR MAINTENANCE FOLLOWING THE

INITIAL 90-DAY MAINTENANCE PERIOD ON A COST PER MONTH BASIS.

3. PLANTS MARKED "BR" IN THE PLANT LIST SHALL BE DUG WITH BARE ROOTS.  THE ROOTS SHALL NOT

BE CUT WITHIN THE MINIMUM SPREAD SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT LIST.  CARE SHALL BE EXERCISED

THAT THE ROOTS DO NOT DRY OUT IN MOVING AND PRIOR TO PLANTING.

2. BALLED AND BURLAPPED PLANTS (B&B) SHALL BE DUG WITH FIRM, NATURAL BALLS OF SOIL OF

SUFFICIENT SIZE TO ENCOMPASS THE FIBROUS AND FEEDING ROOTS OF THE PLANTS.  NO PLANTS

MOVED WITH A BALL SHALL BE PLANTED IF THE BALL IS CRACKED OR BROKEN.  PLANTS BALLED AND

BURLAPPED OR CONTAINER GROWN SHALL NOT BE HANDLED BY STEMS.

1. PROTECT ROOTS OR BALLS OF PLANTS AT ALL TIMES FROM SUN AND DRYING WINDS, WATER AND

FREEZING, AS NECESSARY UNTIL PLANTING.  PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE ADEQUATELY PACKED TO

PREVENT BREAKAGE AND DRYING OUT DURING TRANSIT.  TREES TRANSPORTED MORE THAN TEN (10)

MILES OR WHICH ARE NOT PLANTED WITHIN THREE (3) DAYS OF DELIVERY TO SITE SHALL BE SPRAYED

WITH AN ANTI-TRANSPIRANT PRODUCT ("WILTPRUF" OR EQUAL) TO MINIMIZE TRANSPIRATIONAL WATER LOSS.

MULCH MATERIAL SHALL BE MOISTENED AT THE TIME OF APPLICATION TO PREVENT WIND

DISPLACEMENT, AND APPLIED AT A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES.  SEE PLANT LIST FOR TYPE OF MATERIAL

("FLORA-MULCH," EUCALYPTUS MULCH, PINE STRAW, OR CYPRESS) AND GRADE.

IN ADDITION TO SURFACE APPLIED FERTILIZERS, ALL CONTAINER GROWN AND FIELD GROWN PLANT

MATERIAL SHALL RECEIVE "AGRIFORM" PLANTING TABLETS 24-10-5 FORMULA, 21 GRAM OR EQUAL.

 THESE TABLETS SHALL BE PLACED AT A DEPTH   OF ROOT BALL AT THE RATE AS SPECIFIED BY

MANUFACTURER.

NOTE: IF WIRE TIES ARE USED,

AVOID DIRECT CONTACT WITH

FENCE. WIRE MAY  DAMAGE FENCE

OVER TIME.

Tree/Shrub Protector

Barrier Detail

FOR A PARKING ISLAND

PLANTING SITUATION,

CONTRACTOR TO BACKFILL

ENTIRE LENGTH OF PLANTING

AREA TO WITHIN 6" OF BACK

OF CURB OR EDGE OF

PAVEMENT.

5. 18"/P O AUGURED HOLE

PENETRATE THROUGH

OCCLUDING LAYER TO

WATER TABLE OR TO A

DEPTH OF 7' TO ASSURE

PROPER PERCOLATION.

4. 12"CLEAN SAND,

COMPACTED.

ADJUST LAYER THICKNESS

SO TOP OF ROOTBALL IS AT

LEAST 1" ABOVE FINISHED

GRADE.

6. SLOPE BOTTOM TO DRAIN

7. BACKFILL WITH 1/2" - 3/4"

GRAVEL.

8. WATER TABLE.  (DEPTH

VARIES)

NOTE:

Poor Drainage Condition Detail

SECTION

REFER TO SECTION O, NOTE 3

OF WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

NTS

F

B. POSTS SHOULD BE DRIVEN

INTO THE GROUND TO A DEPTH

OF 1/3 OF THE HEIGHT OF THE

POST. FOR EXAMPLE, A 6' POST

SHOULD BE SET AT LEAST 2' INTO

THE GROUND.

METAL "T" POSTS OR TREATED

WOOD POSTS ARE TYPICALLY

USED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AND OTHER APPLICATIONS.

A. POST SELECTION SHOULD BE

BASED ON  EXPECTED

STRENGTH NEEDS AND THE

LENGTH OF TIME FENCE WILL BE

IN PLACE.  FLEXIBLE FIBERGLASS

ROD POSTS (AVAILABLE FROM

CONWED PLASTICS) ARE

RECOMMENDED FOR PARKS,

ATHLETIC  EVENTS AND CROWD

CONTROL INSTALLATIONS.

8' TALL METAL "T" POSTS OR 2" x

2" X 8'

PRESSURE TREATED WOOD

POSTS WITH

24" BURIAL BELOW GRADE.

INSTALLATION NOTES:

D. SECURE FENCING TO POST

WITH NYLON CABLE TIES

(AVAILABLE FROM CONWED

PLASTICS). WOOD STRIPS MAY

BE ALSO BE USED TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL SUPPORT AND

PROTECTION BETWEEN TIES

AND POSTS.

C. SPACE POSTS EVERY 6' - 8'.

N.T.S.

7. ALL PLANTING PITS SHALL BE EXCAVATED TO SIZE AND DEPTH IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE USA

STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK 260.1, UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE ON THE DRAWINGS, AND BACKFILLED

WITH THE PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED HEREIN BEFORE (SECTION E).  TEST ALL TREE PITS

WITH WATER BEFORE PLANTING TO ASSURE PROPER DRAINAGE PERCOLATION IS AVAILABLE.  NO

ALLOWANCE WILL BE MADE FOR LOST PLANTS DUE TO IMPROPER DRAINAGE.  IF POOR DRAINAGE EXISTS,

UTILIZE PLANTING DETAIL THAT ADDRESSES THIS CONDITION.  TREES SHALL BE SET PLUMB AND HELD IN

POSITION UNTIL THE PLANTING MIXTURE HAS BEEN FLUSHED INTO PLACE WITH A SLOW, FULL HOSE STREAM.

ALL PLANTING SHALL BE PERFORMED BY PERSONNEL FAMILIAR WITH PLANTING PROCEDURE AND UNDER

THE SUPERVISION OF A QUALIFIED PLANTING FOREMAN.  PROPER "JETTING IN" SHALL BE ASSURED TO

ELIMINATE AIR POCKETS AROUND THE ROOTS.  "JET STICK" OR EQUAL IS RECOMMENDED.

8. TAKE ALL NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS TO AVOID DAMAGE TO BUILDINGS AND BUILDING STRUCTURES

WHILE INSTALLING TREES.

9. SOIL MIXTURE SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION E OF THESE SPECIFICATIONS.  IN ADDITION,

EACH PLANTING PIT SHALL RECEIVE 21-GRAM "AGRIFORM" PLANTING TABLETS PER MANUFACTURER'S

SPECIFICATIONS OR AS FOLLOWS:

10. TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE SET STRAIGHT AND AT SUCH A LEVEL THAT AFTER SETTLEMENT, THE

PLANT CROWN WILL STAND ONE (1) TO TWO (2) INCHES ABOVE GRADE.  EACH PLANT SHALL BE SET IN

THE CENTER OF THE PIT.  PLANTING SOIL MIXTURE SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND THOROUGHLY TAMPED

AROUND THE BALL AND SHALL BE SETTLED BY WATER AFTER TAMPING.

11. FILL HOLE WITH SOIL MIXTURE, MAKING CERTAIN ALL SOIL IS SATURATED.  TO DO THIS, FILL HOLE WITH

WATER AND ALLOW TO SOAK MINIMUM TWENTY (20) MINUTES, STIRRING IF NECESSARY TO GET SOIL

THOROUGHLY WET.  PACK LIGHTLY WITH FEET.  ADD MORE WET SOIL MIXTURE.  DO NOT COVER TOP OF

BALL WITH SOIL MIXTURE, ONLY WITH MULCH.  ALL BURLAP, ROPE, WIRES, ETC., SHALL BE REMOVED FROM

THE SIDES AND TOPS OF BALLS, BUT NO BURLAP SHALL BE PULLED FROM UNDERNEATH.

B. MEASUREMENTS: THE HEIGHT AND/OR WIDTH OF TREES SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE GROUND OR

ACROSS THE NORMAL SPREAD OF BRANCHES WITH THE PLANTS IN THEIR NORMAL POSITION.  THIS

MEASUREMENT SHALL NOT INCLUDE THE IMMEDIATE TERMINAL GROWTH.  PLANTS LARGER IN SIZE THAN

 THOSE SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT LIST MAY BE USED IF APPROVED BY THE OWNER.  IF THE USE OF

LARGER PLANTS IS APPROVED, THE BALL OF EARTH OR SPREAD OF ROOTS SHALL BE INCREASED IN

PROPORTION TO THE SIZE OF THE PLANT.

GENERAL LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS AND NOTES

A.  SCOPE OF WORK

B.  PROTECTION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES

C.  PROTECTION OF EXISTING PLANT MATERIALS OUTSIDE LIMIT OF WORK

D.  MATERIALS

E.  TOPSOIL AND SAND

F.  WATER

G.  COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER

H.  MULCH

I.  DIGGING AND HANDLING

J.  CONTAINER GROWN STOCK

P.  LAWN SODDING

O.  PLANTING PROCEDURES

N.  FINE GRADING

M.  MATERIALS LIST

L.  NATIVE STOCK

K.  COLLECTED STOCK

Q.  CLEAN-UP

R.  PLANT MATERIAL MAINTENANCE

S.  MAINTENANCE (ALTERNATE BID ITEM)

T.  GUARANTEE

U.  FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE OF WORK



EXISTING

COCONUT PALM

TO REMAIN

EXISTING 10"

BLACK OLIVE

TREE TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING 17"

BLACK OLIVE

TREE TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING TREE

TO REMAIN

EXISTING 11"

BLACK OLIVE

TREE TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING 35"

BLACK OLIVE

TREE TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING 21"

BLACK OLIVE

TREE TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING PALM

TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING PALM

TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING PALM

TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING

COCONUT PALM

TO REMAIN

EXISTING

FOXTAIL PALM

TO REMAIN

EXISTING BLACK OLIVE

TO REMAIN

EXISTING BLACK OLIVE

TO REMAIN

EXISTING BLACK

OLIVE TO REMAIN

EXISTING 12"

BLACK OLIVE

TREE TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING PALM

TO BE REMOVED

SIGHT

VISIBILITY

LINE

SIGHT

VISIBILITY

LINE

T
R

E
E

D
I
S

P
O

S
I
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

L1.02

C
H

A
S

E
 
B

A
N

K
 
2

0
0

L
A

K
E

 
A

V
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

B
D

G
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

,
 
L
L
P

0
4
3
4
0
9
1
3
8

1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6

L
R

H

L
M

C
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6

L
R

H

©

NORTH

NOTE:

SUBJECT TO FDOT REVIEW. TREES TO BE

REMOVED/RELOCATED AS NEEDED

LEGEND

EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

SECTION

N.T.S.

EXISTING GRADE

5' Max

Spacing

SEE PLAN FOR LOCATION

OF H.D. FENCING

5' Max

Spacing

6
"

BARBED WIRE

A

T-POST CAP

B

6' HEAVY DUTY T-POST

C

48" FILTER FABRIC - BURIED 6"

D

6"X6" WELDED WIRE MESH OR HOGWIRE

FENCE

E

A

B

C

D

E

42"

24"

NOTE:

ALL TREES  ARE TO BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE.  NO

VEHICULAR PARKING, STORAGE OF MATERIALS OR

EQUIPMENT , CLEANING OF EQUIPMENT, EQUIPMENT WASH

OUT OR ANY OTHER ACTION WHICH MAY CAUSE AN ADVERSE

AFFECT ON EXISTING OR FUTURE PLANTING IS TO OCCUR IN

OR AROUND TREES IN  LANDSCAPE AREAS WHICH MAY BE

AFFECTED.

NOTE: 12 EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

15" OF MITIGATION PROVIDED BY EXTRA INCHES FROM REQUIRED TREES

91" TO BE PAID INTO TREE CANOPY RESTORATION FUND



41"H

30"H

20.5"H

34"H

32"H

8" 2'-0" 12'-0" 2'-0" 10'-8" 4'-4" 19'-4" 4'-4" 10'-8" 2'-0" 8" 7'-0" 2'-0"12'-0" 2'-0"

16'-0" 10'-8" 28'-0" 10'-8" 16'-0" 9'-8"

91'-8"

2'-
0"

8'-
4"

2'-
8"

17
'-0

"
2'-

8"
8'-

4"
2'-

0"
4"

10
'-4

"
22

'-4
"

10
'-4

"

43
'-4

"

2'-4" 3'-4"
1'-0"

3'-4"
1'-0"

3'-4" 2'-4" 1'-10" 6'-0" 1'-10" 4'-8" 19'-4" 4'-8" 9'-8" 2'-4" 3'-4"
1'-0"

3'-4"
1'-0"

3'-4" 3'-0" 6'-4"

16'-8" 9'-8" 28'-8" 9'-8" 17'-4" 9'-0"

3'-
0"

5'-
0"

2'-
0"

5'-
4"

3'-
4"

7'-
4"

3'-
4"

10
'-0

"
28

'-0
"

6'-
4"

14'-11"

8'-
11

"

1'-
8"

5'-
4"

1'-
8"

2'-8"

4"

8"

1'-
8"

1'-
4" 1'-

0"

1'-
8"

8"

1'-
4"

1'-
8"

2'-
0"1'-
8"

8"

104
COMFORT ZONE

105
ACCESS TELLER

108
DATA/ELEC.

111
LOUNGE

110
JANITOR

114
MEN

115
WOMEN

118
CONFERENCE ROOM

119
BCM

120
PB 3

121
PB 4

122
PB 5

116
VIEWING

112
PRINT/FILE

109
VAULT 101

VESTIBULE

102
WORK ROOM

103
LOBBY

113
CORRIDOR 1

117
CORRIDOR 2

AHD
ATM

OVERHEAD COILING DOOR

RAMP  DOWN
MAX. 1:12 SLOPE

2 R  DN

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF FINISH TO FACE OF FINISH

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS

GIVEN ON THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND REPORT ANY

ERRORS OR INCONSISTENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT BEFORE

COMMENCING THE WORK.

3. WRAP AND FINISH END OF WALLS W/ GWB, CORNER BEADS,

TAPE, SAND & PAINT AS SCHEDULED.

4. ALL WALLS TO BE WJ UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

5. ALL DOORS TO BE LOCATED 3" FROM FACE OF FINISH OF

ADJACENT WALL TO FACE OF FRAME UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE. PROVIDE 18" CLEAR AT LATCH ON PULL SIDE OF

DOORS, 12" CLEAR AT LATCH ON PUSH (TYP. UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE).

6. PROVIDE BLOCKING AND BACKING AT 2'-0" AFF AND 8'-0" AFF IN

WALLS AND  PARTITIONS FOR ALL CASEWORK AND

ACCESSORIES. COORDINATE WITH FIXTURE SHOP DRAWINGS.

7. SECURITY CAMERA TO BE COORDINATED WITH SECURITY

CONTRACTOR.

8. SEE SHEET A5.3 FOR INTERIOR GLASS PARTITION DETAILS.

 FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES

PLAN NOTES

A-1 STRUCTURAL COLUMN:
SEE DETAILS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

A-2

A-3

A-4 SOFFIT / BULKHEAD:
5/8" GYP. BD. WITH METAL EDGE BEADS OVER FRAMING AS REQD.-
REFER TO SECTIONS, DETAILS AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-5 SYSTEMS FURNITURE:
PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY  JLL'S  FURNITURE VENDOR- COORD.
ELEC., DATA AND SECURITY CONNECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS

A-6 FLOOR MATERIAL TRANSITION:
REFER TO DETAILS SHEET A1.2

A-7 WINDOW AWNING:
PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY  JLL'S  SIGNAGE VENDOR- REFER TO
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-8 CUSTOM SHOP-FABRICATED BUILT-IN MILLWORK:
REFER TO INTERIOR ELEVATIONS- SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS AND
FINISH SAMPLES TO ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL

A-9

PROPOSED LOCATION OF UTILITY METER AND MANUAL TRANSFER
SWITCH.  SEE ELECTRICAL.

A-10 SUPPORTED CONCRETE STOOP:
ACCESSIBILITY-COMPLIANT CONTINUOUS PAVING TO PUBLIC R.O.W.
REQD. FROM ALL EXITS

A-11 EQUIPMENT:
REFER TO EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION MANUAL- COORDINATE WITH
JLL'S  EQUIPMENT INSTALLER- PROVIDE ELECTRICAL, DATA AND
SECURITY ROUGH-IN WORK AS REQUIRED- FRAME WALL OPENING AND
PREPARE FLOOR SUBSTRATE AS REQUIRED. PROVIDE BLOCKING IN
WALL AS REQUIRED

A-12 EXTEND WALLS TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF STRUCTURE

A-13 SEMI-RECESSED FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET

A-14 KNOX BOX: MOUNTED FLUSH WITH SURROUNDING WALL SURFACE.
VERIFY LOCATION WITH LOCAL MUNICIPALITY TO ENSURE
COMPLIANCE. PAINT TO BLEND WITH SURROUNDING WALL FINISH

A-15 ENTRANCE CANOPY : SEE DETAILS

A-16 EXTERIOR ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING: REFER TO ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS

A-17 INTERNAL RAINWATER LEADERS: SEE PLUMBING

A-18 POWER/DATA FLOOR BOX: REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

A-19 PROVIDE VERTICAL CONDUIT STUB-UPS FOR eATM CONNECTIONS,
IN-LINE PARALLEL TO eATM EQUIPMENT. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.
DIMENSIONS TO CENTER OF STUB-UPS.

A-20 AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATOR: LOCATE CARD READER AND PUSH PAD
AT WALL FOR SINGLE DOOR INGRESS TO VESTIBULE - PROVIDE
WEATHER RING TO ENSURE WEATHER-TIGHT INSTALLATION

A-21 SIGNAGE: "DOOR TO REMAIN OPEN DURING OPERATING HOURS"

A-22 AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATOR PUSH PLATE

A-23 TACTILE ADA SIGNAGE, SEE SHEET A5.2

A-24 TACTILE EXIT DOOR SIGNAGE, SEE SHEET A5.2

A-25

A-26

TUBE STEEL SUPPORT COLUMN IN LOWER PARTITION BELOW GLASS.
SEE DETAILS

A-27

BATTERY BACK-UP FOR OVERHEAD COILING DOOR, MOUNTED ABOVE
CEILING.  SEE ELECTRICAL

A-28

ASC MOTORIZED ROLL DOWN SCRIM, SEE DETAILS

A-29

A-30

SIDEWALK TO REMAIN

NOTE:  THIS LIST IS COMPREHENSIVE.  NOT ALL LISTED ITEMS
ARE USED IN THIS PROJECT

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES:
REFER TO INTERIOR ELEVATIONS- PROVIDE BLOCKING AS REQUIRED

FULL HEIGHT GLASS PARTITION AT OFFICE. SEE INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
AND DETAILS

OFFICE PARTITION: LOW WALL WITH GLASS ABOVE. SEE INTERIOR
ELEVATIONS AND DETAILS

OVERHEAD COILING DOOR SWITCHES. INSTALL AT 3'-4" AFF TO BOTTOM
OF SWITCH

KEY PADS. SEE ELECTRICAL AND SECURITY PLANS.

A-31

A-33

A-34

ADA DIRECTIONAL  DOOR SIGNAGE

ROOF ACCESS LADDER & SCUTTLE:
REFER TO ROOF PLAN AND DETAIL AS NOTED

MODULAR CONCRETE VAULT:
PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY JLL'S BANK EQUIPMENT VENDOR. SEE
VENDOR DRAWINGS.

A-32

PITCH PAVEMENT DOWN PITCH PAVEMENT DOWN

3'-0"9'-0"

TRAFFIC FLOW

22
'-1

0"

9'-
0"

3'-
6"

9'-
0"

 M
IN

.

ASPHALT CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

3'-0"

AT
M

LA
NE

AT
M

LA
NE

PROJECT INFORMATION BLOCK

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

ISSUE/BY DATE DESCRIPTION

SEAL

THESE DRAWINGS AND PLANS, ANY REPRODUCTION THEREOF, AND ANY
CAD OR ELECTRONIC FILE OF THESE DRAWINGS AND PLANS (HEREINAFTER
“PLANS”) ARE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE, PROPRIETARY PROPERTY OF BDG
ARCHITECTS, AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED, PUBLISHED, MODIFIED OR
USED IN ANY WAY WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF BDG
ARCHITECTS. USE OF THESE PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
CONSIDERED ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN AND THE
SUITABILITY AND CONSTRUCTABILITY OF THE PLANS.  THE PLANS SHALL NOT
BE SCALED OR MODIFIED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT THE EXPRESS
WRITTEN APPROVAL OF BDG ARCHITECTS. ANY CHANGES TO THESE
PLANS, REGARDLESS OF HOW MINOR, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
APPROVAL OF BDG ARCHITECTS; ANY CONSTRUCTION EXECUTED FROM
THESE PLANS WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF BDG
ARCHITECTS; OR ANY CHANGE IN THE SCOPE, DESIGN, OR INTENT OF
THESE PLANS FOR ANY REASON, BY ANY PERSON OTHER THAN BDG
ARCHITECTS SHALL AUTOMATICALLY VOID ANY DESIGN-RELATED
OBLIGATIONS BDG ARCHITECTS MAY HAVE ON THE PROJECT, AND RESULT
IN THE FULL AND COMPLETE RELEASE OF BDG ARCHITECTS FROM ANY
LIABILITY, CLAIMS, OR DAMAGES INCLUDING ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE PLANS. ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS IN THE PLANS SHALL BE REFERRED IMMEDIATELY TO BDG
ARCHITECTS FOR CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WITH THE WORK.
FAILURE TO REFER DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS TO BDG ARCHITECTS
PRIOR TO PERFORMING WORK SHALL RESULT IN THE WAIVER OF ANY
CLAIMS OR DAMAGES ASSOCIATED WITH THE DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COORDINATION,
SCHEDULING AND CONFORMANCE OF ITS WORK AND ALL WORK
PERFORMED BY SUBCONTRACTORS OR OTHER TRADES WITH THE DESIGN
DOCUMENTS.

100 S. Ashley Dr.,
Ste. 100
Tampa, FL 33602

Architect of Record:
Gregg A. Holdsworth, AIA LEED AP

Florida Registration
License No. AR0017669

P:  813 - 323 - 9233
Lic. #: AA - 0003590

www.bdgllp.com

JP
M

 C
ha

se
 R

et
ai

l B
an

ki
ng

 C
en

te
r

20
0 

La
ke

 A
ve

nu
e

La
ke

 W
or

th
, F

lo
rid

a,
 3

34
60

La
ke

 A
ve

 &
 N

. O
 S

t.

JOB #:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

13318
12-21-2015

GS

bdg
architects

JL

SCALE
FLOOR PLAN 11/4"=1'-0"

SCALE
DRIVE UP CANOPY PLAN 21/4"=1'-0"

A1.0

FLOOR PLAN

N



200

3'
-4

"

E-9

EIFS-4

ST-1

2'
-0

"21'-0"
T.O.  PARAPETEIFS-2

E-38

E-8

E-17

E-10

E-9 TYP.

E-10

RF-2

E-14

(BEYOND) (BEYOND)

E-5

EIFS-2

E-8

E-2

E-1

E-36E-36

EIFS-4

EIFS-2

E-1

E-2

ST-1

ST-3

ST-1

E-7

ST-1 ST-1

ST-3

ST-1

E-20E-23

E-41

E-41

E-36

E-34

E-40
E-42

E-39

E-17

E-13

EIFS-2

E-22

TYP.

E-3

E-7

E-4

200

19'-0"
T.O. PARAPET

17'-0"
T.O.  PARAPET

10'-8"
B.O.  CANOPY

3'-4"
T.O. WATERTABLE

3'
-4

"
6'

-4
"

7'
-4

"
2'

-0
"

E-10

E-22

EIFS-4

EIFS-2

E-10

ST-3

26'-9"
T.O. ROOF

7'
-9

"

12
3 +/-

RF-2

EIFS-4

E-10

12
3 +/-

E-17

E-18

E-36

EIFS-2

2
 
1
/
2
"

S
T

E
P

2
 
1
/
2
"

S
T

E
P

EIFS-4

EIFS-2

E-10

E-7

E-9

ST-3 ST-3

E-36E-36E-36

E-36E-36

ST-1

ST-3

ST-1

E-36

E-17

ST-3

ST-1

E-2

E-1 E-1

E-2

ST-1

ST-3

ST-1 ST-1

E-41

EIFS-2

E-41

ST-2

E-13

E-17 E-17 E-17

E-3

ST-2

0'-0"
T.O.SLAB

E-4

E-5

24'-0"
MEDIAN ROOF HEIGHT

EQ
EQ

E-30E-1 E-30

SCALE
BUILDING  ELEVATION  -  NORTH 11/4"=1'-0"

SCALE
BUILDING  ELEVATION  -  SOUTH 21/4"=1'-0"

PROJECT INFORMATION BLOCK

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

ISSUE/BY DATE DESCRIPTION

SEAL

THESE DRAWINGS AND PLANS, ANY REPRODUCTION THEREOF, AND ANY
CAD OR ELECTRONIC FILE OF THESE DRAWINGS AND PLANS (HEREINAFTER
“PLANS”) ARE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE, PROPRIETARY PROPERTY OF BDG
ARCHITECTS, AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED, PUBLISHED, MODIFIED OR
USED IN ANY WAY WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF BDG
ARCHITECTS. USE OF THESE PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
CONSIDERED ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN AND THE
SUITABILITY AND CONSTRUCTABILITY OF THE PLANS.  THE PLANS SHALL NOT
BE SCALED OR MODIFIED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT THE EXPRESS
WRITTEN APPROVAL OF BDG ARCHITECTS. ANY CHANGES TO THESE
PLANS, REGARDLESS OF HOW MINOR, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
APPROVAL OF BDG ARCHITECTS; ANY CONSTRUCTION EXECUTED FROM
THESE PLANS WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF BDG
ARCHITECTS; OR ANY CHANGE IN THE SCOPE, DESIGN, OR INTENT OF
THESE PLANS FOR ANY REASON, BY ANY PERSON OTHER THAN BDG
ARCHITECTS SHALL AUTOMATICALLY VOID ANY DESIGN-RELATED
OBLIGATIONS BDG ARCHITECTS MAY HAVE ON THE PROJECT, AND RESULT
IN THE FULL AND COMPLETE RELEASE OF BDG ARCHITECTS FROM ANY
LIABILITY, CLAIMS, OR DAMAGES INCLUDING ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE PLANS. ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS IN THE PLANS SHALL BE REFERRED IMMEDIATELY TO BDG
ARCHITECTS FOR CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WITH THE WORK.
FAILURE TO REFER DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS TO BDG ARCHITECTS
PRIOR TO PERFORMING WORK SHALL RESULT IN THE WAIVER OF ANY
CLAIMS OR DAMAGES ASSOCIATED WITH THE DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COORDINATION,
SCHEDULING AND CONFORMANCE OF ITS WORK AND ALL WORK
PERFORMED BY SUBCONTRACTORS OR OTHER TRADES WITH THE DESIGN
DOCUMENTS.

100 S. Ashley Dr.,
Ste. 100
Tampa, FL 33602

Architect of Record:
Gregg A. Holdsworth, AIA LEED AP

Florida Registration
License No. AR0017669

P:  813 - 323 - 9233
Lic. #: AA - 0003590

www.bdgllp.com

JP
M

 C
ha

se
 R

et
ai

l B
an

ki
ng

 C
en

te
r

20
0 

La
ke

 A
ve

nu
e

La
ke

 W
or

th
, F

lo
rid

a,
 3

34
60

La
ke

 A
ve

 &
 N

. O
 S

t.

JOB #:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

13318
12-21-2015

GS

bdg
architects

JL

SEE A3.3  FOR KEYNOTES

A3.1

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS



19'-0"
T.O. PARAPET

3'
-4

"
8'

-4
"

26'-9"
T.O. ROOF

7'
-9

"

20'-7"
T.O. STEEL

E-37

E-36

TYP.

RF-2

EIFS-4

EIFS-2

EIFS-4

ST-3

ST-1

12
± 4.7

EIFS-4

ACM-2

ACM-1

12
± 4.7

EIFS-2

ACM-1

ACM-2

E-2

E-1

EIFS-2

ST-3

ST-1

E-36

ST-1

E-12

TYP.

TYP.

E-17

0'-0"
T.O.SLAB

EIFS-4

E-36

E-17

26'-9"
T.O. ROOF

12
± 4.7

10'-8"
WINDOW HEAD

12
± 4.7

ACM-1

ACM-2

E-12

E-36

E-36

E-2

ST-1ST-1

E-7

E-7

E-17

E-5

TYP.

E-3 TYP.

EIFS-4

24'-0"
MEDIAN ROOF HEIGHT

EQ
EQ

E-30

E-1

SCALE
BUILDING  ELEVATION  - WEST 11/4"=1'-0"

PROJECT INFORMATION BLOCK

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

ISSUE/BY DATE DESCRIPTION

SEAL

THESE DRAWINGS AND PLANS, ANY REPRODUCTION THEREOF, AND ANY
CAD OR ELECTRONIC FILE OF THESE DRAWINGS AND PLANS (HEREINAFTER
“PLANS”) ARE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE, PROPRIETARY PROPERTY OF BDG
ARCHITECTS, AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED, PUBLISHED, MODIFIED OR
USED IN ANY WAY WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF BDG
ARCHITECTS. USE OF THESE PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
CONSIDERED ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN AND THE
SUITABILITY AND CONSTRUCTABILITY OF THE PLANS.  THE PLANS SHALL NOT
BE SCALED OR MODIFIED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT THE EXPRESS
WRITTEN APPROVAL OF BDG ARCHITECTS. ANY CHANGES TO THESE
PLANS, REGARDLESS OF HOW MINOR, WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
APPROVAL OF BDG ARCHITECTS; ANY CONSTRUCTION EXECUTED FROM
THESE PLANS WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF BDG
ARCHITECTS; OR ANY CHANGE IN THE SCOPE, DESIGN, OR INTENT OF
THESE PLANS FOR ANY REASON, BY ANY PERSON OTHER THAN BDG
ARCHITECTS SHALL AUTOMATICALLY VOID ANY DESIGN-RELATED
OBLIGATIONS BDG ARCHITECTS MAY HAVE ON THE PROJECT, AND RESULT
IN THE FULL AND COMPLETE RELEASE OF BDG ARCHITECTS FROM ANY
LIABILITY, CLAIMS, OR DAMAGES INCLUDING ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE PLANS. ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS IN THE PLANS SHALL BE REFERRED IMMEDIATELY TO BDG
ARCHITECTS FOR CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WITH THE WORK.
FAILURE TO REFER DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS TO BDG ARCHITECTS
PRIOR TO PERFORMING WORK SHALL RESULT IN THE WAIVER OF ANY
CLAIMS OR DAMAGES ASSOCIATED WITH THE DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COORDINATION,
SCHEDULING AND CONFORMANCE OF ITS WORK AND ALL WORK
PERFORMED BY SUBCONTRACTORS OR OTHER TRADES WITH THE DESIGN
DOCUMENTS.

100 S. Ashley Dr.,
Ste. 100
Tampa, FL 33602

Architect of Record:
Gregg A. Holdsworth, AIA LEED AP

Florida Registration
License No. AR0017669

P:  813 - 323 - 9233
Lic. #: AA - 0003590

www.bdgllp.com

JP
M

 C
ha

se
 R

et
ai

l B
an

ki
ng

 C
en

te
r

20
0 

La
ke

 A
ve

nu
e

La
ke

 W
or

th
, F

lo
rid

a,
 3

34
60

La
ke

 A
ve

 &
 N

. O
 S

t.

JOB #:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

13318
12-21-2015

GS

bdg
architects

SCALE
BUILDING  ELEVATION  -  EAST 21/4"=1'-0"

SEE A3.3  FOR KEYNOTES

A3.2

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

JL





ATM 1

ATM 3

ATM 2

FFE = 9.00'
+/- 3,691 S.F.

C
H

A
S

E
 
B

A
N

K
 
2
0
0

L
A

K
E

 
A

V
E

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

B
D

G
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

,
 
L
L
P

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C-100

©

NORTH

SITE DATA TABLE



 

N
O
R
T
H
 
O
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
(
O
N
E
 
W
A
Y
)

LAKE AVENUE (ONE WAY)

ATM 1

ATM 3

ATM 2

SFT

MH: 25

SFT

MH: 25

W

MH: 15

W1

MH: 15

Z

MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 10.6 MH: 10.6

Z

MH: 18

W1

W1

MH: 18

W1

MH: 15

W1

MH: 18

MH: 25

S5-2

S5

MH: 25

W

MH: 15

W

MH: 15

MH: 15

W W

MH: 15

W

MH: 15

17.6 15.2 16.9

20.8 17.0 15.0 16.7 20.9

22.9 20.5 14.2 13.2 17.8 20.7 20.3

20.8 19.6 21.0

26.5 22.3 20.0 22.5 25.7

27.9 23.3 19.3 16.8 19.8 24.0 26.5

3.1 6.5 5.7

5.4 5.6 6.2 7.6 10.8 14.1 14.6 11.3 9.9 5.7 7.0 5.2

5.3 5.1 5.5 5.7 6.1 6.6 6.9 7.5 7.1 6.5 5.3 3.9

4.2 4.3 4.3 4.1 3.9 3.9 4.5 4.5 4.2 4.0 3.4

3.7 3.6 3.2 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.3

3.1 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6

3.8 3.9 3.8 3.7

17.8 17.5 14.1 14.0 13.9 14.3

16.8 16.8 17.1 17.4 18.0

14.1 14.4 14.7 15.0

4.5 4.3 3.9 3.4

6.0 5.8 5.5 5.0 4.1 3.0 2.0

7.0 7.1 6.8 6.5 6.0 5.3 4.2 3.5 2.4

7.6 8.1 8.1 7.5 6.6 5.7 4.6 4.2 3.0

7.3 8.0 8.8 9.5 8.3 7.6 6.8 5.4 5.0 3.5

7.2 7.9 8.6 8.1 9.7 15.9 13.9 11.2 6.2 4.1

6.7 7.5 8.0 7.3 10.7 12.5 4.4 2.7

6.1 6.6 7.1 8.1 8.9 12.7 4.7 3.0

5.1 5.5 6.0 6.6 8.3 3.3 6.5 6.7 4.1 3.1

4.1 4.3 4.8 5.3 5.6 6.0 4.2 4.4 3.7 3.1

3.4 3.8 4.3 4.6 4.9 3.8 3.9 3.5 3.0

2.6 3.0 3.4 3.8 4.0 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.8

2.5 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.8

3.3 2.2 1.2

3.5 2.2 1.3

2.9 1.5

2.9 1.5

2.6 1.4

3.0 2.2 1.4

3.1 2.6 2.1 1.6

2.0 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.0

2.3 3.3 3.5 3.9 4.5 4.9 5.0 4.8 2.4

2.8 3.9 4.1 4.4 5.0 5.7 6.0

3.6 4.5 4.8 5.3 5.7 6.2

4.1 4.5 4.8 5.6 6.0 6.4

3.8 4.6 4.7 5.4 5.8

2.8 3.8 4.2 4.5 5.2

2.2 3.3 3.5 4.0 4.7

1.9 2.9 3.1 3.4

2.9 2.9

2.5 2.6 2.4

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.7

2.0

2.5

3.1

3.6

3.2

2.5

2.4

2.4

2.2

2.22.42.52.92.92.82.62.32.12.12.22.12.31.50.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.4

3.7

6.4

8.6

10.0

7.5

7.7

8.9 5.4 5.4 4.6 2.0 1.4 3.6 5.8 5.1 8.6 7.8 4.4 2.4 1.2

10.5 7.9 7.2 7.8 4.1 1.6 1.0 1.7 4.3 7.7 7.2 12.6 10.8 8.2 5.5 3.0 1.7 0.8

7.1 7.3 7.2 10.1 6.0 3.3 1.9 1.0

9.3 3.5 3.2 2.4 1.7 1.0

11.2 3.7 3.7

9.1 3.7 3.4

6.9

5.5 1.8 3.4

3.1 2.2 4.1

1.4 2.2 3.9

0.7 1.5 3.3 3.7

0.4 0.8 3.0 3.3

0.3 0.5

0.3 0.6

0.3 0.6

0.3 1.0

0.2 1.5

0.3 1.9

0.2 1.7

0.3 1.2

0.3 0.8

0.3 0.6

0.3 0.5 3.8 4.0

0.2 0.4 2.6 2.8 3.3 3.5

0.2 0.6 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8

0.1 0.8 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.5

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Arrangement [MANUFAC] Description

Calculation Summary

SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-PLED-VSQ-M-80LED-1050mA-NW 24955 0.860 266.1

1 S5-2 BACK-BACK U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-PLED-VSQ-M-80LED-1050mA-NW 24955 0.860 266.1

2 SFT SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-PLED-FT-80LED-1050mA-NW-HS 16796 0.860 260

6 W SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-WM1-II-FR-20PLED-1050mA-NW 5952 0.860 66.7

Lum. Lumens LLF Lum. Watts

Label CalcType Units Avg Max

5 W1 SINGLE U.S. ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING RZR-WM1-IV-20PLED-1050mA-NW 5797 0.860 66.7

ATM3 Face Illuminance Fc 22.40 27.9 16.8 1.33 1.66

Misc Areas Illuminance Fc 3.15 12.6 0.1 31.50 126.00

Parking Illuminance Fc 3.55 6.4 1.2 2.96 5.33

Property Line Illuminance Fc 2.63 10.0 0.1 26.30 100.00

4 Z SINGLE Lithonia Lighting DMW2 3000LM ND AFL MVOLT 40K 80CRI 3518 0.860 27.85

Min Avg/Min Max/Min

ATM1 Area Illuminance Fc 5.07 14.6 2.3 2.20 6.35

ATM1 Face Illuminance Fc 15.73 18.0 13.9 1.13 1.29

ATM2 and 3 Area Illuminance Fc 5.59 15.9 2.0 2.80 7.95

ATM2 Face

1 S5

Illuminance Fc 17.98 22.9 13.2 1.36 1.73



City Of Lake Worth
Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North  

Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687 

DATE: May 19, 2016

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning Board

FROM: Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner

Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation

SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 16-01400005 and 16-00500006: a request by Joe 

Naroditsky, Advanced Green Technologies (AGT), for consideration of a Major Site Plan

and, Conditional Use to allow for the installation of a 2.01 Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic 

Solar System on the Lake Work Landfill site. The property is located at 1699 Wingfield 

Street on a 5.31 acre site at the southeast corner section of the Lake Worth Landfill 

(intersection of 15th Avenue South and South E Street).  The PCN is 38-43-44-33-00-000-

1030, in the Public (P) zoning district with a Public (P) Land Use designation. This request 

is pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs. 

Meeting Date: June 1, 2016

SYNOPSIS:

Applicant Mr. Joe Naroditsky

General Location 1699 Wingfield Street

Zoning Public (P)

Existing Land Use Landfill

Future Land Use 

Designation
Public – P

Applicable Municipal 

Code Sections
23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32



Required Proposed/Existing

Lot Area 6,500 square feet 231,477 square feet

Lot Width 50 feet 587 feet

Building Height

Comprehensive 

Plan: Maximum 

30’ (not to exceed 

two stories) plus 

15 feet (max 4 

stories) with 

Sustainable Bonus 

Incentive Program

Zoning Code: 

Maximum 30’ (not 

to exceed two 

stories) plus 15 

feet (max 4 

stories) with 

Sustainable Bonus 

Incentive Program

No building is proposed

Setbacks Required Provided

Front (North) 20 feet 124 feet

Side (East) 10 feet 180 feet

Side (West) 10 feet 1260 feet 

Rear (South) 10 feet 209 feet

Bonus Height and 

Stories
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Living Area Not Applicable Not Applicable

Accessory Structure 

Limitations
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Impermeable Surface

Total
65% maximum 11.26% 

Maximum Building 

Coverage
NA NA

Floor Area Ratio NA  NA

Parking NA
No on-site parking is necessary 

or needed. 

Board Action 

Required

Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 

request for additional information;  



Staff 

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Land Use and 

Major Site Plan, with conditions, to allow for the installation of a 2.01 

Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake Work Landfill site. 

The property is located at 1699 Wingfield Street on a 5.31 acre site at the 

southeast corner section of the Lake Worth Landfill (intersection of 15th 

Avenue South and South E Street), pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 

23.2-31, and 23.2-32 of the LDRs.    The subject site is located at 1699 

Wingfield Street. The site has a Public (P) zoning designation with a 

Future Land Use designation of Public (P).

Name and Title Initials

Project Planner Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner CT

Approved by
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and 

Preservation
MD

Project/Property Description:

This application requests approval of a Major Site Plan and associated Conditional Land Use for a 

proposed solar array on a 5.31 acre site located at the southeast corner section of the Lake Worth 

Landfill with entrance located at the intersection of 15th Ave S and South E Street in the City of Lake 

Worth. The site is currently undeveloped and the proposed Public Use conforms to current Public Use 

status.

ANALYSIS: 

The proposed solar array consists of 6,498 solar energy modules affixed to a ballasted, non-penetrating, 

ground-mounted support structure. The entire system measures approximately 231,477 square feet and 

is approximately 590 feet long x 410 feet wide and oriented on an east-west axis. By orienting the solar 

arrays within the site in rows with 9 feet in between each row, the applicant feels they have created

ample room for service and landscaping vehicles and personnel to maneuver safely through the solar 

array. 

All construction will be designed and performed to meet federal, state and local codes. The racking 

system will be designed to meet 170 mph wind loading tilted at 20 degrees with an Azimuth of 

approximately 180 degrees due south.

Access to the site will be available using the existing service roads for the landfill which are South E 

Street from the North and Washington Avenue from the East. Additional access to the solar array itself 

will be made available by the installation of a stabilized construction entrance as per City of Lake Worth 

Public Services Department, which will extend from the intersecting corner of South E Street and 

Washington Avenue within the landfill itself and is shown on the enclosed site plan.



Public Support/Opposition

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

The applicant’s proposal to a Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use to allow for the installation of a 
2.01 Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake Worth Landfill site is consistent with the 
following Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies, which are outlined below:

• Policy 6.1.5.1: Item 2 under “Create New Ordinances and Modify City Policies” 

The project site has a Future Land Use Designation of Public (P). The Public (P) zoning designation, 

which is the zoning of the project site, is intended to “Modify City policies to incorporate: energy 

saving measures, green building codes, photovoltaic systems, energy-efficient power plants, and 

green-wise transportation”.

It is evident through consistency with the identified policy that the project is consistent with the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection 
of public interest, as follows:

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the
uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate
area where located.

Staff Response: The conditional use indicated on the proposed site plan will be in harmony with the 

uses which are most likely to occur in the immediate area where located. The proposed conditional use

is a public utility in nature and will be compatible to other uses located within the landfill. While the 

future land use of the surrounding areas are Single Family Residential and Medium Density Residential, 

the array is situated well within the boundaries of the landfill and thus is in harmony with potential 

future solar arrays or other public uses within the landfill itself.

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with
existing uses in the immediate area where located.

Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows:



Direction Future Land Use Zoning District
Current Use/            
Name of Development

North Public (P) Public (P) Landfill

South City of Lantana City of Lantana City of Lantana

East Public (P) Public (P) Park

West Public (P) Public (P) Landfill

The majority of existing uses are public (park/recreational) in nature. As such, the proposed solar system 
shall be in harmony with the existing public use in the immediate area.

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater
harm than would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other
conditional use permitted on the Property.

Staff Response: The proposed solar system will be compatible with the Future Land Use designation 

(Public) and may stimulate similar development of the landfill area.  The proposed use will not result in

substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would result from a use permitted by right. 

Further, the proposed solar farm system will help the City furthering its energy policy in providing 

competitive energy rate to its customers.

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of
when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan.

Staff Response: The proposed public use will not result in a more intensive development than that 
approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Rather, the public nature of this 
proposed use shall be compatible with the planning goals, objectives and policies of the Future Land Use 
Element as identified above under Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in a
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than
would result from a development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed public use will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will 
reduce the level of service provided on any street to a lower level than would result from a development 
permitted by right.  The site will not be open to the public, access to the site shall be provided from 
Washington Avenue and South E Street for service and utility personnel.

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on
local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located
with respect to collector and arterial streets.



Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 
traffic on local streets.  Access to the site shall be provided from Washington Avenue and South E Street 
for service and utility personnel.

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions.

Staff Response: The proposed utility use will not include any operational features that would produce
significant air pollution emissions.

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither
extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net
public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: the proposed solar farm not will require extension nor enlargement nor any other
alteration of that system in a manner resulting in a higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public
cost than would result from development permitted by right.

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm
sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor
any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion
of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will not require the use of existing utilities such that 
neither extension nor enlargement is necessary as a result of the project.

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service
beyond the capacity of those services.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police 
or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by 
right.

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by
right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24,
Noise control.

Staff Response: The proposed solar farm is not anticipated to generate significant noise.  

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent
property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting.



Staff Response:  The proposed conditional uses will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto 
any residential property in excess of that allowed in 23.4-10 -Exterior Lighting.

Section 23.2-31: Site Design Qualitative Standards

1. Harmonious and efficient organization. 

Staff Response: The proposed site plan is harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation to 
topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of 
buildings. The proposed solar array will not disturb existing trees on site and will not penetrate the clay
cap seal of the landfill. The site is oriented on an east-west axis as is practical for this size and type of 
plot.

2. Preservation of natural conditions. 

Staff Response: Currently, the site is vacant and has very few existing trees, however the existing 
landscaping and trees located on site will be preserved. Since there will be no penetration on the 
surface of the landfill, terrain and vegetation shall not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly 
increase either wind or water erosion within or adjacent to a development site. Existing natural 
detention areas and other means of natural vegetative filtration of storm water runoff shall be used to 
minimize ground and surface water pollution, particularly adjacent to major waterbodies. Additional 
Civil work is to be provided on the site by installing a geo-technical mat with a layer of crushed stone 
under the array. This work is determined to greatly eliminate weeds and grass from growing under the 
solar array.

3. Screening and buffering. 

Staff Response: Existing site orientation, walls, and other buffers of the landfill already protect residents 
and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, other adverse off-site effects and the solar array itself 
will be further set back far enough within the proposed site so as to not create additional disturbances 
or undesirable views to residents.

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. 

Staff Response: As mentioned above, existing site orientation, walls, and other buffers of the landfill 
already protect residential privacy and construction efforts and the solar array itself will exist beyond a
distance which would intrude upon residential privacy.

5. Emergency access. 

Staff Response: Emergency access to the site shall be provided from the two existing access points along 
Washington Avenue and South E Street Large turning radii are already provided at the access points as 
well as throughout the site for ease of maneuvering.

6. Access to public ways. 

Staff Response: While the site is not open to the public, access to the site shall be provided from 
Washington Avenue and South E Street only for service and utility personnel.



7. Pedestrian circulation. 

Staff Response:  No pedestrian circulation will be provided since the site is not open and accessible to 
the public.

 
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. 

Staff Response: Existing Ingress and egress drives from Washington Avenue and South E Street will be 
used with the addition of a gravel road. This will allow for direct access to the solar array itself for 
landscaping and service personnel and is included in the attached proposed site plan and are designed 
to easily accommodate large vehicles as well as standard size vehicles.

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. 

Staff Response: No on-site circulation and off-site circulation is proposed for this solar array since there 
is no public access. Aforementioned access points will remain available.

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. 

Staff Response: No on-site public right-of-ways are proposed for this development

Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. 

Staff Response: No off-street parking is proposed for this site.

11. Refuse and service areas.

Staff Response: No refuse and service areas are proposed for this site.

12. Protection of property values. 

Staff Response: The elements of the site plan are arranged so as to have minimum negative impact on 
property values of adjoining property. The proposed solar array will be setback sufficiently from existing 
property lines so as not to minimize impact on adjacent properties.

13. Transitional development. 

Staff Response: The proposed site is located squarely within the sealed Lake Worth Landfill, an area 
designated as Public, while adjacent uses are single family and single-family two-family residential, the 
site itself will remain Public with restricted access limited only to service personnel.

14. Consideration of future development.

Staff Response: The proposed site plan is located within a larger area where more solar energy projects 
could potentially be developed. This project is consistent with those future plans.



d) Buildings, generally.

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity of 
character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be 
such as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is 
immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the 
city, the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, 
value and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the 
buildings be the same. 

Staff Response: The proposed solar farm will not be enclosed by a building or building-like structure.
Meets criterion.

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified 
multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible 
under the circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary 
requirements shall be met, including honest design construction, proper design concepts, and 
appropriateness to the city. 

Staff Response: No buildings or structures are proposed for this project. Meets criterion.

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. 
Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building. 

Staff Response: This project does not contain a building structure.

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. 
Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, 
orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural 
components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic 
expression. 

Staff Response: This project does not contain a building structure.

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not 
to be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned 
development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, 
or are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each other. 

Staff Response: The site will not contain a building structure.



6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible with 
the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not be 
allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an aesthetic 
asset to the building, project and neighborhood. 

Staff Response: The proposed use will not contain a building structure.

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in an 
aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not 
compatible to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the 
building or grounds at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the 
building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will be detrimental to 
the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for functional as well as 
aesthetic value. 

Staff Response: The project site does not contain a building structure.

8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood.

Staff Response: The site does not contain a building structure.

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a 
building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to 
constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood. 

Staff Response:  No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. 
They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood. 

Staff Response: The site will not contain a building structure.

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private 
property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate 
structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be 
readily visible from off-premises. 

Staff Response: The site will not contain a building structure.

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is also 
to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving atmosphere 
of the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be approved. 

Staff Response: The site will not contain a building structure.



13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers. 

Staff Response: No advertising has been proposed by this applicant. Meets criterion.

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light spillage 
onto adjacent residential properties is minimized.

Staff Response: The site will not contain a building structure.

Site Plan Review Team

The project was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team on March 14, 2016.  

Conclusion:

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional Land Use 
and, Major Site Plan requests.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district and 
surrounding areas, subject to compliance with staff proposed conditions of approval.

CONSEQUENT ACTION: 

The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision on the Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use will be final. 
The staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Major Site Plan and Conditional 
Use to allow for the installation of a 2.01 Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake Work 
Landfill site. The property is located at 1699 Wingfield Street on a 5.31 acre site at the southeast corner 
section of the Lake Worth Landfill (intersection of 15th Avenue South and South E Street).  The PCN is 
38-43-44-33-00-000-1030, in the Public (P) zoning district with a Public (P) Land Use designation. This 
request is pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the following on the various requests:

Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board APPROVE the Site Plan and Conditional Land Use 
to allow for the installation of a 2.01 Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake Work Landfill 
site. The property is located at 1699 Wingfield Street on a 5.31 acre site at the southeast corner section 
of the Lake Worth Landfill (intersection of 15th Avenue South and South E Street).  The PCN is 38-43-44-
33-00-000-1030, in the Public (P) zoning district with a Public (P) Land Use designation. This request is 
pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs...  

POTENTIAL MOTION:

Should the Planning & Zoning Board concur with staff’s recommendation the following motions are 
recommended:

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-01400005: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-01400005:  
A Major Site Plan allow for the installation of a 2.01 Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the 



Lake Work Landfill site. The property is located at 1699 Wingfield Street on a 5.31 acre site at the 
southeast corner section of the Lake Worth Landfill (intersection of 15th Avenue South and South E 
Street).  The site is located in the Public (P) zoning district with a Public (P) Land Use designation. This 
request is pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs”.

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-00500006 a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the installation of a 2.01 
Mega Watt DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake Work Landfill site. The property is located at 1699 
Wingfield Street on a 5.31 acre site at the southeast corner section of the Lake Worth Landfill 
(intersection of 15th Avenue South and South E Street).  The site is located in the Public (P) zoning 
district with a Public (P) Land Use designation. This request is pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 
23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs”. 

 



LOCATION MAP

Attachments: 
A. Conditions of Approval
B. Proposed Plans

a. Survey
b. Site Plan 



DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR
PZB CASE No. 16-01400005 & 16-00500006

Date of Preparation: May 23, 2016
P&ZB Meeting Date: June 1, 2016
Applicant: Solar Farm
Location: 1699 Wingfield Street

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 16-01400005 & 16-00500006

Standard Conditions of Approval:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code. 

2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 
granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval.

3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied.

4. This approval is for a conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29 for a Major Site Plan and
Conditional Use Permit approval to install a 2.018 MW DC Photovoltaic Solar System on the Lake 
Worth landfill site using a non-penetrating ground-mounted ballasted support structure on a 
+/- 5.31 acre site pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31 and 23.2-32 of the Land 
Development Regulations This use must operate in compliance with all state and local laws that 
govern this use.

5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 
to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.

Additional Conditions of Approval:

Planning and Zoning

1. No outdoor storage shall be permitted on the property without the request and approval of a 
separate conditional land use application.

2. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Section 23.5-1 Signs, and shall require 
approval of a building permit application before installation.



PZB No. 16-01400005 & 16-00500006
1699 Wingfield Street

Conditional Land Use Application
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 2

3. All fully operated activities shall occur within the site’s property lines.  

4. The subject site shall remain clear and clean of any trash or debris when the business has closed 
for the day.

Public Services:

5. Prior to the issuance of a C.O., the applicant shall ensure the right of ways utilized for the 
construction activity are clean and free of debris. All concrete wash-out areas shall be clearly 
designated and contained. Broom sweeping the roadway shall be performed as often as 
necessary to keep the roadways and right of way clean and silt free.

6. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a plan indicating the ingress and egress routes of 
construction equipment, materials and personnel shall be provided. Provide a map indicating 
route for all material deliveries, equipment mobilizations/demobilizations, and personnel daily 
commutes.

7. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire 
surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater 
system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other 
improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction.

8. Prior to the issuance of a C.O., all trench repairs in the existing access roadway shall be repaired 
in accordance with the Public Services standards and specifications.

9. Coordinate with the Public Services Department to provide an approved designated location for 
dumpster/waste receptacle(s), if necessary. The Public Service Department can be reached at 
561-533-7334 or 561-586-1720. 

Water Utilities:

The building department Engineering Submittal shall include the following:

1. All final engineering plans. At a minimum, label all pipes, meters, valves and fittings 

(size, material, slope), and all structure rim and invert elevations. 

2. Fire Flow calculations based on recent flow test.

3. Signed and Sealed Drainage Calculations including Statement regarding Floodplain 

Management.

4. Any storm water permits from LWDD and SFWMD, if applicable.

5. All applicable City of Lake Worth details.

6. Address Traffic Performance Standards, including outside agencies review, if applicable.



PZB No. 16-01400005 & 16-00500006
1699 Wingfield Street

Conditional Land Use Application
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 3

7. Prior to building permit issuance, reserved capacity fees for water and sewer must be 

paid in full in accordance with the current City Ordinance.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 16-00500006

Conditional Land Use

1. The subject site shall remain clear and clean of any trash or debris when the business has closed 
for the day.

2. Any activities associated with the operation of the business shall emit no more than 65 (db) 
decibels and at no time be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real property 
lines of the site. 

Approved by:

_________________________
Maxime Ducoste
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation



C 002

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

GEORGE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
1967 COMMONWEALTH LANE, SUITE 200
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: 7879
ROBERT D. GEORGE, P.E. NO. 51940

STATE OF

P
R

O
FESSION A L ENGIN

EE
R

RO

BERT D. GEORGE

No 51940

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

C 002 Index Page

C 101 Existing Conditions

C 201 Erosion Control Plan

C 301 Site Plan

C 401 Drainage Plan

C 501 Erosion Control & Site Details

C 502 Geo Web Details



W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

WASHINGTON AVENUE
WASHINGTON AVENUE

SOUTH 15th AVENUE

S
O

U
TH

"E
" S

T R
E E

T
S

O
U

T H
"E

" S
T R

E E
T

W

A
N

D
R

E W
R

ED
D

IN
G

R
D

S88° 23' 13.21"E
265.606'

S
3°

12
' 0

9.
79

"W

54
7.

38
9'

S88° 23' 13.21"E
2220.355'

N
0°

32
'1

1.
7 9

"E
12

9 7
.5

62
'

N87° 56' 11.47"W

2011.186'

N87° 58' 33.47"W
50.290'S2° 06' 26.53"W

196.900'

N88° 22' 46.21"W

283.330'

S88° 26' 25.53"W
149.286'

S
1°

35
'1

3.
47

"E
56

2.
05

0'

1" = 100'SCALE:

C 101

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

BOUNDARY SURVEY
A PORTION OF THE S 1/2, NE 1/4

SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 44 S, RANGE 34E
CITY OF LAKE WORTH,

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA



W

WASHINGTON AVENUE

S
O

U
TH

"E
" S

T R
E E

T

WASHINGTON AVENUE

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

S
O

U
T H

"E
" S

T R
E E

T

SOUTH 15th AVENUE

S
1°

35
'1

3.
47

"E
56

2.
05

0'

S88° 26' 25.53"W
149.286'

S
3°

1 2
' 0

9 .
7 9

"W

54
7.

38
9'

S88° 23' 13.21"E
265.606'

S88° 23' 13.21"E
2220.355'

N
0°

32
'1

1.
79

"E
12

9 7
.5

62
'

N87° 56' 11.47"W
2011.186'

S
2°

06
'2

6.
53

" W
19

6.
90

0'

N87° 58' 33.47"W
50.290'

PROPOSED
FUTURE EXPANSION
FOR SOLAR ARRAY

PROPOSED
JOB

TRAILER
LOCATION

1" = 100'SCALE:

C 201

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

Sd1

Sd1Sd1

STATE OF

P
R

O
FESSION AL ENGIN

EE
R

RO

BERT D. GEORGE

No 51940

GEORGE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
1967 COMMONWEALTH LANE, SUITE 200
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: 7879
ROBERT D. GEORGE, P.E. NO. 51940

C501

103



W

PROPOSED
JOB

TRAILER
LOCATION

PROPOSED
FUTURE EXPANSION
FOR SOLAR ARRAY

S88° 23' 13.21"E
2220.355'

S
3°

1 2
' 0

9 .
7 9

"W

54
7.

38
9'

S88° 26' 25.53"W
149.286'

S1° 35' 13.47"E
562.050'

N
0°

32
'1

1.
79

"E
12

9 7
.5

62
'

N87° 56' 11.47"W
2011.186'

N0° 32' 11.79"E
271.802'

N88° 40' 08.21"W
335.123'

N
0°

32
'1

1.
79

"E
32

8 .
20

2'

WASHINGTON AVENUE

S
O

U
TH

"E
" S

T R
E E

T

WASHINGTON AVENUE

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

S
O

U
T H

"E
" S

T R
E E

T

SOUTH 15th AVENUE

1" = 100'SCALE:

C 301

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

C501

101

C501

102

GEORGE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
1967 COMMONWEALTH LANE, SUITE 200
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: 7879
ROBERT D. GEORGE, P.E. NO. 51940

STATE OF

P
R

O
FESSION AL ENGIN

EE
R

RO

BERT D. GEORGE

No 51940



W

WASHINGTON AVENUE

S
O

U
TH

"E
" S

T R
E E

T

WASHINGTON AVENUE

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

W
IN

G
F I

E
LD

S
TR

E E
T

S
O

U
T H

"E
" S

T R
E E

T

SOUTH 15th AVENUE

1" = 100'SCALE:

C 401

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

GEORGE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
1967 COMMONWEALTH LANE, SUITE 200
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: 7879
ROBERT D. GEORGE, P.E. NO. 51940

STATE OF

P
R

O
FESS ION AL ENGIN

EE
R

RO

BERT D. GEORGE

No 51940



C 501

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

SCALE:

101

C501

DETAIL B- TYPICAL DRIVING SURFACE DETAIL (entrance road)
NTS

SCALE:

102

C501

TYPICAL SOLAR ARRAY PERIMETER DETAIL
NTS

GEORGE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
1967 COMMONWEALTH LANE, SUITE 200
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: 7879
ROBERT D. GEORGE, P.E. NO. 51940

STATE OF

P
R

O
FESSION AL ENGIN

EE
R

ROBERT D. GEORGE

No 51940



TYPICAL ATRA ANCHOR SYSTEM

TYPICAL STAKE DETAILS

ISOMETRIC - TYPICAL LOAD SUPPORT STRUCTURE

C 502

A
G
T

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H

L
A
N
D
F
IL

L
S
O
L
A
R

FA
C
IL
IT

Y
10

0
%

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO

N
D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S

L
A
K
E

W
O
R
T
H
,
FL

GEORGE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
1967 COMMONWEALTH LANE, SUITE 200
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32309
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: 7879
ROBERT D. GEORGE, P.E. NO. 51940

STATE OF

P
R

O
FESSION AL ENGIN

EE
R

RO

BERT D. GEORGE

No 51940









































City Of Lake Worth
Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687

DATE: May 20, 2016

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning Board

FROM: Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation

SUBJECT: P&ZB PR NO. 16-00000001: Consideration of a request to permit three (3) murals at 101 North B 
Street.

Meeting Date: June 1, 2016
_____________________________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND

Mr. Steve Johnson (Applicant), in conjunction with Ms. Christy Lebiedzinski, of Delray Beach, Florida, proposes a 
mural project at 101 North B Street. 101 North B Street is located at the northwest corner of Lucerne Avenue and 
North B Street and is developed as a single family residence. The applicant In March 2016, had murals painted on 
the east side of his home facing B Street and on the South side abutting Lucerne Avenue. 

The east side of his home has a sunset on the Atlantic Ocean and the South side facing Lucerne there is a painting 
of a tropical jungle. In addition, the applicant proposes to paint on his existing wooden fence along Lucerne 
Avenue a design with the words “City of Lake Worth, Where the Tropics Begin” (please see the attached 
illustrations. At the time the applicant was issued a notice of violation indicating that a permit was required for 
this mural. The applicant was unaware that a permit was required. When the applicant received this notice, he 
quickly filed an application for the murals.       

The applicant has provided a general project description, a justification statement addressing the criteria, a 
rendering of each mural, and color samples for each mural, a diagram showing where the new proposed murals 
are painted on the building and artist statement and credentials for the murals.

ZONING CODE REGULATIONS

Murals are defined within Section 23.1-12 of the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations (“LDRs”) as:

“Any picture or graphic design painted on or otherwise applied to the exterior of a building or structure, or to a 
window.” 

Section 23.5-1(e) 13 further outlines the requirements for where a mural may be placed on a building and how 
large it may be.

- Murals shall be permitted in commercial and industrial districts.
- Murals shall not be permitted on the fronts of buildings or structures facing Lake Worth Road, Lake 

Avenue, Lucerne Avenue, Dixie Highway and Federal Highway, except as may be approved by the 
appropriate Board.



PZB PR No. 16-00000001
Johnson Mural Project

Mural
Planning & Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 2

2

- Murals may co-exist with all types of on premises signs. If printed commercial messages are included in a 
mural, the entire mural shall be considered part of the overall allowable signage permitted by code. 

The mural regulations also require that the design of the murals must meet the requirements of Section 23.2-
31(l), which defines community appearance standards and review criteria: 

- The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and in 
general contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, 
broad vistas and high quality. 

- The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such as 
to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially depreciate in 
appearance and value. 

- The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, 
with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for 
the city, and with the criteria set forth herein. In the event that the planning board makes a 
recommendation to the city commission for changes herein, the city commission shall consider same and 
may either adopt by ordinance, adopt with modifications, or reject the recommendation. 

- The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable.

The specific terms used herein are referenced within the review procedures in the code section regarding murals.

ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided applying the applicable guidelines and standards 
found in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code and found that the majority of the application meets the threshold of 
approval for a mural. 

101 North B Street is located within the MU-E, Mixed Use – East, zoning district and the murals are proposed for a 
location on the building which may be approved by the Board. Commercial messages are allowed to coexist with 
mural under the LDRs but need to conform to the signage limits set forth in the sign code. As proposed, the 
murals contain no commercial message inference.

The project may also be deemed consistent with the community appearance guidelines as outlined in the zoning 
code, subject to the agreement of the Board.

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the mural project with the following conditions:

1. A mural removal agreement shall be entered between the applicant and the City of Lake Worth. This 
removal agreement shall be recorded with The Clerk and Comptroller of Palm Beach County, prior to 
completion of the proposed mural.

2. The mural shall not contain any commercial messages of any kind.

CONSEQUENT ACTION  

Approval of the mural application; approval with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to request 
additional information; or deny the mural application.



PZB PR No. 16-00000001
Johnson Mural Project

Mural
Planning & Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 3

3

POTENTIAL MOTION

I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PR NO. 16-00000001: Consideration of the proposed mural project for the 
building located at 101 North B Street with the conditions recommended by staff based upon the following 
criteria: the application meets/does not meet the intent of the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code regarding mural 
installation.



PZB PR No. 16-00000001
Johnson Mural Project

Mural
Planning & Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 4

4

LOCATION MAP

Attachments: 
1. Mural Application
2. Justification Statement
3. Images and Placement Diagram
4. Artist Statements and Credentials
5. Mural Removal Agreement
6. Photograph – Proof of Sign Posting



PZB PR No. 16-00000001
Johnson Mural Project

Mural
Planning & Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 5

5



DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR
PZB CASE No. 15-0000002

Date of Preparation: April 29, 2015
P&ZB Meeting Date: May 6, 2015
Applicant: Emily Theodossakos, Lake Worth CRA
Location: 1002 North Dixie Highway

DRAFT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 15-00000002

Standard Conditions of Approval:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code. 

2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 
granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval.

3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied.

4. This approval is pursuant to Sections 23.5-1 for the installation of a mural within the Mixed-Use 
Dixie East zoning district at 101 North B Street. 

5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 
to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all issued permits.

Additional Conditions of Approval:

1. A mural removal agreement shall be entered between the applicant and the City of Lake Worth. This 
removal agreement shall be recorded with The Clerk and Comptroller of Palm Beach County, prior to 
completion of the proposed mural.

2. The proposed mural shall not contain any commercial message of any kind.









City Of Lake Worth
Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687 

DATE: May 24, 2016

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning Board

FROM: Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner

Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation 

SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 16-00500014: Consideration of a Conditional Land Use application 

from C.W.S. Restaurant to operate a bar with live entertainment. The proposed use will 

occur within the existing commercial located at the 522 Lucerne Avenue, (PCN# 38-43-

44-21-15-024-0290) within the Downtown (DT) district.

Meeting Date: June 1, 2016

SYNOPSIS:

Applicant C.W.S. (JEFF JOHN, AGENT)

General location 522 Lucerne Avenue

Zoning DT; Downtown

Existing land use Commercial 

Future land use 

designation

Downtown Mixed Use (DMU)

Applicable Municipal 

Code Sections

23.2-29, 23.3-6

Board action required Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 

request for additional information 

Staff 

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Land Use subject to 

the attached conditions of approval

Name and Title Initials



Project planner Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner CT

Approved by Maxime Ducoste, Planning and Preservation Manager MD

PROPOSAL & ANALYSIS:

This is a 10,125 square foot lot (75 feet in width and 135 feet in depth, 0.232 acres) consisting of two, 

one story buildings. The principal building is located at the southwest corner of the site (1773.46 square 

feet in area). The principal building will house the restaurant with a bar area, with an estimated 

occupancy of 95 persons. The accessory building located at the northeast portion of the property (662.2 

square feet in area) will be used for office purposes. The principal building was built in 1953 and the 

accessory building was built in 1935. The projected occupancy for the office building is estimated to be 

for seven (7) persons.  The site also contains a parking area in the northwest portion of the site 

consisting of 12 parking spaces, two (2) of those spaces have been set-a-side for ADA accessible parking 

spaces. The existing parking area is accessed via a ten (10) foot wide alleyway adjacent to the site’s 

north property line.  The east and southeast portion of the site consist of an outdoor seating area. This 

outdoor area will have an outdoor bar, with outdoor seating.  The estimated occupancy with be for 168 

persons.     

The City’s Land Development Regulations (“LDRs”) authorize the Planning & Zoning Board to grant a 

Conditional Use Permit subject to making two sets of findings detailed in Section 23.2-29(c) and (d). 

These include general and specific findings intended to ensure harmony of the proposed use both with 

the land development regulations as a whole as well as the surrounding existing uses.

The following analyzes the Applicant’s request for a Conditional Land Use to establish an alternative 

option for students that have already dropped out of the traditional classroom in Palm Beach County, 

with a discussion about Property conditions and existing uses; operational characteristics of the 

proposed use; consistency of the proposed use with the comprehensive plan; and a narrative with 

respect to each of the required findings for a conditional land use.  

Operational Characteristics:

The applicant has provided details concerning the operational characteristics of the business, as follows:

• Hours of operation: Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 1:00 am and on Saturday, 7:00 am to 
2:00 am. For Sunday, the applicant is proposing 10:00 am to Midnight.

• There will be no outdoor storage.

Public Support/Opposition:

Staff has received no letters of support or letters of objection concerning the subject request. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:



It is the opinion of Staff that the applicant’s proposed use is consistent with the following components 

of the Comprehensive Plan: 

1.1.3.6 Downtown Mixed Use: 

The Downtown Mixed Use land use category is intended to provide for the establishment and 

expansion of a broad range of office, retail and commercial uses, including higher intensity 

commercial within the traditional downtown core of the City. Diversity of retail uses is 

encouraged; however, certain commercial uses are not permitted in the Downtown Mixed Use 

category because they would be detrimental to the shopping or office functions of the area. All 

ground floor uses within the Downtown Mixed Use area shall be habitable. The implementing 

zoning districts are DT, MU-E, MF-20 and MF-30. Due to the commercial nature of this use, the 

addition of the live entertainment with the restaurant bar will be compatible with the 

Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) land use. 

1.2.2.6 Locational Strategy for the Downtown Mixed Use Category:

The Downtown Mixed Use land use category is intended for mapping of areas considered to be 

the traditional downtown core. The area is primarily bounded on the north by 2nd Avenue 

North, the east by Golfview Road, the south by 1st Avenue South, and the west by H Street. This 

concentrated downtown core demonstrates a reasonably good potential for intensive use by 

office and retail establishments and shall provide for the vertical or horizontal mixing of land 

uses within a single site in order to allow development and redevelopment in specific 

geographic areas of the City that take maximum advantage of existing utility systems and 

services; and promotes compact development, safe and pedestrian-friendly streets, and 

provides transportation choices. The applicant is proposing a mixture of food, beverages and 

live entertainment that will be compatible with locational strategy planned for the DMU 

category.   

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest

1. The conditional use exactly as presented at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the
uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate
area where located.

Staff Response: The subject site is an ideal location in which to locate a restaurant and bar with live 
entertainment on one of the City’s main streets (Lucerne Avenue). The site is located walking distance to 
other downtown retail uses and cultural venues in the City of Lake Worth which promotes this part of 
the City as an entertainment district. The proposed use shall be harmonious and compatible with the 
office, retail and commercial businesses which surround it. The proposed location therefore shall be in 
compliance with all applicable Land Development and meets the intent of the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Future Land Use Element. 



2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with
existing uses in the immediate area where located.

Staff Response: As outlined above, the proposed Conditional Use is compatible with the surrounding 
area, which already contains a mix of commercial, retail, cultural and entertainment facilities. The 
proposed use is in harmony with the surrounding area. The location at this site will further enhance the 
area by continuing to promote commercial activities in the area.   

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater
harm than would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other
conditional use permitted on the Property.

Staff Response: The Conditional Use request to allow a mixed use restaurant, bar and live 
entertainment  venue to this location will not negatively impact the public benefit of cause harm and is 
an ideal location in which to allow this use. The area surrounding the subject site already has 
restaurants, bars and a variety of commercial and retail businesses that encourages a mixed –use future 
for the Downtown corridor. This use and subsequent development along Lucerne Avenue are 
compatible with the existing and future development in the surrounding area. 

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of
when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan.

Staff Response: The Conditional Use request to allow a restaurant with a bar and live entertainment at 
the location will not result in a more intensive development in advance of the Future Land Use Element 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The scope of the mixed use at this site is strictly limited in size and the 
development will re-use the existing structure on the site and will enhance the area and further the 
objectives of the City.

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in a
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than
would result from a development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The subject site is fully developed and the prior use involved a similar number of 
people when the site was used as a restaurant. The scope of the proposed use is limited to existing 
property. All of the patrons of this mixed use will use the existing on street and off-street parking areas 
in the downtown area.  This scope of this use would not constitute a basis for the performance of a 
new traffic analysis. 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on
local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located
with respect to collector and arterial streets.



Staff Response: The subject location is fully developed and prior use involved a similar number of 
people. Given the size of the building and the site, the proposed use at the site will not create traffic on 
local streets at a significant level or create traffic on a local street greater than would result from a 
development permitted by right. A Collector and arterial street would not be affected.

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will
appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would result from a
development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The Conditional use as a mixed use restaurant, bar and live entertainment venue of 
limited scope will not produce air pollution or emission.

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither
extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net
public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The subject site is in close proximity to major thoroughfare systems near Dixie Highway 

and Lucerne Avenue. The location and surrounding parking areas are currently accessible from Lucerne 

Avenue. The granting of this conditional use will not result in a requirement to extend or enlarge or alter 

the thoroughfare system, or result in the incursion of public cost as compared with a development

permitted by right.

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm
sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor
any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion
of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing to utilize an existing building, existing infrastructure, and due 

to the limited scope of this site, no adverse impact to infrastructure or public utilities will occur as a 

result of granting this conditional use.

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service
beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed facility may place a demand on
municipal police or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a
development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The granting of this conditional use shall not place a demand on municipal police or fire 

protection services beyond capacity. The location at this site is consistent with the development pattern 

of the area and will not have any adverse impact.

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by
right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24,
Noise control.



Staff Response: The granting of this conditional use application will not result in the creation of 

undesirable noise.

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any residential
property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-10, Exterior lighting.

Staff Response: The proposed use does not involve any exterior, high intensity lighting, and will not 
create undesirable lighting impact on surrounding properties

Conclusion:

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional Land Use 
request.  The Property has historically been utilized as a commercial property (restaurant), and the use 
as proposed shall be in harmony with the underlying zoning district and surrounding operating 
businesses.

CONSEQUENT ACTION: 

The Planning and Zoning Board’s decision will be final for the Conditional Land Use request.  The 
Applicant may appeal the Board’s decision on the Conditional Land Use request to the City Commission.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Based on the findings outlined in the analysis, staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board 
approve the Conditional Land Use request to allow the applicant to operate a bar with live 
entertainment in conjunction with a restaurant. The proposed use will occur within the existing 
commercial building located at the 522 Lucerne Avenue, (PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-024-00290) within the 
Downtown (DT) district subject to the proposed Conditions of Approval.

POTENTIAL MOTION:

“I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY/CONTINUE P&ZB Project No. 16-00500014: A request for a Conditional 
Land Use to establish a bar with live entertainment in conjunction with a restaurant at 522 Lucerne 
Avenue in the Downtown (DT) zoning district subject to the staff recommended Conditions of Approval.”



LOCATION MAP

Attachments: 
A. Conditions of Approval
B. Project Description
C. Conditional Use Statement
D. Floor Plans
E. Photos



DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR
PZB CASE No. 16-00500014

Date of Preparation: May 23, 2016
P&ZB Meeting Date: June 1, 2016
Applicant: CWS Lounge
Location: 522 Lucerne

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 16-00500014

Standard Conditions of Approval:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code. 

2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 
granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval.

3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied.

4. This approval is for a conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29 for a Conditional Use 
Permit approval to allow for a restaurant and bar with live entertainment within the Downtown 
(DT) Zoning District, within a +\- 1,748 square foot building and a +/- 2,734 square foot patio 
area on a +/- 10,125 square foot site within the Downtown (DT) Zoning District, at 522 Lucerne 
Avenue. This use must operate in compliance with all state and local laws that govern this use.

5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 
to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.

Additional Conditions of Approval:

Planning and Zoning

1. No outdoor storage shall be permitted on the property without the request and approval of a 
separate conditional land use application.

2. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Section 23.5-1 Signs, and shall require approval 
of a building permit application before installation.

3. All fully operated activities shall occur within the site’s property lines, within the existing structure



PZB No. 16-00500014
522 Lucerne Avenue

Conditional Land Use Application
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of June 1, 2016

Page 2

and within the patio area.  

4. The subject site shall remain clear and clean of any trash or debris when the business has closed 
for the day.

5. Any activities associated with the operation of the business shall emit no more than sixty-five 
(65) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is higher) between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 
Sunday through Thursday, a measured sound level not to exceed eighty-five (85) dBA or dBC 
(whichever frequency is higher) between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Sunday through 
Thursday; and a measures sound level which does not exceed sixty-five (65) dBA or dBC between 
the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. Friday through Saturday and a measured sound level that 
does not exceed eighty-five (85) dBA or dBC (whichever frequency is higher) between the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. Friday through Saturday. Noise shall be measured from the curb or 
property line closest to the source of noise with a 30-second reading. When a sound level meter 
is not available, noise that is plainly audible one hundred fifty (150) feet from the real property 
line of the source of the sound or noise shall be deemed a violation.

6. The hours of sale of alcoholic beverages of more than one (1) percent of alcohol by weight shall 
be from 12:00 a.m. (midnight) to 2:00 a.m., and 7:00 a.m. to 11:59 p.m., each day.

7. Coordinate with the Public Services Department to provide an approved designated location for 
dumpster/waste receptacle(s), if necessary. The Public Service Department can be reached at 
561-533-7334 or 561-586-1720.  

Approved by:

_________________________
Maxime Ducoste
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation



My name is Jeff John, owner of C.W.S. Bar + Kitchen. We are extremely pleased and excited 

about being part of the Lake Worth Community. We believe in the vision of this city and the 

basis that it was founded on. Our goal is to complement the vision of the city and create a 

community gathering place that all residents and non-residents can enjoy. With that in mind 

we feel that we can bring more people here and expose them to the beautiful city of Lake 

Worth. 

I would like to highlight some positive facts that C.W.S. will be bringing to town:

1. We are cleaning up an abandoned property that was sitting for several years on a main 

street of the city. Not only cleaning it up, but opening the doors with a beautiful unique 

buildout that will complement the vision of this great city. We are creating a multifaceted 

experience the city of Lake Worth will be proud of with local vendors, businesses and talent 

(our staff). We have built our company with a strong local community foundation. 

2. C.W.S. will elevate the food and beverage experience in Lake Worth. Times are changing 

and evolving, as well as tastes and interests and C.W.S. plans to introduce that to the 

market. We plan to set a standard of operations and service to this town that can be 

modeled after, helping create the destination Lake Worth is becoming.

3. Most importantly, C.W.S. has created over forty plus jobs in the city of Lake Worth with 

various positions in the hospitality industry bringing the culinary, music and artistic 

communities together. As we evolve and grow in the community, so will the opportunities 

for more jobs and grow of the city as well.

4. We are 100% on board with the artistic community vision of Lake Worth. We plan to 

further this movement by engaging local artists and musicians with the culinary community 

to bring together new gatherings and festivals benefiting all involved. 

In Fort Lauderdale, 3J-Hospitality runs a 35,000 square foot facility that has been instrumental 

in creating multiple annual events (example: we own and operate the Mad Decent Block Party, 

a 13,000+ festival successfully for the past 5 years) based around fun, family, music and arts 

and we plan to do the same here in Lake Worth. We actively work in concert with the City of

Fort Lauderdale, the FRLA, Downtown Himmarshee’s business District, local and county Police 

& Fire Rescue, GFL Chamber of Commerce and other city municipalities. 

We will be supporting our community through strategic partnerships with the Lake Worth 

business district, neighborhoods and not for profit organizations. We participated in this year’s



Street Painting Festival and Pride Festival before we opened. We are currently joining our 

neighbors to plan the first annual Mango Festival on June 11th. We envision events like the 

Garlic Festival, Bacon & Bourbon Fest, 4th of July Party, Halloween/Day of the Dead, Themed 

Block Parties, NYE events all in our hometown community.

We have a very strong strategic philanthropy plan that allows us to actively support our local 

charities and really make a difference. Partners include Junior Achievement of South Florida 

(JA World Uncorked), Special Olympics of Broward (Jack’s Joint), United Way of Broward,

American Lung Association (Las Olas Wine & Food Festival), Broward Health Foundation 

(Glamathon), Winterfest Boat Parade, Riverwalk Fort Lauderdale and many more. To date we 

have helped raise over $5 million net dollars to allow these organizations to implement their 

programs.

In conclusion, C.W.S. wants to be viewed as an entity that is community based, supports our 

local residents and business neighbors with education, clean up, modernization & event 

support/creation. We will provide a fun and safe environment for our locals to enjoy, while 

bringing people to our town to enrich other businesses and retailers as well as the Lake Worth 

community.





LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA522 LUCERNE AVENUE

List Of Drawings

REFERENCED CODES:

PROJECT DATA

LOCATION PLAN

PROJECT SITE

List Of Drawings





N
0
0
°
0
0
'
0
0
"
E
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0
'

S
0
0
°
0
0
'
0
0
"
E
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0
'

N90°00'00"E        75.00'

(PAVEMENT VARIES)

(60' R/W)

LUCERNE AVENUE

(
4
0
'
 
R

/
W

)

SITE PLAN

NEW LANDSCAPE TABULATION

TYPE NEW / EXISTINGMARK

RED TIP COCOPLUM NEW SHRUBS

3 GAL. 24" HT. X 24" SPREAD

PLANTED @ 24" HEIGHT. TO BE

MAINTAINED @ MAX. 30" HEIGHT

NOTES































E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
3

0
"
 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
3

0
"
 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

DEMOLITION PLAN

DEMOLITION LEGEND

DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES































E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

A
N

D
-
S

E
T

P
A

V
E

R
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
3

0
"
 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
3

0
"
 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

(E) SAND-SET

PAVERS

NEW

OUTDOOR

CARPET OVER

EXISTING

PAVERS

(E) SAND-SET

PAVERS

(E) SAND-SET

PAVERS











CONSTRUCTION PLAN

WINDOW SCHEDULE





 

































E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

A
N

D
-
S

E
T

P
A

V
E

R
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
3

0
"
 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
3

0
"
 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

(E) SAND-SET

PAVERS

NEW

OUTDOOR

CARPET OVER

EXISTING

PAVERS

(E) SAND-SET

PAVERS

(E) SAND-SET

PAVERS

EQUIPMENT PLAN

FOOD SERVICE EQUIPMENT NOTES































LIFE SAFETY PLAN































REFLECTED CEILING PLAN



T.O. (E) TYP. PARAPET

(+) 13-6" 

(E) FIN. FLR.

(+) 0-0" 

T.O. (E) ROOF

(+) 9-10" 

(E) HIGHEST PARAPET BEYOND

(+) 16-11" 

(E) HIGHEST PARAPET

(+) 16-11" 

T.O. (E) TYP. PARAPET

(+) 13-6" 

(E) FIN. FLR.

(+) 0-0" 

(E) CEILING

(+) 8-6" 

T.O. (E) TYP. PARAPET

(+) 13-6" 

(E) FIN. FLR.

(+) 0-0" 

(E) CEILING

(+) 8-6" 

T.O. (E) TYP. PARAPET

(+) 13-6" 

(E) FIN. FLR.

(+) 0-0" 

T.O. (E) W.I.C. ROOF

(+) 8-2" 

SOUTH (FRONT) ELEVATION

NORTH (REAR) ELEVATION

WEST (LEFT SIDE) ELEVATION

EAST (RIGHT SIDE) ELEVATION

ACCESSIBLE RAMP DETAIL

1

RAMP SECTION "A-A"

2



4

5

End Joint Detail

2
43

DESIGN NO. U465

1. Floor and Ceiling Runners -- (not shown) -- Channel shaped runners,
3-5/8 in. wide (min), 1-1/4 in. legs, formed from min No. 25 MSG
(min No. 20 MSG when Item 4C is used) galv steel, attached to floor
and ceiling with fasteners spaced 24 in. OC max.
2. Steel Studs -- Channel shaped, 3-5/8 in. wide (min), 1-1/4 in. legs,
3/8 in. folded back returns, formed from min No. 25 MSG (min No. 20
MSG when Item 4C is used) galv steel spaced 24 in. OC max.
3. Batts and Blankets* -- (Optional) -- Mineral wool or glass fiber batts
partially or completely filling stud cavity.
See Batts and Blankets (BZJZ) category for names of Classified companies.
3A. Fiber, Sprayed* -- As an alternate to Batts and Blankets (Item 3) --
Spray applied cellulose insulation material. The fiber is applied with
water to completely fill the enclosed cavity in accordance with the
application instructions supplied with the product. Nominal dry density
of 3.0 lb/ft3.
U S GREENFIBER L L C -- Cocoon stabilized cellulose insulation.
3B. Fiber, Sprayed* -- As an alternate to Batts and Blankets (Item 3) and
Item 3A - Spray applied cellulose insulation material. The fiber is
applied with water to interior surfaces in accordance with the application
instructions supplied with the product. Applied to completely fill
the enclosed cavity. Minimum dry density of 4.3 pounds per cubic ft.
NU-WOOL CO INC -- Cellulose Insulation
4. Gypsum Board* -- 5/8 in. thick, 4 ft wide, attached to steel studs and
floor and ceiling track with 1 in. long, Type S steel screws spaced 8 in.
OC. along edges of board and 12 in. OC in the field of the board. Joints
oriented vertically and staggered on opposite sides of the assembly.
When attached to item 6 (resilient channels) or 6A (furring channels),
wallboard is screw attached to furring channels with 1 in. long, Type S
steel screws spaced 12 in. OC.
AMERICAN GYPSUM CO --Types AG-C, AGX-C.
BEIJING NEW BUILDING MATERIALS CO LTD -- Type
DBX-1.
BPB AMERICA INC
--Types 1, EGRG, ProRoc Type X, ProRoc Type C.
CANADIAN GYPSUM COMPANY --Types AR, C, IP-AR,
IP-X2, IPC-AR, SCX, SHX, WRC or WRX.
G-P GYPSUM CORP, SUB OF
GEORGIA-PACIFIC CORP --Types 5, 9, C, DAP, DD, DA, DGG,
DS, GPFS6.
LAFARGE NORTH AMERICA INC --Types LGFC2, LGFC2A,
LGFC6, LGFC6A, LGFC-C, LGFC-C/A.
NATIONAL GYPSUM CO --Types FSK-C, FSK-G, FSW-C,
FSW-G, FSW.
NORGIPS A/S -- NORFIRE XA.
PABCO GYPSUM, DIV OF
PACIFIC COAST BUILDING PRODUCTS INC --Type PG-C.
SIAM GYPSUM INDUSTRY CO LTD --Type EX-1
STANDARD GYPSUM L L C --Type SG-C.
TEMPLE-INLAND FOREST PRODUCTS CORP --Type TG-C.
UNITED STATES GYPSUM CO --Type AR, C, FRX-G, IP-AR,
IP-X2, IPC-AR, SCX, SHX, WRC or WRX.
USG MEXICO S A DE C V --Type AR, C, IP-AR, IP-X2, IPC-AR,
SCX, SHX, WRC or WRX.
WESTROC INC --Type Westroc Fi-Rok or Abuse-Resistant.

Non Bearing Wall Rating - 1 Hr.

4A. Gypsum Board* -- (As alternate to Item 4) - Nom 5/8 in. thick gypsum
panels with beveled, square or tapered edges, applied vertically or
horizontally. Vertical joints centered over studs and staggered one stud
cavity on opposite sides of studs. Horizontal edge joints and horizontal
butt joints on opposite sides of studs need not be staggered or backed.
Panels attached to steel studs and floor runner with 1 in. long Type S
steel screws spaced 8 in. OC when applied horizontally, or 8 in. OC
along vertical and bottom edges and 12 in. OC in the field when panels
are applied vertically.
CANADIAN GYPSUM COMPANY -- Types AR, C, IP-AR,
IP-X2, IPC-AR, SCX, SHX, WRC or WRX.
UNITED STATES GYPSUM CO --T ype AR, C, FRX-G, IP-AR,
IP-X2, IPC-AR, SCX, SHX, WRC or WRX.
USG MEXICO S A DE C V -- Type AR, C, IP-AR, IP-X2, IPCAR,
SCX, SHX, WRC or WRX.
4B. Gypsum Board* -- (As an alternate to Items 4 or 4A) -- Nom 3/4 in.
thick, 4 ft wide, installed as described in Item 4A with screw length
increased to 1-1/4 in.
CANADIAN GYPSUM COMPANY --Types AR, IP-AR.
UNITED STATES GYPSUM CO --Types AR, IP-AR.
USG MEXICO S A DE C V --Types AR, IP-AR.
4C. Gypsum Board* -- (As an alternate to Items 4, 4A and 4B) -- 5/8 in.
thick gypsum panels, installed as described in Item 4A with Type S-12
steel screws. The length and spacing of the screws as specified under
Item 4A.
CANADIAN GYPSUM COMPANY --Type FRX.
UNITED STATES GYPSUM CO --Type FRX.
5. Joint Tape and Compound -- Vinyl, dry or premixed joint compound,
applied in two coats to joints and screw heads; paper tape, 2 in. wide,
embedded in first layer of compound over all joints. As an alternate,
nominal 3/32 in. thick gypsum veneer plaster may be applied to the
entire surface of Classified veneer baseboard. Joints reinforced.
6. Resilient Channel -- (Optional-Not Shown) -- 25 MSG galv steel
resilient channels spaced vertically max 24 in. OC, flange portion
attached to each intersecting stud with 1/2 in. long type S-12 panhead
steel screws. Not for use with Type FRX gypsum panels.
6A. Steel Framing Members (Not Shown)* -- As an alternate to Item 3,
furring channels and resilient sound isolation clip as described below:
a. Furring Channels -- Formed of No. 25 MSG galv steel. 2-3/8 in.
wide by 7/8 in. deep, spaced 24 in. OC perpendicular to studs. Channels
secured to studs as described in Item b.
b. Steel Framing Members* -- Used to attach furring channels (Item a)
to studs (Item 1). Clips spaced 48 in. OC., and secured to studs with
1-5/8 in. wafer or hex head Type S steel screw through the center
grommet. Furring channels are friction fitted into clips.
PAC INTERNATIONAL INC -- Type RSIC-1.
*Bearing the UL Classification Mark

2


	Agenda Outline
	Item 4A - Attachment # 1 - PZB April 6 2016 Minutes
	Item 4B - Attachment # 1 - PZB May 4 2016 Minutes
	Item 5A - Attachment # 1 - PZB May 4 2016 Minutes
	Item 5B - Attachment # 1 - Proof of Publication
	Item 5B - Attachment # 2 - Proof of Publication
	Item 5B - Attachment # 3 - Proof 6 1 2016
	Item 5B - Attachment # 4 - Proof 6 1 2016
	Item 5B - Attachment # 5 - proof
	Item 5B - Attachment # 6 - proof 2
	Item 5.E.2.a - Attachment # 1 - STAFF REPORT PZB 16-00300002
	Item 5.E.2.a - Attachment # 2 - LWISBA_EnclaveMap
	Item 5.E.2.a - Attachment # 3 - 14Parcels
	Item 5.E.2.a - Attachment # 4 - Boutwell Rd
	Item 5.F.1 - Attachment # 1 - West Village Flats Staff Report 5.19.2016
	Item 5.F.1 - Attachment # 2 - PZB 16-01400001 PZB 16-00500001 West Village Conditions of Approval Revised 5.19.2016
	Item 5.F.1 - Attachment # 3 - 2016-05-18 PZB Resub Rev2 List
	Item 5.F.1 - Attachment # 4 - 2016-05-18 LW Artist Residences - PandZ Resubmit Rev2
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 1 - Lake Worth MMOA
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 2 - Lake Worth Trash Letter
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 3 - 2016 05 09 Chase 200 Lake Ave Narrative
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 4 - 200 Lake Ave PBC Traffic Approval
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 5 - PZB CHASE STAFF REPORT
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 6 - PZB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 7 - Chase Bank Lake Ave - ATM Rev 01-06-2016 ATM1
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 8 - Chase Bank Lake Ave - ATM Rev 01-06-2016 ATM2 and ATM3
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 9 - Chase Bank Lake Ave - ATM Rev 01-06-2016
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 10 - Parking Exhibit C-100-A
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 11 - Site Plan extraction
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 1 - Solar Farm Staff Report
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 2 - PZB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 3 - Civil 100% Site plan submittal 5_25_16
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 4 - extraction
	Item 5.G.3 - Attachment # 1 - PZB 16-00000001 - 101 N B Street Mural Staff Report
	Item 5.G.3 - Attachment # 2 - PZB 16-00000001 101 N B Street Mural CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	Item 5.G.3 - Attachment # 3 - Photos
	Item 5.G.4 - Attachment # 1 - PZB 16-00500014 CWS STAFF REPORT
	Item 5.G.4 - Attachment # 2 - PZB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	Item 5.G.4 - Attachment # 3 - Jeff-Narrative
	Item 5.G.4 - Attachment # 4 - Survey 522 Lucerne Ave
	Item 5.G.4 - Attachment # 5 - CWS Lounge - 522 Lucerene Ave



